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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ER|E

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best Food”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “Best Food Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Business Review

As the third year of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic (the
“Pandemic”) since the outbreak, 2022 saw the largest impact on people’s
lives and the greatest pressure on the food and beverage industry over
the past three years due to the spread of the Pandemic and the
continued year-round pandemic control measures. During the year, Best
Food Group and all the companies under it experienced the most
rigorous “stress testing” ever, with some brands under tough challenges.
The Pandemic has also testified how the management of Best Food
Group and its brands shouldered the pressure, its maturity and its
determination to lead the companies to weather the challenges. Some of
the Group’s excellent brands took advantage of the special period to
hone their internal strengths, optimise restaurant model and improve the
effectiveness of talent teams to facilitate healthy brand operation, and
through replication and expansion to steadily increase the business scale,
a breakthrough was made against the market downturn. Leveraging the
recovery of consumer sentiment in the market following the adjustment of
the Chinese government’s pandemic-control policy in December 2022,
the Group has led its brands to swing from defense to offense and
recovered rapidly.
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During the year, Best Food remained committed to the mission of
“empowering food and beverage business with technology to provide
better three-meal a day” and made tangible progress in building its
digital-driven platform empowerment capabilities despite tremendous
difficulties:

¢ Improving the value of the Group’s assets

In 2022, the Group continued to establish its digital multi-system
platform steadily, and successively developed and improved,
among others, the smart cashier, order-via-mobile-app and
membership management system, the smart takeaway system and
the big-data franchise platform. Such digital instruments are
expected to play an important role in the cross-brand collaboration
of members, the restaurant-opening and operation decisions of
franchisees and the daily operation decisions of restaurants, which
may not only improve brand operation efficiency, but also benefit
the partners of the Group.

The Group keeps an eye on and closely follows the changes in
customers’ consumption scenarios and habits in a bid to develop
online sharing channels based on live streaming and short video
models, strengthen online brand-building and improve brand
momentum.

In 2022, the Group continued to expand its franchising network in
an active manner and focused on developing cross-regional
franchisees to promote its brands beyond local communities to a
wider area.

e Team-building

Talent is the cornerstone of corporate development. The Group
builds a talent echelon appropriate to its strategy through a merit-
based performance evaluation system. It unifies ideas and improves
team cohesiveness through the organization of executive strategy
seminars and group strategy briefing. The Group encourages
innovation and breakthroughs by setting “uncapped” awards.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ERE®mE (8)

Prospects and Future Planning

The catering industry is recovering gradually and the Group is confident
in the long-term potential and development opportunities of the catering
market in China. After three years of waiting and refinement, many of the
Group’s brands have strengthened their foundations during market
testing and are poised for growth, while the momentum built up by Best
Food as a platform will continue to drive the overall growth of the Group.
The Board believes that some of the Group’ brands will enter a rapid
growth stage in the next three years and contribute considerable value to
the performance improvement of the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), customers and
business partners of the Group for their strong support throughout the
year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity to thank all
colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

Performance Review

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of food and beverage
business under two brands, including “Xinladao” fish hot pot and “HHG”
Chinese fast food. In addition, the Company invested in certain
associates for investment return. These associates operate approximately
10 brands, including Sichuan and Chongqging style fast food “Yujian
Xiaomian”, “King of Clay Pot” claypot rice, “Seesaw coffee”, “West
Master” Chinese bun, “Yuepin” Vietnamese cuisine, “Foook” malatang,
“Dafulan” Hunan rice noodles and snacks and “Panda Hot Pot” small hot
pot.

In 2022, stringent management and control measures were implemented
throughout the year in response to the recurring novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic across the country, which posed significant
negative impact on the food and beverage industry. Brands with stores
mainly located in first-tier cities were under particularly high pressure. The
revenue of the Group was RMB537.5 million in 2022, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 28.6% over 2021. Nevertheless, the Group’s
total system sales, constituting sales of all restaurants, both owned and
franchised under the brands of the Group and its associates, amounted
to RMB2,670 million in 2022, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.1%
over 2021. As of the end of 2022, the number of stores under all brands
of the Group and its associates was 878 with a net increase in newly
opened direct-sale stores and franchised stores of over 160. Some of the
brands not only realized significant increases in system revenue and
number of stores, but also successfully achieved breakthrough in terms
of cross-region expansion. Among them, “Yujian Xiaomian” solidified its
foothold in the Beijing market and opened stores at transportation hubs
in various cities on the basis of further increasing the number of stores in
the local market of the Pearl River Delta region; “King of Clay Pot” further
refined its single-store model that is suitable for lower-tier cities, hence
expanded beyond the regional market of Beijing and established batches
of franchised stores in a number of new regions including Jiangsu, Anhui,
Zhejiang, Fujian and Sichuan. As of 31 December 2022, the number of
stores of King of Clay Pot outside Beijing has exceeded 70; “Seesaw”
coffee fully leveraged the brand development momentum accumulated
by its offline stores and launched a series of popular coffee retail
products. Adopting an integrated online and offline model, the new retail
business was carried out through e-commerce platform and community
group purchase and has begun to take shape, which helped further
enhanced its brand value; “West Master” Chinese bun opened the first
overseas store in Canada and generated stable profits. With this
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED N (5

foundation for replication and expansion of stores, the brand has also
achieved breakthrough in the Southeast Asia market; “Panda Hot Pot”,
being a newcomer in the hot pot segment which is still at the initial stage
of development, has created a unique hot pot store model for causal
socializing through the innovation of both product structure and kitchen
workflow. The brand broke new grounds in the Guangdong market by
the successive opening of 6 new stores during the period when the
Pandemic outbreak was most severe with all these stores achieving
single-store profits.

The short-term pressure from the Pandemic has not changed the
Group’s strategic goals in the long run. Best Food will stay committed to
establishing itself as a “new” digital-based and multi-brand food and
beverage platform company.

Operational Empowerment

Franchise empowerment: The Group has established a franchise
expansion team to accelerate the cross-region development of
enterprises on Best Food’s platform by helping them to overcome their
bottleneck problems through the development of cross-region and cross-
brand franchisors. In 2022, the Group entered into strategic cooperation
agreements with a number of national commercial property enterprises,
through which it has completed the consolidation of resources as the
principal, and established a network of regional multi-brand franchisors in
various regions.

Empowerment by traffic flows of multiple channels: During the outbreak
of the Pandemic, as dine-in operations were under restriction, the Group
actively explored the expansion of business via multiple channels online
and offline. In 2022, Best Food developed the intellectual property (IP)
matrix of the Group’s brand and the IP of the chief executive officer of the
Company with the operation of live broadcast and short video contents
as the core element. Meanwhile, it actively carried out community
marketing for food delivery and launched the group meal business and
working meal business, striving to increase the conversion of traffic flows
in public sectors to expand the traffic flows in private sectors with its all-
out efforts in both online and offline channels. The number of members of
the Group, which, in the form of either stored value or loyalty points,
increased from approximately 16.0 million at the beginning of the year to
approximately 23.0 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Digital Empowerment

In 2022, the digital team of Best Food constructed certain systems,
aiming to realize synergy of customer flows among multiple brands at
Group level, consolidate the resources of cooperating parties and
enhance its data mining and utilization ability, thereby giving better play to
the value of Best Food'’s platform.

Firstly, in 2022, the self-built digital team of the Group completed the
proprietary development of the smart cashier system, the order-via-
mobile-app system and the membership customer management system,
and completed the launch of its major brands for operation on such
platforms, which was gradually applied to various brands of the Group,
thereby forming an integrated system that connects the whole platform.

Secondly, the intelligent delivery system has been preliminarily formed.
The data dashboard may present comparisons between data and
indicators of various brands and various food delivery platforms
horizontally, which provided timely support for operational decision-
making.

Thirdly, the preliminary big data system for franchise operation was
completed, which realized the modular management of key stages of
franchise business of various brands from clues collection, progress
tracking, business negotiation, contracting and fund transfers to follow
up on feedback of franchisors, so that the whole process is controllable
online. This not only can provide sufficient support for franchisors, but
also satisfied their demand for highly efficient management resulting from
the growing scale of the franchise businesses.

Lastly, the Group also commenced the development of big data middle
platform and Business Intelligence (Bl) analysis system, marking the
beginning of the construction of its intelligent data platform.

Investment Empowerment

In 2022, Best Food completed two rounds of angel investment, including
the hot pot-stewed brand “Zhao Cai Feng Zhao” (B 74 [Bl/T\) and the small
hot pot brand “Panda Hot Pot” (R&J&3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B2 E &R DA ()

In recent years, Best Food has established a multi-brand investment
matrix based on cross-region, cross-sector and multiple business forms.
The increase in the valuation of associates invested by the Group has
contributed to significant value enhancement of Best Food. However,
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 28 “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures”, the investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method (instead of the fair value
approach). Therefore, the contribution of the abovementioned increase in
valuation was not reflected in the statement of comprehensive income of
Best Food. In 2021, Best Food realised part of the profit from the
disposal of a small amount of investment in associates, proving the
satisfactory results achieved from investment empowerment. In 2022,
Best Food continues to hold the equity interest in associates, and
remains confident in the long-term growth of its brand value.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased by 28.6% from RMB753.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB537.5 million for the
corresponding period of 2022, among which revenue from restaurant
operations decreased by 43.6% from RMB500.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB282.5 million for the corresponding
period of 2022, which was mainly attributable to the decline in sales as
some restaurants were closed or unable to provide dine-in services due
to the impact of the Pandemic during the reporting period. Revenue from
delivery business remained stable at RMB206.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 and RMB207.9 million for the corresponding period
of 2022.

Raw material used and changes in inventories of
finished goods

Raw material used and changes in inventories of finished goods
decreased by 27.7% from RMB288.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to RMB208.1 million for the corresponding period of
2022, which was mainly attributable to the disrupted restaurant
operations caused by the Pandemic. Raw material used and changes in
inventories of finished goods as a percentage of revenue were 38.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 38.7% for the corresponding
period of 2022, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Online platform service charges and delivery fees

Online platform service charges and delivery fees increased by 4.0% from
RMB37.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB38.6
million for the corresponding period of 2022. Online platform service
charges and delivery fees as a percentage of revenue from delivery
business increased from 18.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
18.6% for the year ended 31 December 2022, which was mainly
contributed by the increase of service charge rate by online platform
during the reporting period.

Employee benefit expense

Employee benefit expense decreased by 20.6% from RMB217.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB173.0 million for the
corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in staff working hours during the lockdown of cities due to the
Pandemic. Employee benefit expense as a percentage of revenue
increased from 28.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 32.2%
for the corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue during the reporting period.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by 18.1% from RMB103.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB84.7 million for the
corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly due to the closure of
certain underperforming restaurants in 2022. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets as a percentage of revenue increased from 13.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to 15.8% for the corresponding period of
2022, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue during
the reporting period.

Depreciation and amortisation of other assets

Depreciation and amortisation of other assets decreased by 33.0% from
RMB41.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB27.6
million for the corresponding period of 2022. Depreciation and
amortisation of other assets as a percentage of revenue decreased from
5.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 5.1% for the
corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly due to the closure of
certain underperforming restaurants and disposal of underlying assets
with lower revenue contribution in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B2 E &R DA ()

Property rentals and other related expenses

Property rentals and other related expenses decreased by 41.8% from
RMB32.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB18.8
million for the corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the COVID-19-related rent concessions received and the
decrease in property management fees as a result of the closure of some
restaurants during the reporting period. Property rentals and other related
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased from 4.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to 3.5% for the corresponding period of 2022.

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased by 42.5% from RMB95.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB55.1 million for the corresponding
period of 2022, which was attributable to the restricted operating
activities as affected by the Pandemic control measures and mainly
reflected (i) the decrease in daily maintenance expenses of RMB7.6
million; and (i) the decrease in advertising costs of RMB7.3 million. In
addition, there was also a decrease in impairment of property, plant and
equipment of RMB13.2 million as a result of the closure of certain
underperforming restaurants (for which an impairment loss was
recognised in 2021) during the reporting period. Other expenses as a
percentage of revenue decreased from 12.7% for the year ended 31
December 2021 to 10.3% for the corresponding period of 2022.

Finance expenses — net

Finance expenses — net (which includes finance income, finance
expenses and interest on convertible bonds) increased by 8.1% from
RMB48.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB51.9
million for the corresponding period of 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in interest on convertible bonds and partially
offset by the decrease in interest on lease liabilities as a result of the
closure of some restaurants during the reporting period.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit amounted to RMB13.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, as compared to RMB15.5 million for the corresponding
period of 2022, which was mainly attributable to the increase in losses
that can be carried forward in future years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately RMB156.2 million, as compared to loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB639.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease in loss was mainly
attributable to the impairment loss on goodwill and other intangible
assets recognised by the Group in 2021, whereas there was no such
loss in 2022.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Adjusted loss for the year

The adjusted loss for the year is an additional financial measure, which is
not required by, or presented in accordance with the HKFRS. It is
calculated as the loss for the year excluding interest on convertible
bonds, gain or loss on fair value change on derivative financial instrument
and impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets. The table below
sets forth the reconciliation of loss for the year to adjusted loss for the
year:

B W R D ()

ARBEEHRAEAREFEREE

AEBEHBBSARAERFTEABGEFRNES
BHOARBI62HE L BIE2021F12A4
BB FEESAQNTERZ A AEMGE
BAARKGE306HE T £ ZEMHK20214F
AEBEYHBEMNEMBREEERERRER
82022 F ML IBEIE o

FAREEANBTE

FREFBEE
FARAEBERL T AU HRE LR
PR E DI R ST B #5 5t & - IR MBR 7]
BEEFANE TESRIACABESR
RS ABEALBEREMELEER
BEERNFABRFE - TREINFABRE
HERLHEBERZEEK:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

FRAEE
A 2 BB 55 ) B

Loss for the year
Interest on convertible bonds
Loss on fair value change on
derivative financial instrument
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

% B 418

TEEMIARAREE

mEREMENEERE -

FRKEABEE

Adjusted loss for the year

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE TFARKE
(166,708) (651,837)
39,971 32,765
23,754 47,375
566,455
(102,983) (6,242

The Group uses such unaudited adjusted loss as an additional financial
measure to supplement the consolidated financial statements which are
presented in accordance with HKFRS and to evaluate the financial
performance of the Group by excluding the impact of certain non-
operating, unusual and/or non-recurring items which the Group does not
consider to be indicative of the operating performance of the Group.

AEBRZARECEAEBREREIN
METE AR RBEEMB RS ER
2INEAMBRER NERFELAEER
MBERABMEASERSBARE XD
KBEEBENE THLE BHREUELE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B2 E &R DA ()

Such unaudited non-GAAP financial measure has limitation as an
analytical tool, and should be considered in addition to, not as a
substitute for, analysis of the Company’s financial performance prepared
in accordance with HKFRS. This non-GAAP financial measure may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies. The
Group’s presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure should not be
construed as an inference that the Group’s future results will be
unaffected by these items.

Right-of-use assets

Under HKFRS 16 Lease (“HKFRS 16”), the Group recognised right-of-
use assets with respect to its property leases. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the leasing term or the useful life of the underlying
asset, whichever the shorter. As of 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets with an amount of RMB188.4 million (as
of 31 December 2021: RMB274.0 million).

Inventories

Inventories mainly represented the food ingredients used in restaurant
operation. Inventories decreased from RBMB35.2 milion as of 31
December 2021 to RMB24.2 million as of 31 December 2022. For the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, the turnover days of
inventories, which equals to the average inventory at the beginning of the
year and that at the end of the year divided by the costs of raw materials
and consumables during the same year and multiplied by 365 days,
increased from 43 days to 52 days, which was mainly due to the impact
of the Pandemic on restaurant operations, and thereby slowed down the
inventory turnover speed.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative financial instrument was RMB22.5 million as of 31 December
2021, such derivative financial instrument had been derecognised as of
31 December 2022 as a result of the expiry of the put option on 28 May
2022 in relation to issuance of convertible bonds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables decreased by 9.9% from RMB100.2 million
as of 31 December 2021 to RMB90.3 million as of 31 December 2022,
among which, other receivables decreased by 9.1% from RMB84.7
million as of 31 December 2021 to RMB77.0 million as of 31 December
2022, which was mainly attributable to lease deposits recovered from the
termination of leases for some stores.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables decreased from RMB178.8 million as of 31
December 2021 to RMB168.0 million as of 31 December 2022, among
which, trade payables decreased from RMB59.2 million as of 31
December 2021 to RMB53.9 million as of 31 December 2022, and the
turnover days of trade payables increased from 82 days for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to 99 days for the corresponding period of
2022, which was attributable to the decrease in the cost of materials
consumed as a result of the decline in sales during the reporting period.

Borrowings

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had short-term borrowings of
RMB14.8 million (as of 31 December 2021: RMB15.0 million), among
which borrowings of RMB3.8 million (as of 31 December 2021: RMB5.0
million) were secured by fixed assets of the Group.

Convertible bonds

As of 31 December 2022, convertible bonds and related interests totalled
RMB548.4 million, representing an increase of RMB46.3 million as
compared to RMB502.1 milion as of 31 December 2021. On 19
December 2022, the maturity date of the convertible bonds was
extended from 23 November 2023 to 23 November 2025 in accordance
with the notice from the bondholder. The increase in convertible bonds
as of 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the increase of
interest incurred and the effect of change in exchange rate during the
year ended 31 December 2022, which was partially offset by the
decrease in carrying amount of convertible bonds as a result of the
extention of the maturity date. Please refer to Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report for further details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B2 E &R DA ()

Lease liabilities

As of 31 December 2022, the total lease liabilities amounted to
RMB218.2 million, representing a decrease of 23.2% as compared to
RMB284.1 million as of 31 December 2021. Such decrease in lease
liabilities was mainly attributable to the rent payment for existing lease
and the closure of certain restaurants during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Future Prospects

In late December 2022, there were major adjustments to the Pandemic
containment measures. The Group also unveiled a clearer picture of the
resilience and potential for long-term growth of the food and beverage
industry during the Pandemic outbreak, and will continue to develop its
capabilities in the following aspects in a bid to improve its results
performance and create value for its Shareholders:

(i) Develop and better serve the franchisors;

(i)  Enhance its digital development and operation capabilities; and

@iy  Facilitate the increase in values of brands and enterprises invested
by the Group, push ahead with the development of the investment

businesses carefully and retreat at appropriate times, so as to
contribute profits to the Company.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was RMB210.6
million (31 December 2021: RMB355.4 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group had current assets of RMB226.5 million (31 December
2021: RMB290.9 million) and current liabilities of RMB339.6 million (31
December 2021: RMB418.9 million). The current ratio was 0.67 as at 31
December 2022 as compared to 0.69 as at 31 December 2021.

The Group generally finances its operations and possible redemption with
internally generated cash flow, bank borrowings and convertible bonds.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
RMB14.8 milion (31 December 2021: RMB15.0 million). As at 31
December 2022, the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
RMB34.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB62.6 million). The Group’s net
cash-to-equity ratio (being cash and cash equivalents net of total
borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.09 as at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: 0.13).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding convertible bonds
of RMB548.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB502.1 million). Please
refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report for further details.

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available financing facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. Considering the
Group’s ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities, the Directors believe that adequate funding is available to fulfil
the Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure requirements for the
next 12-month period commencing from 31 December 2022. Based on
the above, considering the Company’s ability to generate net cash
inflows from its future operating activities, the assets held by the
Company and the extension of the maturity date of the convertible
bonds, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company expects
that it will be able to meet its redemption obligations under the
outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B2 E &R DA ()

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
convertible bonds, lease liabilities and borrowings, and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial results in
respect of property, plant and equipment (31 December 2021 nil).

Significant Investments

During the year, the Company did not hold any significant investment
with a value of 5% or more of the Company’s total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

The Group currently has no definite plans for material investments and
capital assets as at the date of this report.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, save for the Group’s buildings with net book
value of RMB22.2 million (831 December 2021: RMB22.7 million) which
were pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings, there was no other
charge over the assets of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: nil).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 72% (31
December 2021: 56%). This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings” and convertible bonds as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus
net debt.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars, RMB
and US dollars which are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to
transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and
US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group did not
enter into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a workforce of about 2,162
people (2021: about 2,793 people). The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees, and provides them with proper training
and competitive compensation and incentives. The staff are remunerated
based on their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
market situation.

Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses based on
individual merits. In addition, the Company had adopted a share award
scheme on 11 November 2019 to provide incentives to the employees of
the Group and to recognise their contributions to the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERKE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximizing Shareholders’ interests. The Company has
applied the principles and adopted the code provisions set out in Part 2
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as amended
from time to time. The Board is committed to complying with the code
provisions as stated in the CG Code to the extent that the Directors
consider applicable and practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code that was in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All the Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2022. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jing Shen
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises three executive Directors
(one of whom is the chairman of the Board) and three independent non-
executive Directors. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board. In addition, all the
independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate business,
professional accounting qualifications or legal expertise.

As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, there
were no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship) between members of the Board.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company has distinguished the roles of the chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company in accordance with code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company are Mr. Zhao John Huan and Mr. Wang
Xiaolong respectively.

Independent Views and Input to the Board

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. The Board shall at all times comprise
at least three independent non-executive Directors that represent at least
one-third of the Board, such that there is always a strong element of
independence on the Board which can exercise independent judgement.

The Nomination Committee is authorised to assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are required to provide an annual confirmation of their
independence to the Company and to notify the Company as soon as
possible of any subsequent change of circumstances that may affect
their independence.
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All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are
given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express their
views to the Board and have separate and independent access to the
management of the Group in order to make informed decisions. The
chairman of the Board should hold at least one meeting every year, with
the independent non-executive Directors and without the presence of
other Directors, to discuss significant matters and any concerns.

Where a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than by written
resolutions. Such Director will be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant board resolution. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose close associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms on an annual basis. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Board reviewed and considered that such mechanisms in
place were effective to ensure that independent views and input are
provided to the Board.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting, as the case may be, of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all the Directors.
Notice of at least 14 days will be given to the Directors for all regular
board meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in
the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in
respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all the Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days before the meeting. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all the
Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the
Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, six full board meetings and
one general meeting were held and the attendance of each Director is set
out below:

EXEehNEFZEQ R LANEEE
BIEEZHNERET MAEEFHEAERE
Bl 5 58 XX R AR E B K@ b i 7 4 1
RWER FEFSANRRFHEAED
BIRE A HH

REE2022F12831HIEFEFEAN BB H
ARrEEseea N AREARE &

EZHFEBRFINNT

Number of Annual

board meetings general meeting

attendance held on 2 June 2022

LEESS M2022F6 8 2H

Name of Director EEHS BRI HTzZBRREFKE
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HEBLEE (EE) 6/6 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/hEXRLE 6/6 1/1
Mr. Jing Shen =ELE 6/6 1/1
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REESLE 6/6 1/1
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR # % A& 6/6 1/1
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren BuECEAE 6/6 1/1

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are
also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors at the Company’s expenses.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at board meetings or
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with code provision C.1.4 of
the CG Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to the Company. The types of training
received are summarized below:
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ZSFRMESCECA41 0 B E 2022912 A 31
AIEFE 2BEEHALEERLERN
BENBLEEZHBESERR YER
RAGRERSESSEINLE- T
ZEIEA T

Reading Attending external

regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

MEEERTE SN AR

Name of Director EENS EHER Mg EE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HLBEEE (FE) v v

Mr. Wang Xiaolong FhEERE v v

Mr. Jing Shen REXE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIYKHITES

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 55 & v v

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei ZEELE v v

Mr. Lo Wei-Ren g v v

Audit Committee

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in 2011 and its current members include three independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in the
fields of accounting and business . The composition and members of the
Audit Committee satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in March
2012 and amended with effect from January 2019, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to perform its duty, including to
review the Group’s financial reporting and other information to
Shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk management and the
effectiveness and objectiveness of the audit process. The Audit
Committee also provides an important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of its terms of
reference and keeps under review the independence and objectivity of
the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held.
The following matters were discussed and considered during the two
Audit Committee meetings:

(@  reviewed the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2022, discussed audit planning for the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022;

(b) discussed with the external auditor of the Company on the
independent auditor’s report;

(c) reviewed the Company’s internal control system and risk
management system and discussed with the management on the

effectiveness of these systems; and

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

ERZEeTHHSUBETHERBE B8
R ASEZMBERRBTHRRZEAM
BR - AEEERG  EREERERBRE
ZEREREBE -BERZEQUR/RESF
ENARBRBMIEZEZR/R £H
BESBEARERIZBM2BIERE
Bt

EREE S0 EEEE R AEEFER
G EARES  XEREBEE - NE
B R E RS EIEE T -

ExgREZTEeNBE R BEX
RRIEZBMTELEER DK -

REBFERN XBABMAEKEERE
HeRBOINMAERERS SR O
HREETIIEE

@ EHMARQGEZE2021F12H31H 1k
FEMFREARDEH E2022F6 A
HIEABAMFEHRE  TmwaEE
2022F 12 A1 H I FE 2 FRFETET

g

(b) R E)SNEE A EAT 5 A B S AR A
W&

) BHARINMABEZRKLERE
BERAVTHEREBENBZSERNE
B R

CEE Y ESLEEEE LS TS
p o

ERERNKEOHFERAHINET

Number of attendance
Name of Director BEEHS HE R
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHSLE 2/2
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei MR 4 7 & 2/2
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren MR 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company’s remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2011 and its current members include
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s overall
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director or any
of his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted in March 2012 and
amended in December 2022 to conform with the relevant code provisions
of the CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Company has in place a policy on Directors’ remuneration to ensure
that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and development.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

In determining the emolument payable to the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration. The remuneration of the
Directors is reviewed at least annually.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2022 to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management, and
approve the remuneration of the independent non-executive directors.
The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Remuneration of Senior Management SR EEE N E M
The remuneration payable to the senior management of the Company, [Ef FAAFASREEERERABETE
including those members of senior management who are also Directors HEH S A TEEKRENTHIZZE RN TF

is shown in the following table by band: 5w -

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2022 2021
(members of senior (members of senior
(HKD) management of the Company) management of the Company)
(% 7T) (RRBAESREEERE) (KRRIEHMEREKE)
1-1,000,000 1
>1,000,000 3

Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, each of Mr. Zhao John Huan, Mr. So Wai Yin and Mk © 2021 FEFN2022F 12 A31H » S E L4 - 8 E
Mr. Li Jian was not entitled to any emoluments. BEAERTREEHLIZEFTAME -

Auditors’ Remuneration % B4 B 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees payable to the &, E2022F12A31HIFEE AL H
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services  JE R ==t L IEE =t IR 7 @) A A &) M F2

provided to the Group are set out below: ZEENEMNBEREY T
RMB’000
FAR%
Audit services Fit R 1,990
Non-audit services (ESG Report Supporting) JEE IR 75 (ESG I & 37 3 IRFE) 163
2,153
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Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established according to the Listing Rules, and its terms of reference
were established in writing. The Nomination Committee’s current
members include one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman of the Nomination Committeg)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board structure, size and composition, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 and revised in August 2013, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

(c) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;
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(e) the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@  any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedure

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). Diversity of the Board will be considered from a number of
perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will be reported formally to the Board for decision.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2022 and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, recommend to set measurable targets to achieve board
diversity, made recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance
Name of Director EEHSR HE R
Mr. Zhao John Huan BSEULE 1/1
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERELE 11
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5% &= 11

Board Diversity

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board continued to
monitor its composition with regard to the Board Diversity Policy which
requires that appointment of Directors should be made based on merit
and candidates should be considered against objective criteria, including
diversity aspects such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background and professional experience. In order to maintain an
appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience and background
on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed measurable
objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress towards
achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The current Board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each Director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Directors believe diversity is important to enhance the Board’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Directors will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate
with regard to the specific needs of the Company and the market from
time to time.
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Gender Diversity

The Board is in progress of identifying female candidate(s) who
possesses suitable skills, qualifications and experience to join the Board
in order to enhance gender diversity at the Board level. The Board targets
to appoint at least one Director of a different gender no later than 31
December 2024, and will continue to seek opportunities to increase
female representation on the Board. The Company will ensure that
gender diversity is taken into account when recruiting staff members of
mid to senior levels and ensure that sufficient resources are available for
providing appropriate trainings and career development to develop a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board and maintain gender
diversity.

The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. To achieve
diversity at workforce level, the Group has put in place appropriate
recruitment and selection practices such that a diverse range of
candidates are considered. The Group has also established talent
management and training programs to provide career development
guidance and promotion opportunities to develop a broad and diverse
pool of skilled and experienced employees. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board was not aware of any mitigating factors or
circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across the
workforce (including senior management) more challenging or less
relevant. For details of gender ratio in the workforce (including senior
management), please refer to the section headed “Employee
Development” in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
contained in this report.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
executive management the implementation of the system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.

The Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.
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ERERRE (H)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports
from the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions of the
Group. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal controls maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, provided
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for all
reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism to
handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.

Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Mr. So confirmed that he had undertook no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training and relevant updates during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

EFel s RERZESRASEHE
2022F 12 AGIAIEFECREREE RN
B EG s EMEETFERS - EHE
BKERRFTAFSEEGEAZRARKRE
BRAFEZERGE s BRNE - EE2EH
(ZLPEF-—RKRIAEEETEEBLAN
SENVE 2ERGHEES  ARES -
% 5 N RE Al A SR ES R K R B B R B BE MY 3R
Lo EEEeRE TEABEMNEREFENE
MT o REBRE E2022F12 8318 15
EREENRBREERANBPELZFIRME
TEENRE AIBREEAWNERYH
HHMkEL PREEENRE BEIFR
BHRET  FBEMNTEE - ETEED
EEER O URHFEZSEERRSE -
EFemARAREERNANIBET ZFAK
WoBREABARER BENBIEER
KERRE TIEHIRE  WES: AT
MO BESRBETAERHNEE EF
GWEBRETMNERBEIELS WRAEER
HBERTD °

AEEEHEARARHEEBER  WEHREE
EENEEZZETHAERABERN
BUR - RERSHEERFIEANEL - K
SERIL T BB EIIARRIE N R
o 2E ABMEEMERSTEAABDE
H EAABELERBEIBERHERER
ZZE&-

DNEME

HESLALCEARANZTTAERAW
Zo AL EER HRE 22022F 12 A 31
BIEEEESTLOM5/N R IEREE EE
A AR T o



Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The Directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Shares”). All Shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the
dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in
Company’s articles of association.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Company may from time to time declare
dividends in any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but
no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of, among
others,(i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s capital
requirements and debt level; (i) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (vi) any
contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the general
economic conditions and other factors that may have an impact on the
performance and position of the Group. The Board will review the
dividend policy from time to time and may exercise at its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy
at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition of
one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the Company or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Suite 11, 70/F, Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance
Street Central, Hong Kong (For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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Investor Relations and Communication

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy. The
Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to the Shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to the Shareholders,
additional information is also available to the Shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The Company’s general meeting provides a useful platform for the
Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general meetings
for which adequate notice will be given in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. The chairman of the Board, respective
chairman each Board committee, or, in their absence, other members of
the respective Board committees, Directors and external auditors will be
available at the general meetings to answer questions on the Company’s
businesses at such meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors. In addition, the procedures of voting by poll are
included in the annual general meeting circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has maintained
sufficient contact details for Shareholders to put forward enquiries to the
Board. In addition, the Company held an annual general meeting on 2
June 2022 at which Shareholders were able to communicate their views
with the chairman of the Board. Corporate communications were
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a
timely manner. Based on the above, the Board considers the Company’s
shareholders communication policy to be effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022.

On 30 March 2023, the Board proposed to amend the existing
memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company
(“Existing Memorandum and Articles”) by way of adoption of the
amended and restated memorandum of association and articles of
association (“Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles”) in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the Existing Memorandum and
Articles. The adoption of the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles to incorporate the proposed amendments is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders by way of a special resolution to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
After the proposed amendments come into effect, the full text of the
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com) and the
Company (www.bestfoodholding.com).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBEN

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 60, an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company, has joined the Group since 9 August 2016. Mr. Zhao is
currently the chairman of Hony Capital. Mr. Zhao also serves as a non-
executive director of Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE:3396), a non-
executive director of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 992), a non-executive
director of China Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300), the chairman and
executive director of Goldstream Investment Limited (HKSE: 1328) and a
non-executive director of Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. (HKSE: 1157; SZSE: 000157).

Mr. Zhao was also a non-executive director of Shanghai Jin Jiang
International Hotels Development Co., Ltd (SSE: 600754) from
September 2015 to May 2022, a non-executive director of Eros STX
Global Corporation (NYSE: ESGC) from July 2020 to April 2022, a non-
executive director of ENN Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (SSE: 600803) from Dec
2017 to July 2022 and a non-executive director of Simcere
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (HKSE: 2096) from August 2006 to
August 2022.

Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of Management
at Northwestern University, Master's degrees in Electronic Engineering
and Physics from Northern lllinois University, and a Bachelor’s degree in
Physics from Nanjing University.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EXREREEZBEHN (H)

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 47, an executive Director, has joined the
Group since 9 August 2016, and has served as the chief executive officer
of the Company since 26 August 2019. Mr. Wang also served as the
chairman of Xinladao since 8 May 2019, and the chairman of Beijing
HHG Restaurant Management Co.,Ltd* (L RAES QB EEBRAF)
(*HHG”) since 25 April 2021. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director
of Hony Capital, and joined Hony Capital in 2003 and has been
consistently focusing on investment in the consumer and retail sector
during the past 19 years, with a particular emphasis on subsectors of
retail, fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG), catering and fast food
franchise. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Wang served in Lenovo
Group Limited. Mr. Wang holds a master of business administration
degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management
in collaboration with Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a
Bachelor of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
Youth Talented Program.

Mr. JING Shen, aged 43, an executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, has joined the Group since November 2016. Mr. Jing
has over 10 years of experience in the consumer and retail business. He
is responsible for managing the company’s finances, including financial
planning, management of financial risks, record-keeping, and reporting.
Mr. Jing has also served as an executive director of HHG since 7
November 2017, executive director of Xinladao since 30 October 2018,
executive director of Tianjin Hanfangweiye Food Limited* (K/Z&EF{E%
B AR A7) since 30 June 2017, and the general manager of Hongfu
Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd* (@ E BB (RINER A
7l) since 10 April 2017, each being a subsidiary of the Group. From April
2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing held the position of chief executive
officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr.
Jing joined Hony Capital and was eventually promoted to vice president.
Mr. Jing obtained a Master’'s degree in business administration from
China Europe International Business School in February 2008 and a
bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 2002.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 61, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 January 2017. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and retail
industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s
Restaurants (HK) Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from
1988 and used to play managerial roles in various departments for more
than 20 years. Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other
multinationals including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior
Vice President of business development and as country manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently works
in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as general manager for
their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant business. Mr. Leung
holds a master of management degree from Macquarie University and a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 18 May 2011. Mr. Heng is a
partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a
master of science degree of the Imperial College of Science, Technology
and Medicine, the University of London. Mr. Heng is a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng serves as an
independent non-executive director in Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1005), Veson Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1399) , Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746) and TradeGo FinTech
Limited (Stock Code: 8017). Mr. Heng also serves as the company
secretary and authorized representative of China Life Insurance Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2628).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EXREREEZBEHN (H)

Mr. LO Wei-Ren (also known as Mr. Lo Lobo), aged 63, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 27 April 2021.
Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in the international restaurant
chain business. Mr. Lo served as Senior Advisor in Unitas Capital from
May 2014 to January 2016, and was appointed as Chairman of Babela
Group from June 2014 to February 2016. From October 2012 to
September 2014, Mr. Lo served as Chief Strategic Advisor for the Beijing
Xinladao restaurant group who is mainly responsible for brand re-
positioning, organization functionality restructuring and brand strategic
development. From May 2008 to January 2009, Mr. Lo served as the
Executive Board Director for China Grand Automotive Services Group
Co., Ltd., a portfolio company of Texas Pacific Group. Mr. Lo served as
Brand General Manger for Pizza Hut & Pizza Delivery Home Service
brands from May 1997 to May 2008 and was promoted to the Vice
President and Brand General Manager for Yum China Inc. from
November 2003 to May 2008, with a total of 11 years’ tenure in Yum
China from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Lo obtained an Associate degree in Hotel
& Restaurant management from Katherine Gibbs Business School in
New York in July 1993 and attended the Executive Management program
from Wharton Business School in November 2007.

Senior Management

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 48, company secretary of the Company, has over
20-year experience in financial reporting, management accounting,
auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate
finance and company secretarial practice of listed companies. Mr. So has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company since 9
August 2016. Prior to joining Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So
worked as the qualified accountant and company secretary at Golden
Resorts Group Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited,
HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall financial control and
reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory
compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte
where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several initial public offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is
a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 41, the vice chairman of the board and chief
Manager of HHG, joined the Group in 25 October 2016. Mr. Zhao joined
HHG in 2007, and started at the bottom. He has been working in
marketing, operation, R&D department successively, and accumulated
Plentiful experience of marketing, operation management, product design
and development, informationization construction, establishing new
model etc. Mr. Zhao has been appointed as the chief manager since
October 2015 and the vice chairman of the board since 25 April 2021 of
HHG. He has been rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best
Emerging Enterpriser of Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering
Entrepreneur of Beijing” and “Outstanding Party Member in Community
Field of Beijing”. He is also a member of the 14th session of Central
Peoples’ Political Consultative Conference of Xicheng District, Beijing.

Mr. Li Jian, aged 48, is the co-founder and the vice chairman of the
board of Xinladao, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Li
is primarily responsible for the strategic developments and monitoring
budgets of Xinladao, and is involved in major decisions of Xinladao,
including the appointment of executives of Xinladao. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the chairman of Xinladao, being responsible for overall
development of Xinladao since its establishment, and was involved in the
business operation of the Xinladao until 2015. Mr. Li has over 18 years in
the food and beverage industry as well as catering industry and
restaurant operation business. Prior to establishing Xinladao, Mr. Li
established his own restaurant business under the name Beijing Yuanpin
Catering Co., Ltd in 2000 to provide catering services. Mr. Li has
successively won the titles of, among others, “Outstanding Figure of
Chinese Catering Industry for 30 years” in May 2017 awarded by China
Cuisine Association, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Chinese Catering
Industry” in November 2016 awarded by China Hospitality Association
and “The Most Influential Entrepreneur of Chinese Hotpot Industry” in
2015 awarded by China Cuisine Association. Mr. Li has been the
president of China Crayfish Association since April 2018. Mr. Li
completed a secretarial program at Linyi Teacher Training College (currently
known as Linyi University) in July 1995.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EXREREEZBEHN (H)

Mr. Zhou Penghui, aged 47, is the chief Executive officer of Xinladao,
and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Zhou is responsible
for overseeing the overall management and the day-to-day operation of
Xinladao. Prior to being appointed as chief executive officer of Xinladao in
January 2017, Mr. Zhou joined Xinladao in December 2011 as an
optimization specialist, mainly responsible for formulating internal system
and providing training to the employees of Xinladao. Mr. Zhou was then
promoted as an operation manager in October 2012 managing the
operations of restaurants of Xinladao, and in March 2014, he was
promoted as the northern China market manager, and in June 2014, Mr.
Zhou managed the overall operation of the restaurants of Xinladao in
China. Mr. Zhou has over 7 years of experience in restaurant operations,
supply chain management and food quality control. Mr. Zhou graduated
with a diploma in physical and chemical testing and separation
technology from North China University of Technology in July 1996.

Members of the senior management of the Company also include the
executive Directors. Biographical details of Mr. Zhao John Huan, Mr.
Wang Xiaolong and Mr. Jing Shen are set out under “Executive Directors”
in this section.

As at the date of this annual report, there is no relationship between
members of the Board and the senior management.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHS

The Directors hereby present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages

7475 of this annual report.

The Board resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022.

As at the date of this annual report, there was no arrangement under
which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has

not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExgaHs (8

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 1,578,664,000 Shares in
issue.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on page 79 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Debentures

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to Shareholders (2021 nil).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 210 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive Directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s articles of
Association.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives

At 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Number of Shares Approximate
(including issued percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of Number of Shares and interest in the
chief executive Capacity issued Shares underlying Shares underlying Shares) Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
R EAE NN
EE BHRTHAER ERTRAG HERD (BESRTRG Bangid
®E 54 A #A KHEBRG) BOL
(FiFsET) (FiE2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,622,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
HLEEE REEE R (FHEE3)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Beneficial owner — 43,418,260 (L) 43,418,260 (L) 2.75%
(Note 4)
TEERE EHHEEA (P 5E4)
Mr. Jing Shen Beneficial owner — 15,786,640 (L) 15,786,640 (L) 1.00%
(Note 5)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExgaHs (8

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited. Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in tumn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2022, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.

These underlying shares represent the 27,626,620 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 15,786,640 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Wang
Xiaolong pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by the Board on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

These underlying shares represent the 7,893,320 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 7,893,320 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Jing
Shen pursuant to the share award scheme by the Board adopted on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Save

as disclosed below and note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December
2022, neither the Company, its holding company nor any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body

corporate.
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(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

On 18 May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Employee Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to participate.
Details of the Employee Share Option Scheme are set out in note
34 1o the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No
Options were granted under the Employee Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2022. As at the date of this
report, the Employee Share Option Scheme has expired and no
further option may be granted pursuant thereto.

On 11 November 2019, share options carrying the rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 31,573,280 new Shares (the “Options”)
were offered to be granted to three grantees (collectively, the
“Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”) under the Employee Share
Option Scheme with an exercise price of HK$1.08 per Share which
shall be vested in the following vesting schedule: (i) 20% shall be
vested on 31 December 2019; (i) 20% shall be vested on 31
December 2020; (i) 20% shall be vested on 31 December 2021; (iv)
20% shall be vested on 31 December 2022; and (v) the remaining
20% shall be vested on 31 December 2023. The Options shall be
valid from the date of offer (i.e. 11 November 2019) up to 30
December 2028, both dates inclusive.

Details of the Options granted under the Employee Share Option
Scheme are set out below:
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Changes during the year ended

31 December 2022

F202F12B31ALFEZET

Outstanding Outstanding

Options as at Options as at

Name of Grantee Date of grant 1 January 2022 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December 2022

HZE2022% HE2020%

1A18 12A31H
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TEAER bRl BRE 217 2E#H  BAX BRE

Directors EZE

Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/hgE%4E 11 November2019 15,786,640 - - - 15,786,640
2019F11 A11R

Mr. Jing Shen REEE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - 7,893,320
2019F11 A11R

23,679,960 - - - 23,679,960

BRERBRAA

—E-CFEH



50)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExgaHs (8

(b) Share Award Scheme

On 11 November 2019, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”), to attract
new and motivate existing talents and retaining both. The Board
shall not make any further award under the Share Award Scheme
which will result in the total number of Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 4% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. As at the date of
this annual report, such 4% limit represents 63,146,560 Shares.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Board may select
the employee to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Employee(s)”) and determine the number of shares to be awarded (the
“Awarded Shares”) to the respective Selected Employee(s), the
applicable vesting date and make an award out of the pool of
issued Shares held by a professional trustee (the “Trustee”) to be
appointed to administer the Scheme to any Selected Employee.
The Awarded Shares will only comprise existing Shares which are
purchased from the open market by the Trustee out of cash
contributed by the Company. The Awarded Shares do not
comprise any issuance and allotment of new Shares.

In respect of a Selected Employee’s employment or service with
the Company or any member of the Group is terminated for cause
or due to resignation at any time prior to or on the vesting date, all
the Awarded Shares that have not yet been vested of the relevant
Selected Employee shall become returned shares for the purposes
of the Share Award Scheme.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the 5th anniversary
date of the adoption date of the Scheme (i.e. 11 November 2024);
and (i) such date of early termination as determined by the Board
provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights
of any selected grantee under the Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2019 and
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate
of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing approximately 2.75%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2022) to three Selected Employees (the “Awardees”), pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme Rules set out below:
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Directors B

Mr. Wang Xiaolong  F/]\g2264 11 November 2019 27,626,620 — — — 27,626,620
201911 A11H

Mr. Jing Shen RELE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - — 7,893,320
201911 A11H

35,519,940 - — - 35,519,940

The amount of contribution by the Awardees for the Awarded
Shares shall be HK$0.54 per Awarded Share, being 50% of the
average closing price per Share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20
business days immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded
Shares.

Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been fulfilled,
the Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the respective
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019, 2020,
2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. As at the date of this report, no
Awarded Shares have been vested. As at the date of this report,
the remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 1
year and 7 months.

The number of awards available for grant under the Scheme limit
as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 was 19,733,300 and
19,733,300, respectively.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

As at 31 December 2022, as far as the Directors were aware, persons (other
than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

R2022F12A31H  HBESHMA LT A
T(RARREELASRITEHABERIN AR
ARAZROXEERODP  BEELHR
RIEFHREEENFEI6HEBERARRT
EvERMcEmRABIT

Long positions in the Shares RO Z2HE
Number of
Shares
(including Approximate

issued Shares

percentage of

Number of and underlying interest in the
Number of underlying Shares) Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares (Note 1) (Note 2)
ROHE R |
(BFEERTR®D EEHEH
B#1T HERD RHEBRG) Bk
BRERER 5% RBHE %A (P 5E1) (Fif7E2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited S EE R (IFE3)
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,622,440 ()  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Managing Partners Limited SEEERE R (M)
Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Group Management Limited RimEE s (M 3E3)
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hong Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited & #2% E 25 (i 51 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. SPEEERE R (M)
Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. XA E R (M53)
Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 ()  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%

Fortune Eight Alps Limited
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E=gHE (&)
Number of
Shares
(including Approximate

issued Shares

percentage of

Number of and underlying interest in the
Number of underlying Shares) Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares (Note 1) (Note 2)
ROHE SRV
(BFEERTRD EEHEH
BT HERD RHEBRG) Bk
BRERER 5% RO #A #A (Pt &E1) (P5E2)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (1) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)

REFERADA XEEE S (HFE3)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 95,830,000 (L) - 95,830,000 (L) 6.07%

(“Easyknit International”)

KEBRBEEEERAF

Notes:

1.
2.

corporation (Note 4)

A (R EER D Rk E g (i)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIII GP (Cayman) Limited, Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2022, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.

To the knowledge of the Company based on public information available, as at 30
September 2022, Easyknit International (the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1218)) was indirectly interested in an
aggregate of 95,830,000 Shares.

Mg -

FRILIEZALRZEROTHOEFER -

B IER2022612 431 B %
AT E -

= 5 PR A & AFortune Eight Alps Limited 2 3F &
& Mt B & 7] i Fortune Eight Alps Limited 4 Hony
Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. ( — Z £ Hony Capital
Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), LP. (AM —Z B A Z A)E
BrEHBRRAEREREE) 22 EWE QAT - Hony
Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman), L.P. lf L Mf — E 3@ 4 &
A Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited & 3% ©
Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited
Hony Group Management Limited 2 & # £ ° Hony
Managing Partners Limited # /5 Hony Group Management
Limited 80% #& # ° Hony Managing Partners Limited i
Exponential Fortune Group Limited 2= & # A& @ # <
# 5t 4 ¥ 7 Exponential Fortune Group Limited 49%
T R2022F12A318 BT BER A A #
H A E)1,183,998,000 Kk fp - IR A& 5 A
610,676,480 T2 AT RBEH P HE EmiE s -
%A AR (8 % 0] $84% A 517,522,440 % B 15 - B R
HREABR1.18E T -

RN HERBEAREEEL B E2022F9A
308 - ﬂ<§f£l S (H R B R FTER £ (B
5% - 1218)) M52 4 4 #2 51 95,830,000 % A% 17 2 #
5o

T #91,578,664,000
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Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2022 which constitute continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) The Non-QJC Agreements

On 17 May 2022, Beijing Xinladao Trading Co., Ltd.* (Jt ;i ErERia
BB AR AT) (“Xinladao Trading”), which was wholly owned by
Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (b R#FT#HREZE R
BEEAMRAF) (“Xinladao Catering”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the following food
ingredients purchase agreements, namely:

(i) the framework agreement (“XLJ Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement”) with XLJ Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* ({5
RREmEHEdtR)BR AR (“Xinliangji”) in relation to the
supply of certain food ingredients by Xinliangji to Xinladao
Catering and its subsidiaries, including Xinladao Trading
(collectively, the “Xinladao Group”), for a term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 with an annual cap of
RMB7,000,000;

(i) the framework agreement (“YWY Condiments and
Seasonings Purchase Agreement”) with Zigong Yanweiyuan
Food Co., Ltd.* (BEE®EWREmMAMR~AA]) (“Zigong
Yanweiyuan”) in relation to the supply of certain condiments
and seasonings by Zigong Yanweiyuan to the Xinladao
Group, for a term from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
with an annual cap of RMB1,400,000; and

(i)  the framework agreement (“YDY Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement”) with Shandong Fish Road Source Biotechnology
Co., Ltd. (LRABREMEHLARAF]) (“Yudaoyuan”) in
relation to the supply of fish ingredients by Yudaoyuan to the
Xinladao Group, for a term from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 with an annual cap of RMB1,200,000.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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()

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the actual transaction
amounts under the XLJ Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement,
YWY Condiments and Seasonings Purchase Agreement and YDY
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement (collectively, the “Non-QJC
Agreements”) were RMB1,754,000, RMB526,000 and
RMB809,000, respectively, which did not exceed the annual cap
under the respective Non-QJC Agreements.

Mr. Li Jian and Mr. Xu Bochun, each being a substantial
shareholder of Xinladao Catering, is a connected person of the
Company at subsidiary level. Beijing Ligao Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.* (L ZEEEEER AR A A), being an entity ultimately
held as to 86.64% by Mr. Li Jian and 13.36% by Mr. Xu Bochun,
holds 32.4% equity interest of Xinliangji and the entire equity
interest of Zigong Yanweiyuan and Yudaoyuan. Accordingly, each
of Xinliangji, Zigong Yanweiyuan and Yudaoyuan is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level and the transactions
contemplated under the Non-QJC Agreements constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2022.

The QJC Agreements

On 17 May 2022, the Company and Quan Jin Cheng Food
Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (#E& & mINTEE ) AR A 7)) (‘Quan
Jin Cheng”) entered into () the framework agreement (the “QJC
Food Ingredients and Condiments Purchase Agreement”) in relation
to the provision of food ingredients and condiments by Quan Jin
Cheng to the Group for a term from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 with an annual cap of RMB6,200,000; and (i) the
framework agreement (the “QJC Warehousing Services
Agreement”) in relation to the provision of warehousing services by
Quan Jin Cheng to the Group for a term from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 with an annual cap of RMB2,400,000.

On the same day, Xinladao Trading and Quan Jin Cheng entered
into the framework agreement (the “QJC Ingredient Processing
Services Agreement”) in relation to the provision of ingredient
processing services by Quan Jin Cheng to Xinladao Trading for a
term of 1 April 2022 to 31 December 2022 with an annual cap of
RMB1,000,000.

()
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the actual transaction
amounts under the QJC Food Ingredients and Condiments
Purchase Agreement, QJC Warehousing Services Agreement and
QJC Ingredient Processing Services Agreement (collectively, the “QJC
Agreements”) were RMB2,615,000, RMB2,110,000 and
RMB651,000, respectively, which did not exceed the annual cap
under the respective QJC Agreements.

Quan Jin Cheng is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Hony
Capital Fund V, whose general partner is indirectly held as to 80%
by Exponential Fortune, which is in turn held as to 49% by Mr.
Zhao John Huan, being an executive Director. Accordingly, Quan
Jin Cheng is regarded as an associate of Mr. Zhao John Huan and
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated under the QJC
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2022.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

@iy in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
respective transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards adopted for preparing the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above, as at 31 December 2022, there were no other related party
transactions which fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interest in
Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position, an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business and events occurred after
the reporting period are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis respectively from pages 4 to 6 and
pages 7 to 19 of this annual report.

Details of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out
in Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 7 to 19 of this
annual report and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Company’s environmental policies and performance, the
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and an
account of the Company’s key relationship with its employees,
customers, and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends on are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 211 to 284 and pages 20 to
38 respectively of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Convertible Bonds

The HK$1,500,000,000 Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2016, 10 October 2016, 13 November 2016, 22 September
2017 and 22 March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 29
October 2016 in relation to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued
by the Company under a specific mandate pursuant to the investment
agreement dated 18 September 2016 entered into between the
Company and Sonic Tycoon Limited (the “Invester”). As at 31 December
2022, the proceeds from issuing the Convertible Bonds had been fully
utilised in accordance with the intended use.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted. The issued share capital of the Company were
1,578,664,000 Shares. The Investor holds an aggregate of 1,183,998,000
Shares, representing approximately 75.00% of the number of issued
Share as enlarged by the allotment and issue of Conversion Shares. The
Company is able to, and will ensure to, comply with the public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. On 19 December
2022, the Company sent a notice to the Investor and obtained the
consent from the Investor to extend the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds to 23 November 2025.

The 2020 Investment Agreement

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory Limited
(“United Strength”) entered into an agreement (the “2020 Investment
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and United
Strength agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$780,000,000 (the “Subscription”).
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Pursuant to the 2020 Investment Agreement, at any time during the 2
years commencing from 29 May 2020 the Company may deliver
subscription request(s) requesting United Strength to subscribe for
convertible bonds in the principal amount as specified in such
subscription request(s). As no subscription request had been delivered to
United Strength prior to the expiry date of 28 May 2022, the Company
did not exercise the put option. Please refer to note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report for further details.

The Company has been exploring appropriate business development by
acquisitions and/or expansion of existing business. The Group will keep
evaluating its financial position and resources, and may consider to raise
further funds for long-term development and strengthening financial
position of the Group as appropriate.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
schemes are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Pension Scheme

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.20(b) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business (apart from the Group’s business) which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group,
as defined in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is currently
the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited
(“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China headquarters and Japanese
restaurant business.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExgaHs (8

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature as that
carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other positions in the
Company apart from being an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Leung also does not control the Board. The Board therefore is of the
view that the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from the business carried out by
Mei-Xin.

Charitable Donations

The Group did not make any donations for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021 : RMB50,000).

Changes in Director’s and Chief Executive’s
Biographical Details under Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since the date of the 2020 annual report of the Company.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant event affecting the Group took place after 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

There was no change in the external auditor of the Company for the three
years preceding the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZBERE

pwec TSk i
To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited HNEEERERQATRE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REEHEFTMA I BRI A])
Opinion =

What we have audited EMEBITTHNAR

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company B REZERER AR (LA TEBIEAA]) &
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set EM B AR (A NEEBIEEE ) 3 EH N FE
out on pages 74 to 209, comprise: TAZE209 B MR AW EHE - B

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022; °

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year e

then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then e
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; e
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include e
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

R2022F 12 A31THM GG A EEAE
=

BEZRLFENGEEE2EKSER

BEZHLFENGAEREH K

ERALEENEARSRER:

el

Pl
I

AHMBRENE BEISRHE
REMBEER -

ES
g3

PricewaterhouseCoopers FRELC Rl K 28 B T 2 P

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BB PRARFAE T

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2289 9888 A : +852 2289 8888 » HHE : +852 2289 9888
www.pwchk.com www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life
° Impairment assessment of investments in associates

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BERAREREAFHNERRETGE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHERETHREWE21 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. (the
“HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition of Beijing New
Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the “Xinladao Group”)
in 2018. As at 31 December 2022, goodwill amounted to
RMB45 milion and trademarks with indefinite useful life
amounted to RMB468 million.
EEENRERAEERCRAFHOBEREERER
HFrZ2REN2016FHRBILRMEAERERGR QA
(MEAREE]) RR201BFWRBILRFTRELERERER
RAB(FRERE]) - R2022F12A31H » B8 R45
BETARYE MARERERFHNEERICEET
AR -

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the
relevant group of restaurants. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs are determined by the higher of the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU”).
HENMABERERFHNBRAGF REFERED
REETREN G R ERENS  HELAEER
AERFR AR R EEHEEARN R eEEEN
(IReE4+EM]) ReELSBU 2 KOS HRE
AABERLEXRA(AAEBEREERA]) EERE
B(ERABEIMEZRGEERE -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBARESEFR  HMASRTATERF:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of CGUs to which goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives are allocated, and
assessing inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;

e THREREHESEBELAGERIUEARF
HryragnReEFEEU s hatAkE BN
AEBERE TEEEEMIATHEEUENIEER
HiEBRRREERHNKF  flanEHEE 8
M B AREERRRE SIOGFR BRI - ST
BERERHEARR

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment
as to whether any indication of impairment exists
during the year ended 31 December 2022;

e HAEEREHRENAFERCHAFHNERIR
BB BT EE - BIERT R #2022 12 A31 H
HTFERAFEEMAENIR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on the higher of FVLCOD and VIU, of the CGUSs;

e I ESEEANBUMGEANER- 8
REGE UERAABERLEEXAEFRE

EMEvEeEETReELEUNAIKRE S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Due to the continuous impact on macroeconomic conditions
brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, the operating results of
the HHG Group and the Xinladao Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 were below the management’s previous
forecasts.

MR EBEBEREHRELERABFBEENZTE M
AREERNBREEBEZE2022F12A31HLEFE 2K
EHEBERNEEESXAMER -

As at 31 December 2022, management engaged an
independent external valuer to assist in performing the
impairment assessments, based on the updated forecasts
and assumptions approved by management.

202212 A31H ERED BB LINBEERM - &
RERERTH A 2 & TR R R RER - 1 BV ETTIRE AT 1 o

For calculation of FVLCOD, market approach is used, where
significant judgements are required to determine the
assumptions, including valuation multiples (such as enterprise
value to sales multiple) of comparable companies, discount for
lack of marketability (‘DLOM”), control premium and estimated
cost of disposal adopted in the valuation model.

HR AR BEREEXNEANFAEDEHKATSE AR H
EEHERABREERR  BEAELRAAZMEE
FEEWINEXEBEHHEEREE) RE=THRBIULF
E(BRZmERBEIFED  EHEREEMEERE S
RAMMETHERAR -

For calculation of VIU, significant judgements are required to
estimate the future cash flows of the CGUs of the relevant
group of restaurants and to determine the assumptions,
including the revenue growth rates, gross margin and long
term growth rate used in the cash flow projections and the
discount rate applied to bring the future cash flows back to
their present values.

HREREBEZTE FTEELERAGUGTAERE
BANRcELBEUNRKRRESRE  UETRRK
BRASRERAPEANBAEBRE M XKKH
BREX DUERERKBeREFAZHREMEAD
FrHE=K -
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Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
FHEPTRMER ENEE L

For calculation of FVLCOD of the CGUSs, evaluating
the appropriateness of the selection of comparable
companies by comparing the business profiles of the
CGUs with those of the respective comparable
companies, and assessing the reasonableness of
DLOM, control premium and estimated cost of
disposal adopted;

HRBEELEMU AR BERBEEXN RN
B BBLERBeEEEN 2 XHERMEMEE
AELRARZEBER  FHERATELR
NAIMEE M - A RFHE PR A E R = T35 7
BUNE BEHREEERAFTHEXNANEG R
1

For calculation of VIU of the CGUs, evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used by
management and the independent valuer, mainly in
relation to:
HRBEeELAEUZEREBEENAE  FEE
BELRBIGEMEANTIZRINEIENL
FEH N

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial
data;

— FERAHEMEMNX  GHEERESLRBE
BIREITH

— thelong term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

— RHERX BHEMBLSEEAETR
80 Rk

— the discount rate, by comparing the rate used
by the Group to those of comparable
companies;

— WRE - EEEXANLEHEFTER

RARIML REITLE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Management’s conclusion on the impairment assessments is
based on the comparison between the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs of the relevant group of restaurants and the
respective carrying amounts of the CGUs including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
EREHRENGOERDENE E£2022412 A31 B8
HERANReELEUNA KO eRERSELEMN
ZENFEE(RREE AAERAGCHAFHI HE
HEEERAB) ZHER-

Based on the results of the impairment assessment conducted
by the Group, it is determined that there is no impairment of
goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BiE EXEEETHRETHER BETRERAAE
RAEAFEHR s HERBE2022F 12 A3 B IEFE I &
BB °

° Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the
relevant carrying amounts, including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022; and

o  HIHFTER2022F12A31ABESEEEMMA
WEReREkEEHE EEERERFHND
BEREEEENNBBEHEANEREREEDH
FEREM R

° Evaluating management’s sensitivity calculation over
the recoverable amount of the CGUs, focusing on
those key assumptions to which the calculation was
most sensitive.

e HAEEHEEHHESELABUMNAKRETENS
BRE UREHREFEZSERHBRNBARRKR

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERTHER BMBRRRETEAERANEE
BREB B o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQFAREMETE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERAETHREWE20-

The Group has significant investments in associates, which
are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31
December 2022, investments in associates amounted to
RMB249 million.

EXBEBERINRESEERN WERAERER
HoM2022F12A31H B2 R AR ER249ABETTA
o

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.
BERRKREAEFERETREFETREG -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross margin
and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash flow
projections of the associates, and the discount rates applied
to bring the future cash flows back to their present values.
FEETRENGERS F2AELERHE AL E%5E
EEBE R ARRRERNE  WEERSK 008N #
BHERRRRERAEANRAERE - EFHERK
REERX - URAEAKRBERENAEHBREME
RHHE X -
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In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBARESFR  HMASRTATERF:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of investments in associates, and assessing
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

e THREEEYHBEQAAREZMFAIKDSHE
MA@ TRBE RS THRELNEE
NEAEAREREZKFE - Pl =8
M B EAREEIRR R S EF BRI - FE
BRERNERRR

o Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether
any indication of impairment exist during the year
ended 31 December 2022, including:

o iTh BEEERHEZE2022F12A31BIEFER
BEEERMBERROTE 85

— significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates
operates;

— BERARKEMENTSRLBERRTEE
BRTHEAL

— significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the associates below their costs;

— BMERARAABEABIRHEZENHE
DN

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the investments in
associates;

e it ESHERAMNBULAEMNER- BN
RESE NEREABEELZEEHZEAFRKRE
KA U e & 58
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment conducted
by the Group, it is determined that there is no impairment of
the Group’s investments in associates for the year ended 31
December 2022. This conclusion is based on recoverable
amounts, which are calculated based on value in use,
exceeding the respective carrying amounts as at 31 December
2022.

BE SEEETHRETIGER BE E£ENE
ERRMEEREZ2022F 12 A1 B ILFET ERE -
ZAERDBEATWE SHEET  AIROSEDRERE
B8 YHBESBER2022F12 A31 BHEEE -

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

AHEFTAMAETENEE T

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
determination of value in use of investment in
associates, mainly in relation to:
THERECECHE ARIRAGCABERS
AMEERENGEYE 2SR

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial
data;

— FERAHSEMEMNX  FHEERELMBE
HIREITH®

—  the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

— RHERE BHEMEBLSEEAETR
8] Rk

— the discount rates, by comparing the rates
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies; and

— WEX- BEEEERAMELXRENER
BRFMLFETLE &

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in
associates.
AHFFEBE AR REN T RE S EN S8 FE
T -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERNTHER  RMEREBETHAEANEE
REEBEAMK -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % EE RS (F)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEZHEWER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & FTARY FARM
Revenue A 5 537,510 752,959
Other income H U A 6 9,874 18,085
Raw material used and changes in inventories X B2 ARMEREFE
of finished goods 2y (208,106) (288,031)
Online platform service charges and BEFTERBEREXE
delivery fees (38,614) (87,098)
Employee benefit expense EE &AM 16 (172,984) (217,944)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREESEITE (84,694) (103,406)
Depreciation and amortisation of other assets ~ E fih & & 3T & K # 84 (27,602) (41,235)
Utility expenses AHEEER (19,146) (29,664)
Property rentals and other related expenses Y & & H b AR B 2 (18,836) (32,281)
Other expenses H 7 (55,118) (95,842)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance for 4 gt & Z& #) 78 Hi{5 B 18 4k
financial assets, net BEFE 3.1(b) (6,766) (6,518)
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible HENEMELEERE
assets 21 - (566,455)
Other losses, net EMEE TR 8 (2,191) (3,656)
Finance income B 5 A 9 130 144
Finance expenses MKER 9 (12,016) (15,338)
Interest on convertible bonds Al RS E & R B 9 (39,971) (32,765)
Loss on fair value change on PTESBMIEAABELZE
derivative financial instrument E5i8 22 (23,754) (47,375)
Gain on partial disposal and dilution of o s R E QA
investments in associates wE W 10 - 82,041
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FEAEE & QR (B1B), & A 20 (19,895) 1,565
Impairment losses on investments in BERNRERNRERIE
an associate 20 (2,871)
Loss before taxation BRBE AT 1B (182,179) (665,685)
Income tax credit Frig i & 11 15,471 13,848
Loss for the year FRER 12 (166,708) (651,837)
Loss for the year attributable to: FREERBEN:
Equity holders of the Company RARIERITEEA (156,242) (639,639)
Non-controlling interest IR = (10,466) (12,198)
(166,708) (651,837)
m Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
e EEkas R (E)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=2 TARM FARE

Other comprehensive loss

[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of

Hitb2EE B

HRERAEEEMN I BERHEZ
B E :
ABESIINEBMELEZ

foreign operations fEH =% (23,839) 2,143
ltem that may not be reclassified subsequently HiErIfe @ EHFHEE
to profit or loss: Bm2HEE:
Change in fair value of an equity investment BAGRBEEEHEED
at fair value through other comprehensive FEAE M2 U S
income BAREERARBEEY (3,000)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRNEMEEEE
net of tax (MErRIE) (24,658) (857)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEHEBREE (191,366) (652,694)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZEEREAERERN
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —RRRIERFEEA (180,757) (640,496)
— Non-controlling interests —JEERER (10,609) (12,198)
(191,366) (652,694)
Loss per share for loss attributable to EEREAATEEHEARZ
equity holders of the Company: BEE2ERERS:
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic FhEE(ODARE) —-EAR 13 (40.52)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted BREBEDARE) -HE 13 (40.52)
BRERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REBEERER

Note
BaE

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEKEHE 17
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 18
Investments in associates BN Rl E 20
Goodwill =S 21
Intangible assets mEEE 21
Derivative financial instrument MTEEMIA 22
Deferred tax assets RERIEA E 30
Other receivables H b JE YL FIR 23
Financial assets at fair value through EARBEFTEREZS

other comprehensive income FFAEMEERE 2 SR

BE 24

Other non-current assets HEfIERBEE 28
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19
Trade and other receivables FEWE F K H b 5kIE 23
Other current assets HimBEE 28
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFEREEZS

profit or loss FFABmZEREE 27
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeSEEY 26
Restricted cash ZMREIR 26
Total assets EERE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JENE S REMKE 29
Contract liabilities aHAE 32
Lease liabilities HEBE 18
Borrowings B 31
Tax payable FESBLIR
Convertible bonds — interest payable due AMkES - —FREBRZ

within one year JE A5 1) 2, 25

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

As at 31 December

M12B31H

2022
RMB’000
TAR®

80,140
188,381
249,104

45,495
472,806

61,368

17,727

1,843

1,116,864

24,211
72,610
27,146

66,721

34,097
1,707

226,492

1,343,356

167,980
62,979
72,216
14,820

5,213

16,366

339,574

2021
RMB’000
TAR®

99,195
274,017
240,538

45,495
474,505

22,543

45,850

24,255

2,000
951

1,229,349

35,235
75,974
58,389

57,817

62,571
961

290,947

1,620,296

178,842
63,874
95,848
15,000

5,582

59,801

418,947
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
nEEERERE)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MIsE FARM FARE
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Convertible bonds R E S 25 532,024 442 267
Lease liabilities HE&afE 18 145,946 188,270
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 30 114,021 114,021
Deferred government grants i RE IR 6 B 33 1,183 1,380
793,174 745,938
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,132,748 1,164,885
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% 7 36 133,023 133,023
Reserves & 19,777 153,971
Equity attributable to equity holders of FEBRAAREERAEAZ
the Company pr ey 152,800 286,994
Non-controlling interests IEVEPR R S 57,808 68,417
Total equity DR 210,608 355,411
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 1,343,356 1,520,296

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 209 were approved &R FE74E209E iR G W M ERKES S
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 7202343 A 30 B #L /f R & #E T 3% - W A DA

and are signed on its behalf by: TALTREEE:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
H < EIN-
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
*TE BF

BRERERERAA
—EZFER @
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEERBBR o

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
GERELAEGEREEA

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distributable revaluation ~ Translation Special - Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve deficit ~ Sub-Total  interests Total
TRk BEEMR i
BREA BRAEE [#E #E EXFE SHEE ZAER NE Ex Eh

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W TAR® TARM TARE TARE® TAE® TAER TARE TARE TARE TARE

At 1 January 2021 R202151818 133,023 693,388 929 9,248 20,295 128,232 (60,999) 924,116 76,555 1,000,671

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - — (639,639 (639,639 (12,198 (651,837)

Other comprehensive FREMZEKRS:
income for the year:

Change infairvalugofan &2 4 BEEA
equity investment at fair ~ HEE)EH AE M

value through other 2EHHEHRA
comprehensive income BREARBE
#8) - - - (3000 - - - (3000 - (3000
Currency translation EHAQEES
differences-associates - BEAR 20 - - - - (8,838) - - (8,838) - (8,838)
Gurrency translation EHBpEES
differences-others — Hiy — - - - 10,981 — — 10,981 - 10,981
Total comprehensive FREZEFRAE
loss for the year - - - (3,000) 2,143 —  (639,639) (640496)  (12,198)  (652,694)
Non-controlling interests 75 32 i & 22 &
arising on newly EEZHEER
established subsidiaries i — - - - - — - — 4,060 4,060
Value of services provided B i 2 = 2| |2 ik 17
under share option BEFTEIE TR
scheme and share RERB 2 EE
award scheme 34 - — — — — 3,374 - 3,374 - 3,374
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 133,023 693,388 929 6,248 22,438 131,606 (700,638) 286,994 68,417 355,411
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

At 1 January 2022 RW2022%51818

Loss for the year FREE

Other comprehensive R H ft1 2 [ W &
income for the year:

Change in fairvalueofan &A% EEE &8
equity investment at far ~ E & & A H
value through other 2ENEORA
comprehensive income R E AR BE

#9)

Currency translation EHBEEE
differences-associates . 1-WNG|

Currency translation EHAREES
differences-others — Hf

Total comprehensive FRZEHBAR
loss for the year

Value of services provided 8 A 12 = 2| |2 i 17
under share option BE 2T A
scheme and share RERB 2 EE
award scheme

Deemed contrioution from %R {ERA R H &
shareholder

At 31 December 2022

R20225 12318

RERZ2 X (E)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERARAEEBEA

Non- Asset

Share distributable revaluation Translation  Special Accumulated

reserve  reserve reserve  reserve deficit Sub-Total
ALK EEEM

4] ®mE ENRE BHRE RAER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR¥® TAR® TAR®

6,248 22,438 131,606 (700,638) 286,994

(156,242)  (156,242)

(676)

26,061 26,061

(49,900) (49,900)

(23,839) (156,242)  (180,757)

2,875

43,688 43,688

(1,401) 178,169  (856,880) 152,800

Non-

controlling

interests Total
FER
£ A%
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR%

68,417 355411

(10,466)  (166,708)

(143) (819)

26,061

(49,900)

(10,609)  (191,366)

2,875

43,688

57,808 210,608

BRERZERERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERITRER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022
Note RMB’000
HY 5 TARY

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes refund

Income taxes paid

RETHFEBRERE
REXBRERE
2 E

s\

PIT 15 B0 2R 3K
EfFAEH

Net cash generated from
operating activities

RETHFBRELFE

Cash flows from investing activities

Investments in associates

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from redemption of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of intangible assets

Government grants received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Consideration received in relation to partial
disposal of investment in an associate

Deposit received in relation to partial disposal of
investment in an associate

Receipts in advance in relation to capital
reduction of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Loans granted to related parties

Repayment of loans by related parties

Increase in restricted cash

Interest received on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest received on loans to related parties

REZHFEGHRERE
HEE N FIRE

BEME BELRHE
BERAAEBEMAERH
B ABSZEREE
BOZAAEEFERR
Bt ARG EREE
P S 5008

BEEBTVEE

B W # B

HEME  BFEREEHRE
IR

B EMORBEARIKRE
YR O 44 (B

L EMORBEARIKRE
Y R B 2 &
HEBENBRERRN

B UK
hERAAREEFERR
EHtALLEEmKE
TREEMGRA

7 B Bk 77 & X

BB T EEEXR

5 PR 1 3R & 18 A0
BAnEEFERH
HHFABEZEREE
P Y 1B

1r) [68 Bt 73 B BT WU B

35
20 (2,400)
(16,284)
3.3 (202,521)
3.3 194,124
(104)
10(a)(i)
10(a)(ii)
29(b)()
3.3 1,181

(6,992)

(746)

1,199

Net cash used in investing activities

REEZHFARE S FH

(31,855)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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2021
RMB’000
TAR®

66,109
(968)
144

(2,050)

63,235

(18,615)
(32,967)

(191,180)
161,362
(1,318)
1,159
514
30,000

20,000

19,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERTRER(E)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022
Note RMB’000
HY 5 TARY

Cash flows from financing activities MEITEHMEESRE
Capital injection from non-controlling interests  JE4E IRAE KT &
Repayment of borrowings BEER

Proceeds from borrowings & RFT 18 3RI8

Proceeds from loans provided by a related party B8t 7712 4 & 2 Fr 15 KA
Repayment of loans to a related party M ASEEER
Payment of lease liabilities YTRHEEAE

(16,000)
15,820
305
(2,000)
(76,965)

Net cash used in from financing activites ®EEZEBHFAR L EHE

(78,840)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents & R RS ZEEBYR D FE

(28,783)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REFI 2 H S RIE L EEY
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and ReRReEEWER
cash equivalents Wz, (E18)

62,571

309

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year REXRZBEERELZEY

34,097

2021
RMB’000
TAR®

4,060
(16,200)
15,000

2,000

(118,994)

(114,134)

(58,580)

123,741

(2,590)

62,571

BRERZERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nv_\éﬂjﬁ%ﬁ%:z IZT;.I-%-I

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

52)

General information

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The address of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars” or “HK$”), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the COVID-19
pandemic has resulted in a continuous impact on the Group’s
operations in 2022. It brought additional challenge to the overall
operating environment of the industry and the Group.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the following:

° Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instrument, which are measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB113,082,000. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Considering the Group’s
ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities, the directors of the Company believe that adequate
funding is available to fulfill the Group’s debt obligations and capital
expenditure requirements for the next 12 months period
commencing from 31 December 2022. Therefore, the financial
statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

2 EXREHHEBE

MUZEGEEVHEREMEANER
SABREINWAT - FrmHHAIN
BERR -—BEARMERENSE

(A

21 RBER

AEENGEVHEREACRERTES
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B R A M MR IIIZE LR AE G
B METHINERRI :

s HARBEAEREEIHFAH
EEREZERMEE KRS
EEAEAEZHFT ARG LS
MEENMEBEAABEFTENTT
E®MIA-

HF & &> ot

BT AT B RS 2R 8 B 55 R
REBERETHRS G T2
KEREBEERBAKSE S BRMNB
RAETEREHAEG D - P REEREEH
Bk e EE  BRREMGTY
ZEGRAVBRERMEBERNE
B R M EAh R -

211 HERKE

HZE2022F 128310 AEBE 2R F
& (& @ H % 8 & Z113,082,0007T
ARB REBZARBHELSETERT
HEg B a e 2 EBReRmALESN
BMENBTHEIPZHBEET - EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

The Group did not change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting the
abovementioned amended standards or annual improvements.

2.1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been published but are not
mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting period and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date;
any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive director of the
company that makes strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is HKD.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
statement of comprehensive income within “other losses — net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 40-50 years

— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or

useful life

— Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 4-10 years

— Plant and machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other
losses — net” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalized and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or Groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on non-financial assets (Note 2.8)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of five years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Financial Assets

() Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for

managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial Assets (Continued)

() Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial Assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OClI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial Assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for
purchases of raw materials.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 180 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 23
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s policies
for expected credit loss allowance.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise
convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in
other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the respective
equity component of the compound financial instrument, together
with the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as
current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

The Group operates short-term employee benefits and post-
employment schemes.

(@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions
on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housing funds, union running costs and employee
education costs, short-term paid absences and etc. The short-term
employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability in
the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits
are measured at fair value.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contributions. During the year, the
Group’s post-employment benefits that are defined contribution
plans mainly include the premiums or contributions on basic
pensions and unemployment insurance. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
During the year, the Group does not have post-employment
benefits that are defined benefit plans.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up
and administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human
Resource and Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on
the basic pensions are calculated according to the bases and
percentage prescribed by the relevant local authorities. When
employees retire, the relevant local authorities are obliged to pay
the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in
which the service has been rendered by the employees, with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or
the cost of relevant assets.

The Group’s contributions to these defined contribution plans are
expensed as incurred and not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the plans prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

() Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. These plans comprise a share option scheme
and a share award scheme. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at date of grant, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(¢) Share-based compensation (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (hominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant business taxes
on value added taxes.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chain restaurants for selling fast food and hot
pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a restaurant of the
Group passes the food to the customer. Retail sales are usually in
cash, by credit card or by online payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the relevant
services are performed.

The Group operates customer loyalty programme for its restaurant
operations where customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future purchases. The
Group accounts for award credits as a separately identifiable
component of the sales transactions in which they are granted (the
“initial sale”). The fair value of the consideration received or
receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the
award credits (based on fair value), which is credited to contract
liabilities and the other components of the sales. Revenue from the
award points is recognised when the points are redeemed. The
amount of revenue is based on the number of reward points
redeemed relative to the total number expected to be redeemed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business
(Continued)
Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The franchisee does
not have a right of return upon receipt of the products. The Group
does not operate any loyalty programmes for its franchisees.

(b) Franchise income
Franchise income is recognised on an accrual basis over the period
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

() Management and service fee income
Management service fee income is recognised over the time when
services are rendered.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

2.23 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing

was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental

borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election
may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as
they would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and c. there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

The Group has early adopted updated Amendment to HKFRS 16—
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which
extended the practical expedient to lease payments that were due
on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Earning per share

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares, and

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.27 Earning per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company’s finance department identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Board of Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

EAXAETHERBME @

2271 SR B R @)

b) FRHERER
EERRERMNEBAEANETSR
EABMZEBAEE

. i%ﬁﬁ%%k%ﬁﬁZﬂgﬁ
HMBEXRARNZRAEHR
2.k

e BREMBEEVEBELBRRES
BEBER T EITEIINEINE R
By pnE F A 2R o

B E b B E

31 MK REKREZE

AEBNEFERSEVBRAR : m
SRE(BEEXREBRMECREN
ZE)  FEREARMREMERR A
SEZERRAREEFEETINRER
MG AR ERE MAORBAEE
BBERAXINEETNTERER
1K -

AEERBHBREARAEZTSHE
ZHERBITRARER - XA R PKHD
HEASBEEREEMETHIE P&

LM A EES RN
%%HA“ﬁZiEﬁW A Ko 51 BE

ﬁi%@lﬂ%ﬁ%%&ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ
THREFABITEME@MEK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars,
US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK
dollars, RMB and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group did not enter into any forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets that are denominated in currency other than
functional currencies of the respective group entities are as follows:

31 December 2022
2022%12A 318

HK dollar
BT
RMB’000
TARY
Cash and bank balances ReRRTES
Trade and other receivables B E 5 K H fh 278

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2021: 5%) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for
the year would have been RMB1,779,000 higher/lower (2021:
RMB1,939,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated
cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables.

US dollar
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and
convertible bonds. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by
cash held at variable rates. As at each balance sheet date, the
Group’s convertible bonds were carried at a fixed interest rate while
the borrowings were carried at floating interest rates based on the
prevailing loan prime rate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Based on the simulations performed by the Group, the impact on
post-tax loss of a 1% shift of interest rates for borrowings with
floating interest rates would be a maximum increase or decrease of
RMB111,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB113,000). The simulation is done on an annually basis to verify
that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the
management.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. Sales to retail customers for the Group’s restaurant
operation and delivery business are required to be settled in cash
or using major credit cards, mitigating credit risk. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure
to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are also
subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment
loss was identified.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 was determined as follows for trade receivables:
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables mainly include consideration receivable in relation
to partial disposal of investment in an associate, lease deposits,
amounts due from related parties, loans receivables and others.
The management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records and
past experiences. The Group measures credit risk using Probability
of Default (“PD”), Exposure at Default (“‘EAD”) and Loss Given
Default (“LGD”). This is similar to the approach used for the
purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) under
HKFRS 9.

° Other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1’ and have their credit
risk continuously monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

° If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the
debtor is more than 1 day past due on its contractual
payments) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired. The expected credit loss is measured on
lifetime basis.

° If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when
the debtor is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments), the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’.
The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection
from them, the management of the Group believes that a majority
of the Group’s other receivables are classified in Stage 1 as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 as there was no significant increase of
credit risk since initial recognition, and the credit risk inherent in
such receivables is not significant. As at 31 December 2022, the
amounts classified in Stage 2 amounted to nil (2021: RMB5.8
million), as the receivable from these debtors are past due on their
contractual payments while the duration of past due is less than 90
days. As at 31 December 2022, the amounts classified in Stage 3
amounted to approximately RMB6.4 million (2021: nil). The overall
average loss rate applied as at the 31 December 2022 and 2021
were 14.23% and 6.81% respectively.

During the year, the following amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

B 7% & b2 B 12 )

31 BEEKREZR @

(b) 1A E R @)

E b FE 358 (48)
EREFHBAZBAEAERRAEK
RZ2ESL AEBEBEERE AR
B #16 MeR A - = A3 R b 4 A AR 3
ne B AN &R B K EB o E At R R TR
R2022F K2021F12H31H B E A
F-BE BZEREWRFEZEAEE
FE B I~ E K- 720224 12 A 31
H BEAF-ME2ZHEAT (2021
F :58ABTLARYE)  RAAEKZ
ZEBAREBBBERZAEHNNTH A
i #8 BY R B B0 K » 7220224 12 A 31
B BEAF-BEBRZIENECLH
BT AR (20214 : ) o 720224
F2021F12A31H @A 2 EETY
BEED R A14.23% K 6.81% °

FATIHEHEERBRER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®E
Provision for expected credit loss allowance — FEUWE 5 78 2 FEHE B X
for trade receivables B (177) (101)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance — E fih jE I 718 ~ T HA{E BB &
for other receivables B (6,589) (6,417)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance ~ £ Rt & E 2 FEHA(Z BB L B E
for financial assets (6,766) (6,518)
BRERERAR

—E-CFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) B % B b B B ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BERREZE @
(c) Liquidity risk ) REBELEMR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and CEBRHESRERE  KAEBHBER
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate LEERE S LRSS EYYREERR
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate BREFHKE  UBEST KREBLE:
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available THERESREFSHNFE - AEFH
banking facilities to meet its short-term working capital MAREBRITHRENAREHEEHEE
requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of bank EeFE-BHEERRITERER
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants. B WHREREEBTERAL -
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFVWAREFBFETESHBEZ
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been HAERBIBH ZERDBEAESBZE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial NMRzEF BB ERFTIERR
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be chERME - EEHEMIETTASRA
required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial BEZRHBNDERBEEZRBHMm
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table FEoxHANBERAEGH S RE -
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the HMABRESREAFEHE B X
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived WM REIBRNFRPESL -
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
Between Between
Within 1 year 1 and 2years 2 and 5years Over 5 years
15 R 1FZE2F 2F F55F HiB5E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY FAR% FAR%
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H
Trade payables JENTE 5308 53,855
Other payables and H b e 0B R
accruals FEIRE A 85,238 =
Borrowings & ;R 14,992 =
Convertible bonds AR ES 16,366 627,453
Lease liabilities HEaE 79,680 69,968
Total &t 250,131 697,421
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

3

Q

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

Financial risk management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B 7% & b2 B 12 )

31 BEEKREZR @
) REEZ R @)

Between Between
Within 1 year 1and?2vyears 2and5years Over 5 years
1F RN 1FE2F 2EESEF fiizg Coke
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR® FAR® TARH
As at 31 December 2021 72021512831 H
Trade payables JET & 55K IE 59,166 — — —
Other payables and E b fE A FRIE K TR
accruals 28 A 89,156 — — —
Borrowings Bx 15,183 5,304 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 59,801 509,424 — —
Lease liabilities HEBE 100,356 78,385 110,056 17,301
Total &3t 323,662 593,113 110,056 17,301
3.2 Capital management 32 EXEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including borrowings and convertible bonds as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 72% (2021: 56%).

AEEEREARRRERAEERF
BRERD NABRREHLOHRSH
R SEERTAEMNES  YREER
REBARIEE KA o

REFHNABELRNERE  AEE R
EREBEXNTRRZEESHE K&
AORE T IR - BTSN S
EEE URLPAEE-

AEEBNEEBBLERAREERE
Ko HEMERAALT "R -EEARE
LEDREBFERNE RN EBREE
H-BEFEDNIZEERRE(BERE
EEABRA R ZERUARATREE
FIRBES MR EEMTE - BEXRE
BHRGGEEABRA AR
& 7% % 8t B o 72022912 A 31
H AEEEEBBELER72% (2021
F 1 56%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 XEREE@m

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 RAEEM

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried TEREALBETE=HERNTE AE

at fair value as at 31 December 2022 by level of the inputs to EEM O ANEBRNR2022F12 A31H

valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are DArhBEIFENSHIAE - E@EH
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: ABBEFBAUNTAABEERA Z =@
&7l

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical ° EREEXBEIRTERE
assets or liabilities (level 1). (CRFAE) (B4 -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that o EENBEHASIBAAEBRE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, 1TRAINRE - T E#E (BE
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). M)siEE (R ERIELE)(F2

&) -

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on e EEJSBEMNHGABEBETZER

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). B R T IS B (BN Rl B aR g

ABUR) (B3R -

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured TRIAAEBER2022F12 431 B A
at fair value at 31 December 2022. ARBEFEZEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E14R E24 EIR &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FTAR® FTAR® TAR®

Assets BE
Financial assets atfair R AAEBETEEH
value through profitor & Bt ABHF >

loss ERMEE
Investment in unlisted RIELETIEMER
wealth management wAE
products
Total &5t
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured

B 7% & b2 B 12 )

33 A AEBEME @
TRIRAEBH2021F12 831 B R

at fair value at 31 December 2021. AABEFAEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E14 FE2M ERF N &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE FAR® FAR® FAR®E
Assets BE
Financial assets at BRAAREBEFER
fair value through HEEHFT AHA
other comprehensive 2HKEZEH
income 5E
Unlisted investment FEMEE - — 2,000 2,000
Financial assets at RAAREBEFER
fair value through HEBFHTAEBR
profit or loss ZEeRMEE
Investment in unlisted A IE T IR B E G
wealth management ®E
products - - 57,817 57,817
Derivative financial TESRMIA
instrument — — 22,543 22,543
Total &t — _ 82,360 82,360
BRERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 XEREE@m
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 2 AEEME @
Financial instruments in level 3 FEIREMITAE

NRIIRE E 2022 F %2021 F12 A 31
BItEEZE3M T AEEE -

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Opening balance as at

P2022F1A1BZ

Financial assets

at fair value  Financial assets
through other at fair value Derivative
comprehensive through profit or financial
income loss instrument

BEAREE BOREE

GTEEHZH STEEHZSH
FFAHMEE RS FABR fTiEsr
ZERMEE ZEREE IR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE FARE

1 January 2022 B e 2,000 57,817
Addition NE - 202,521
Redemption L4 (1,181) (194,124)
Change in fair value NhEEE (819) 507 (23,754)
Exchange difference fEH =% - — 1,211

Closing balance as at
31 December 2022

M2022F 12 A31H 2
Hi R & 8

Opening balance as at

R2021F1A18Z

1 January 2021 Hy &6 5,000 27,931 72,226
Addition NE — 191,180 —
Redemption B - (161,362) -
Change in fair value RAEBEEZS (3,000) 68 (47,375)
Exchange difference [EH =% — - (2,308)
Closing balance as at M2021F12A31HZ

31 December 2021 HR £ 80 2,000 57,817 22,543

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis.
At least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques
to determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments.
External valuation experts will be involved when necessary.

@)

For unlisted investment, as the investment is not traded in an
active market, its fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques and is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed its unlisted investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and there was no
outstanding unlisted investment as at 31 December 2022.

All of these unlisted wealth management products are
sponsored and managed by state-owned or reputable
national commercial banks in the PRC. These unlisted wealth
management products are short-term investments which are
denominated in RMB and redeemable on demand. The
expected rate of return of the unlisted wealth management
products range from 1.8% to 2.6% per annum as at 31
December 2022 (2021: from 2.2% to 3.1%) which are
updated by the banks periodically on a quarterly or more
frequent basis. Management uses the expected rate of return
for approximation for both cash flow assessment and the
discount rate in evaluating the fair values of the unlisted
wealth management products. Increased or decreased
expected rate of return by 1% would increase or decrease
fair value by RMB667,000 (2021: RMB578,000).

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument is
determined using the binomial valuation model and the
significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation
techniqgue mainly include the expected volatility rate and risk-
free interest rate. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group did not exercise the option in relation to the
derivative financial instrument before its expiry, and there was
no outstanding derivative financial instrument as at 31
December 2022. The key inputs adopted in the binomial
valuation model for the determination of fair value as at 31
December 2021 were disclosed in Note 22.

B 7% & b2 B 12 )

33 P AEEME @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concemning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of groups of CGUs have been determined
based on the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates. Further details are given in Note 21.

(b) Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for interests in associates at the end of each reporting period in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in Note 2.8.
Interests in associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interests in an
associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which is determined
based on the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgment and estimates. Further details are given in Note 20.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(¢) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives for
intangible assets based on their historical experience in the industry
and various studies and market research performed by them, which
support that the trademark may have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. It is possible that future
results of operation could be affected by changes in this estimate.
A change of useful lives of the trademarks from indefinite to finite
would increase amortisation charges and decrease non-current
assets.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and value in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgment and estimates. Further
details are given in Note 17 and 18.

B & 5t b 5T K H B )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

() Expected credit loss allowance for receivables
The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on the expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

(9) Fair value of customer royalty program

The fair value of programme awards under the Group’s customer
loyalty programme is deferred and included in contract liabilities
which arise as members of the programme accumulate award
points by purchasing food of the Group. The contract liability is
recognised as revenue when the related goods or services are
provided upon redemption of award points. The proportion of
points that are expected to expire, is recognised to reduce fair
value, and is determined by a number of assumptions including
historical experience, future redemption pattern and programme
design.

The amount of revenue recognised is determined based on the
number of points redeemed relative to the total number expected
to be redeemed.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

5

Revenue and Segment information

The Company’s executive directors are the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM periodically reviews the Group’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The CODM has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the CODM
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is reviewed. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

WAR 7 EBE

ARBATEERTIERERRSE
([EBRERKED - TELERK
EEHEHNASE 2P HERE - KM
FERARDEER - TERZERE
EORBEZSHREEELENH -

RE E2022%F 202112 A31 B L4
B ARAEEERET BT EER
B EEDPHBEER MEBLE
REREEPRAEEERBCEEE -
Eit - WERZHEEDHER -

KEEFPAHZBARA:

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

Restaurant operation BELE
Delivery business INE ETE
Sale of food ingredients HERM

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY TARE

282,544 500,903
207,935 206,103

47,031 45,953
537,510 752,959

The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas
customers contributed to less than 10% of revenue. Also, none of
the Group’s non-current assets is located outside the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. For the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, no revenue derived from
transactions with a single external customer represented 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.

AEBNTEMHEFE  ABEIINE
FPOHEREH U ANERTR10%
BAREEBEMR T BREINNIERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

6. Other income

6 HbWA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

Franchise income FFET A A

Investment income on wealth management B EREERA@)
products (a)

Government grants (b) BT # B (o)

Interest income on loans B3R B A

Management service income (c) EIEREWA(C)

Others Hity

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TAR®

4,905 6,182
1,706 1,684
1,645 4,331
222 969
- 2,976
1,396 1,943
9,874 18,085

For the year ended 31 December 2022, investment income
on wealth management products includes realized gains of
RMB1,199,000 (2021: RMB1,616,000) and unrealized gains
of RMB507,000 (2021: RMB68,000), both of which are
recorded as “other income” in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
government grants. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Management service income mainly includes service fees
received by the Group in relation to the provision of
commercial, management and administrative support
services.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

Hith 5 <

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

7 Other expenses 7

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM FARY
Daily maintenance expenses HE#HERY 22,054
Business development expense EBHERAX 15,328
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHAX 15,622
Professional fees EXRBEA 9,611
Impairment of right-of-use assets TREEERE
(Note 17 and 18) (5517 ]2 18) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B & &7 E
(Note 17) (M 5E17) 13,908
Auditors’ remuneration % A B &
— Audit services — EF R 2,300
— Non-audit services — EEARS 324
Other expenses H b 16,695
Total other expense Hib Mz 858 95,842
Other losses, net 8 HiEEFEMH
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A1BLEE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARYE
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRELEENRZ 2,522 4,892
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME WMERIBEIE
and equipment (2,664) (6,269)
Loss on closure of restaurants — net EREEEE - F8 (1,528) (2,589)
Net exchange gain P 5 2 5 58 309 1,506
Others Hh (830) (1,196)
2,191) (3,656)
BRERERAR
“EFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

9 Finance income and expenses 9

Finance income
Interest income on bank deposits

1 75 WA
RITIF A B UA

Finance expenses

Interest on convertible bonds (Note 25)
Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on bank borrowings

Interest on loan from third parties

MisER

AT AR B 25 A B (M R 25)
HERBEHNE

RITHE A B
FE=ZTTEFF B

Others HAtb
Finance expense, net MEER T
10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of 10

investments in associates

Net gains on partial disposal of investments
in associates (a)

Net gains on dilution of investments
in associates (b)

MoHEBRERRKRE ZKE

H 3 (a)
BEHE AR E 2 W
F R (D)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

BHEBARER

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK

144

(39,971) (32,765)

(11,101) (14,370)

(433) (378)

= (38)

(482) (552)

(51,987) (48,103)

(51,857) (47,959)
EREEEE QA

U =

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TARE

61,851
20,190
82,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12A31 B ILFE

e S R R ()

10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of 10
investments in associates (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
recognize any gain on partial disposal and dilution of investments in

associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the amounts recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income included:

(@ The amount represented the gains on partial disposal of the
Group’s investments in associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed certain interests in Guangzhou Yujian
Xiaomian Catering Management Company Limited (&
MNBR/NEERERERAT) (“Yujian Xiaomian”, an
associate of the Group) to a third party at the
consideration of RMB30 million. Upon completion of
the disposal, the Group recognized a gain of
approximately RMB26.7 million in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and Yujian
Xiaomian continues to be accounted for as an associate
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed certain interests in Shanghai Seesaw Coffee
Company Limited (L/8F&EMPEERAE]) (“‘Seesaw”,
an associate of the Group) to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) at the consideration of RMB40 million.
Upon completion of the disposal, the Group recognized
a gain of approximately RMB35.2 million in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and
Seesaw continues to be accounted for as an associate
of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
consideration receivable of RMB36,496,000 (after
netting off the related withholding tax which will be
withheld by the Purchaser and remitted to the tax
bureau pursuant to the share purchase agreement) was
recorded as other receivables in the consolidated
balance sheet. At the same time, pursuant to the share
purchase agreement, the Group had received a deposit
of RMB20,000,000 from the Purchaser which will be
refunded to the Purchase immediately before the
settlement of the above consideration, and such
deposit was recorded as other payables in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021.

BLHERBEHE QT
BRE 2 W= @
HE202F12A31BILEE  KER

I 4 R AE T 2D 5 11 O R MR S A
AL 2 I -

HE2021F12A31BIEFE  NEA
FHNBRER S ERTE

‘_|
o

@ “ETEAMOHEAREBZEAR
AR E 2 W o

i RE 22021F12 8318 1
FE - AEEME=ZHE
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ERAR(EBR @] K
EEzHERR) 2/ TH#
W REANBETAR
Mo MEFHEEMKE  AE
BRiGeE2E NI RER
WzHoe7TEB T ARE
MBR/NHEEEZEIEARAE
BoBERa AR-

i. WMEZE2021512A8318 1k
FE -AEERME=ZFTE
FHhEELELSHEENEEE
RAR(AE] ~"EEZ
BenNE)zE TER R
EBEARIOEETLARE - I
EEETNE  AEERE
ArHEWFRERRED
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BEEARAEB 2BE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

10 Gain on partial disposal and dilution of
investments in associates (continued)

(b)  The amount represented the dilution gain on the Group’s
investments in associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Yujian
Xiaomian issued new shares to certain investors.
Consequently, the Group’s interests in Yujian Xiaomian
were diluted. The increase in share of net assets of
RMB7,093,000 after the issuance of new shares net of
dilution impact was recognized as a dilution gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Tianshuilai
(Beijing) Catering Trade Management Co. Ltd (k3 K7K
REGEIEBAR AT (“Tianshuilai”, an associate of the
Group) issued new shares to certain investors.
Consequently, the Group’s interests in Tianshuilai was
diluted. The increase in share of net assets of
RMB2,691,000 after the issuance of new shares net of
dilution impact was recognized as a dilution gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Seesaw
issued new shares to certain investors. Consequently,
the Group’s interests in Seesaw was diluted. The
increase in share of net assets of RMB10,406,000 after
the issuance of new shares net of dilution impact was
recognized as a dilution gain in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

11 Income tax credit 11 Fi8HiiIE R

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE TARE
Current income tax Bl EA AT 15 ¢
Hong Kong profits tax BAEFGH -

Withholding income tax in relation to gainson 39 H &8 & A FRE 2 W

partial disposal of investments in associates 7 TEIR Fr 15 8¢ 6,211
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) FECERSRTEEMRSR] -
6,211
Deferred tax IR RE T 18 (15,518) (20,059)
(15,471) (13,848)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE

Loss before income tax rPTISTH RIS E (182,179) (665,685)

Tax calculated at applicable tax rates of 25% 1% 25% i F3 5 = =+ %4

(2021: 25%) (20214 : 25%) (45,545) (166,421)
Tax effects of: LWTHEHBE 2B E
— Associates’ results reported net of tax —BERRIZEREE
(T&E®H) 4,974 (252)
— Effect of different tax rates of the —ARRAIRETHEBRR
Company and certain subsidiaries TRAMRzEE 16,669 8,159
— Impairment of goodwill not deductible for ~ — 7~ AT 184 79 2 5 (&
tax purpose 133,859
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  — &+ % BF A~ A] F0 3R 2 2 H 1,075
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax —JERLRI ARG
losses 518 (632)
— Temporary differences and tax losses for — RBRELENMSHEEZ
which no deferred income tax asset was EREHABEEER
recognized 8,254 10,364
Taxation credit 5 % (15,471) (13,849)

TEERERAR
fritier ©®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

11 Income tax credit(continued) 11

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profit above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%).

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Withholding income tax

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Wonderful Dawn
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Hong Kong, disposed certain interests in associates
(Note 10(a)). The taxable income on such disposals (being the
difference of the consideration and the proportion of investment
costs disposed of) is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

12 Loss for the year

12

The Group’s loss for the year has been arrived at after charging

(crediting):

FREE

AEBzFAEBRENRGIA):

For the Year ended
31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2022
RMB’000
FAR%
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 84,694
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 42 - = MR BT E 26,138
Amortization of intangible assets EREESH 1,464
Total depreciation and amortization ENEE AR 112,296
Property rentals MEME
— office premises (fixed payments) —RAEWE (BTN 442
— restaurants —ZE
— fixed payments — BEHK 7,033
— variable lease payments — Al A E MR 1,991
— COVID-19-related rent concessions — COVID-19HEHE e E=R (5,890)
Property management fee MESIEE 15,260

Total property rentals and other rental related
expenses

WER S K HEMmAE SRR

R

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets (Note 21)

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit services

mEREMELEERE
(FaE21)

ZBED M =
— FERF RS
— JEEAT RS

2021
RMB’000
TAR®

103,406
39,831
1,404

144,641

1,627
9,231
1,824

(921)
20,520

32,281

566,455

2,300
324

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

13 Loss per share 13 BREE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2022 2021
RMB cents RMB cents
AR S ARED
Basic loss per share (a) % B AR E 1B () (9.90) (40.52)
Diluted loss per share (b) % %5 72 E5 18 (b) (9.90) (40.52)
(a) Basic loss per share (@) BREXEIE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss R B ARERB TR EBR AR T
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted BRBEAZBERIFEFARNEE®
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. TEBRMEFSHE -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2021
Loss attributable to equity holders of SFEBRERNEERRA
the Company used in calculating basic loss FBRARREE
per share (RMB in thousands): BAEAZEE
(FARE): (156,242) (639,639)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2 %17 & @ i% h0#& T 15 &
issue (thousands) (F 50 1,578,664 1,578,664

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

13 Loss per share (continued)

e S R R ()

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential shares. The Company’s dilutive potential
shares comprise shares to be issued under convertible
bonds, share option scheme and share award scheme. In
relation to shares issued under share option schemes, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 did not assume the issuance of
any dilutive potential ordinary share since they are antidilutive,
which would decrease loss per share.

14 Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

13 BREBE @
(b) ERFHERER

BRBEEBERBBABEET
By g F T UEBRERE
BHBBERERD - NRAE
EREBRMDBEREATRKE
7 BB A B K B {0 B2 R Rt &)
s T #17.2 B - BLARIR B K
BFEERTZEROME AR
AMEREE  UEBERBARITRE
BREMMRBE:EBEER
NABEGRARF RN FAF
B mEEE) " R WE 2 K
& E - EMAFEZROBE
EERITEBREMAIEETZ
Bein BB EITHLE ©

i EEH E20226F NM2021F12 A
AL FEz2SRBEEERE
HMRAHEREELERAEEGR®
BRERLESREER M E
BRETIMNAIHEBEL R
% o
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BEEEZATHEAZT2022F12A31H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

15 Directors’ and chief executive’s 15 EERTHERZHNE
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiEERAZ EFTRAEATER - F
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance, NEERTHREF S EENT :
is as follows:
2022 2022 F

Contributions
relating to
social insurance,

housing fund and Other

Salaries Bonus retirement scheme Benefit
B R
FEEABER

ERE5FE HAth

Hune 2 TEAT BEZHRK &2 =

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®E TAR%¥® TAR% TAR® TAR¥ TAR%®
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan (Chairman) # % & (3= &)
Wang Xiaolong FNEE
(Chief Executive) (FTH A8 %)
Jing Shen S8
Independent BUIFHITEE
non-executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4
Leung Kwai Kei 2EH
Lo Wei-Ren o
Total 438
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

15 Directors’ and chief executive’s 15 EERTHAZHME @
emoluments (Continued)
2021 2021 F
Contributions
relating to
social insurance,
housing fund and Other
Fees Salaries Bonus  retirement scheme Benefit Total
Hitt &R b
TEAE®ER
RIK2 52 Efth
i e TEAL BEZHEK =l &
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
TARE TAR®E TARE TARE TARE TARE
Executive directors HITEFE
Zhao John Huan HESR(EE)
(Chairman) - - - - — —
Wang Xiaolong F/EE
(Chief Executive) (TTE 4 %) - 1,541 - 130 3,698 5,369
Jing Shen =18 — 1,200 — 130 1,309 2,639
Independent BUIRITESE
non-executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei S 134 — — — - 134
Leung Kwai Kei & 134 - - — — 134
Lo Wei-Ren e 134 — — — - 134
Total 48 RH 402 2,741 — 260 5,007 8,410

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group
and for their services as directors of the Company respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for a loss of office. No directors waived any

emoluments during these years.

EXRRZHITESERBIINITE
EME ORI EEAEBEEARR A
RAGEEEHBURBEETARRE
FZRBMA

B E2o022%F K2021E12 A31 F Ik
E AEEVTERNESER AL TS
AT RTINS EANAKREH
o0 AN R B B 2 BB ok 1E A BB
B -BMESERZEFTEANRELEM
B & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

e S R R ()

16 Employees benefit expenses 16

BEBANMAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

Wages and salaries

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Share-based compensation expenses

(Note 34)
Staff benefit and welfare

TERFE

ROR A& F 5T 8] 50

AR AEBOFHAL
(P 5£34)

EE®RF @

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TAR®

134,751 175,687
17,818 22,605
2,875 3,374
17,540 16,278
172,984 217,944

For the Group’s defined contribution plan, no forfeited contributions
are available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group in the

future years.

Two (2021: two) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group were directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in Note 15 above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining three (2021: three) highest paid individuals, were as

follows:

RAREzZ AEHRKAEME  BE
B2 Y A R AT A MR AR A SR B R R 2R
FRBEMNZHHK -

AEBRAAERTHMALTPEAE
(2021 F: MAH)BAXARBES H
FWEER EXMFEI5 52 R =4
(20215 : =& ) &= A I =2 B 5
g U N

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Salaries and other benefits

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Other benefits

o R HMAE R
BARAE IR
H A 48 F

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TARE

4,118 3,294
339 175
- 300
3,769

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

16 Employees benefit expenses (Continued)

e S R R ()

16

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
discretionary bonus was paid by the Group to the highest paid

employees (2021 nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

The emoluments were within the following band:

EEREFBHEXZ @

BB EREREEKLEHLE
BAARBERAUELEMISRTEIEM
EE - #HZE2022F 128318 ILFE -
IR E A o BN E B A
B fEIEAL (2021 4F - &) o

HE2022F12A31B I FE - KEE
WEM RS HES I ERBSE
BIMAREB S INALE BB 2R
HIERBEBEE -

e FTIEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

T~ #81,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000
1,500,001 7 JT Z 2,000,000
2,000,001 7% 7T & 2,500,000

2022 2021

Number of Number of
employees employees

EE#A EE#A

2

& T —
& TT 1
T —
3

BREREROT

SEZCFEFER

129



14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

17 Property, plant and equipment

17 1% - BERRE

Furniture,
Plantand  fixtures and Motor Leasehold ~ Construction
Machinery ~ equipment Vehicles Buildings  improvements in progress Total
BER &%
e Rkt E BF HESR EEIR At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
TARE TAR® TFTARE TARK FARE TARE TARH
Year ended B 220215128318
31 December 2021 tFE
Opening net book amount ~ F ¥R A F B 3,686 25,242 534 23,612 68,599 3,159 124,832
Additions nNE 2,623 7,342 252 - 14,378 10,290 34,885
Disposals HE (604) (1,612 - - (4,567) - (6,783)
Transfer upon completion TR EF &= - - - 1,746 10,086 (11,832) -
Depreciation charge mESH
(Note 12) (F5E12) (894) (7,786) (78) (1,027) (30,046) - (39,831)
Impairment charge (Note 7)  JR{E 7 ! (F5E7) (1,169) (2,143) - - (10,602) - (13,908)
Closing net book amount  F K {1 F & 3,648 21,043 708 24,331 47,848 1,617 99,195
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318
Cost A 35,650 118,428 10,375 111,555 288,454 1,617 566,079
Accumulated depreciation 2T ERFEE
and impairment (32,002 (97,385) (9,667 (87,224) (240,606) - (466,884)
Net Book Amount BREFEE 3,648 21,043 708 24,331 47,848 1,617 99,195

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

17 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 17 ¥ -BERZRHE@®

Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
Machinery  equipment Vehicles Buildings improvements in progress Total
BER &H %E
B ES ] RE B2 HEYRR ERIR CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR%® TAR® TAR® TARY TAR® TAR¥%

Year ended 31 December & Z£2022F 128311

2022 HEE
Opening net book amount 4 ¥ BE ¥ & 21,043 47,848 1,617 99,195
Additions NE 2,606 2,672 4,944 11,184
Disposals He (1,209) (1,983) - (3,353)
Transfer upon completion  FEAEF & = - 5,086 (5,086) -
Depreciation charge mESH

(Note 12) (M5E12) (5,326) (1,041) (19,022) (26,138)
Impairment charge (Note 7) i {E X i (Fif#£7) (165) = (556) (748)
Closing net book amount & K iR F & 16,949 34,045 80,140

At 31 December 2022 R2022%512A31H

Cost P AR 36,445 119,825 111,555 294,229 573,910
Accumulated depreciation 2t E R E
and impairment (32,693  (102,876) (88,265) (260,184) (493,770)

Net Book Amount REEE 3,752 16,949 23,290 34,045 80,140

(@) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests @ AEEVEEZ o EEREBERALSP
comprises buildings on land under medium-term land use BAZHR AT AR
rights in the PRC. ZETF -

(o) As at 31 December 2022, buildings with net book value of (b) 20224 12A31H - R & ¥ &
RMB22,240,000 (2021: RMB22,733,000) were pledged as £22,240,0007C A R # (2021 4 -
securities for the Group’s borrowings. 22,733,000t ARS) 2 B FE1E

RASEERZERR -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

17 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Impairment assessment

As a result of the negative impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic in
various cities in mainland China which continued throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had experienced
negative conditions including closure and suspension of operation
of certain restaurants which resulted in the decline in operating
results of these restaurants.

The management of the Group concluded there were indications
for impairment and conducted impairment assessment on certain
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. The Group
estimated the recoverable amounts of such restaurant (each of
which is an individual CGU) to which the asset belongs when it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of each restaurant has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the remaining lease term and
remaining useful lives of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment with a pre-tax discount rate reflecting the specific risks
relating to the relevant restaurants. The other key assumption for
the value in use calculated is revenue annual growth rates which
are determined based on historical performance, relevant operation
plans and taken into consideration on the recovery from the
COVID-19 pandemic. Long-term growth rate beyond 5 years is not
applicable to the value in use calculation as none of the restaurant
subject to impairment assessment has a remaining lease term that
is longer than 5 years as at 31 December 2022.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

e S R R ()

17 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 17

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 31

December 2022 were as follows:

ME BERRE@®
VERIEIS RN )

MR2022F12A31H > st EFE REEFR
FRAZEBHRRERWOT

Restaurants of

Restaurants of the Xinladao

the HHG brand brand

ERAMBEE FREDEEE

Sales growth rate HEWLRE Note 1 Note 2
Bt 5 1 Bter2

Pre-tax discount rate BB RTHT IR X 16.0% 15.9%

Note 1: Sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the HHG brand is 18% for
the year ending 31 December 2023, 3.0% for the year ending 31 December
2024, 6% for each of the years ending 31 December 2025 and 2026, and 5.0%
for the year ending 31 December 2027.

Note 2: Sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the Xinladao brand is 45% for
the year ending 31 December 2023, 11% for the year ending 31 December
2024, and 6% for the year ending 31 December 2025.

Based on the results of the assessments, the management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of certain CGUs
are lower than the carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, impairment losses of RMB748,000 (Note 7) and
RMB3,373,000 (Note 7 and Note 18) have been recognized against
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets as at 31 December 2022 respectively.

M1 : SNEAMEEENE E2023412A31
BILEEENHEERRRAE18% REE
202412 A3TAILFEMHEERERER
3.0% ° 20254 K%20264% 12 4318 1
FEEFNHEEREAR% MREZRE
2027F12AIBHLFEMHEEREX A
5.0% °

MizE2 : BB MEEENE E20234F12 A31
AILEEENHEESRRRE45% REE
202412 A3TAILFEMHEEERER
1% @ MR E E2025F12 A31H ILFE
WHERRE RO °

ARFTAHER AEBEEREEETS
FHRHeELEBEMHATKE S EER
2022 F 12 A1 B BRMEE - B It - R
202212 A31H  ERYWE - BWE X
BEARGAEEERTDES AR
(B E518748,000 A RE (M 5E7) &
3,373,0007C A R & (B 317 K 5218) ©

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

18 Right of use asset and Lease liabilities

18 EHEEERHEESRS
i) REEEBEBRABRIZ
T 5

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to BEBEXREYWLATEHEESEHA S

144

leases: e
Leased
properties
HEWE
RMB’000
FAR®
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE
At 1 January 2021 M2021 51818
Cost (DN 491,232
Accumulated depreciation ZETHTE (186,988)
Closing net book amount FRIE@EE 304,244
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F128318ILFEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 304,244
Additions NE 101,208
Depreciation charge (Note 12) wEZ T (HE12) (1083,4006)
Disposal & (28,029)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 274,017
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H831H
Cost BN 564,411
Accumulated depreciation RErTE (290,394)
Closing net book amount FRIE@MFEE 274,017
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2022F 12831 B ILEE
Opening net book amount FHE®FE 274,017
Additions NE 39,412
Depreciation charge (Note 12) wEZ T (ME12) (84,694)
Disposal & (36,981)
Impairment charge (Note 7 and Note 17) WA (M sE7 R FE17) (3,373)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 188,381
At 31 December 2022 4202212831 H
Cost BN 563,469
Accumulated depreciation E (375,088)
Closing net book amount FEXRE@MBE 188,381
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

18 Right of use asset and Lease liabilities 18 FAREEREEEEW
(Continued)
() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet i) REEEBRABRZ
(Continued) cox-CAC )
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
12H31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FARY
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current & 72,216 95,848
Non-current IERB 145,946 188,270
218,162 284,118
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022 financial 55 A FE & E 2022 BF B 4F 3%
year were RMB39,412,000 (2021: RMB101,208,000). 39,412,0007T A & # (20214 :

101,208,000 7T A R ) »

BRERERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

18 Right of use asset and Lease liabilities 18 FRAEKEERHEESEE®

(Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of i) REZERERABRZ
comprehensive income <%

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®K
Depreciation charge of FREEEZTEXH
right-of-use assets
Leased properties HEWE 103,406
Impairment loss recognized in REZRIANEEESSR
profit or loss
Leased properties HEWZE 3,373 —
Interest expense (included in finance expenses) # B F X (;T ARG E H) 11,101 14,370
Expense relating to short-term leases RHAEREER 7,475 10,858
Expense relating to variable lease payments T AHEGBEZ
not included in lease liabilities AEEENRAEER 1,991 1,824
Negative variable lease payments recognised &t 2 U B 7 5% 15
in respect of COVID-19-Related rent EEESERRERN
concession received BEHHEENK (5,890) (921)
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was Ro022FHERSRERBRES
RMB82,125,000 (2021: RMB131,628,000). 82,125,000t A R ®& (2021 F :

131,628,000 A RH#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

18 Right of use asset and Lease liabilities
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 years to 10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a restaurant. For individual
restaurants, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6%
to 26% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established restaurants. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those payments
ocCurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all restaurants in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total lease
payments for the year ended 31 December 2022 by
approximately RMB355,000.

18 FAREERHEHEEE @

(iii)

(M

AEE-HEEHRA
ABRF N

HEGRRDZENEEBTL
R IEZ 2 ARG SR B AT o B i
MAFMBHEHEEEY 2 KH%E
g AN - THE A 3 AR i 0 AE (] R
HmoMEBEETSRERRZA
fiam e

AEEENR
SYMERE NG R HE R

ﬁZT“ﬁmﬁﬁ ARk
CER AR KR AR

HﬂFHTLmW>E%E@

BN F6%E26% © 7] # 15K
GERERSEREAMER 21
7% 37 7 AR BB 2 B TE KA PE E &
K- BFHEEME2IEEE
RSN R IRE R RERE
BB =B RR o

HZE2022F12A31BEFE © W
REBEEZSUBHEHEGNZ
FrBEREHEERENI0%N  HE
- 3R 48 58 ¥ 38 0 49355,000 7T A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

19 Inventories 19 FE&

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARY
Raw materials R 44k 16,721 22,093
Finished goods B T 7,490 13,142

24,211 35,235

20 Investments in associates 20 BENTFKRE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
At 1 January ®W1HA1H 240,538 220,026
Additions NE 2,400 18,615
Share of (loss)/profit for the year FEEF R (BB, %7 (19,895) 1,565
Disposal & (8,149)
Increase in share of net assets of associates — #5& & E(L B2 QN R & E F58
after dilutions (Note 10(b)) 320 (K 5 10(b)) 20,190
Impairment BE (2,871)
Currency translation differences Bl E =58 26,061 (8,838)
At 31 December M®12 A31H 249,104 240,538
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 BtE N FIRE @)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2022 are as RNE BB ZE N R NR2022F12 A31H 2
follows: HBWT
Place of business/
country of
Name of entity incorporation % of ownership interest Measurement method
B it B
BEREB AR 32 B =R BRESL FERFN
2022 2021
Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing)  The PRC 19.92% 19.92% Equity
Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note 1)
AHEABRERCER)BRAF H B %
(T 2R A D (M)
Yujian Xiaomian (Note 1) The PRC 17.16% Equity
RN (P EE1) E R wO%

Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology =~ The PRC
Limited Company

21.43% Equity

RYBFEFRBREBRAF E A
Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% Equity
AYTREEREEARAA H B - P
Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% 20.00% Equity
R ERER AR AR H & A
Tianshuilai The PRC 25.03% 25.03% Equity
RIKIK H HERIE
Seesaw The PRC 21.43% 21.43% Equity
mE H ERE
Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC 42.86% 42.86% Equity
HHEEREER) BRRQA] H A
Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service The PRC 25.00% 25.00% Equity
Co., Ltd. (“SpicyFoook”)
RN E T EREHRBEBER A [ R
(Timzkmzl)
Shenzhen Jiabaomimian Company Limited The PRC 13.13% 13.13% Equity
(“Jiabaomimian”) (Note1)
AT NERER R AR AR ([INEKEE]) [ A
(FF3E1)
Beijing Zhaocai Food Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC - Equity
IRBTREEHBR AR A R
Shenzhen Panda Hot Catering Service Co., Ltd. The PRC - Equity
RYITHRESE R E R IRBEBR AR A R
BRERBRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

e S R R ()

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20

Note 1: Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian and
Jiabaomimian is less than 20%, the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian and Jiabaomimian, because
it has the power to appoint director to the board of directors of the investees
under the Articles of Association of the investees.

The Group determines whether interests in the investments
accounted for using the equity method are impaired by regularly
reviewing whether there are any indications of impairment in
accordance with relevant accounting standards.

When impairment indicators of the investments accounted for using
the equity method were identified, management determined the
recoverable amounts, which was the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposals and its value in use. When value in use
calculations were undertaken, management estimated the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses.

Where the recoverable amount was determined with reference to
the value in use assessment result, the estimated cash flows used
in the assessment were based on assumptions, including pre-tax
discount rate (17.4%), long-term growth rate (3%), forecasted
revenue growth rates during the 5-year forecast period (compound
growth rate of 40.5%) and gross margin (55.1%), which are
determined with reference to the business plans and prevailing
market conditions.

Based on the assessment results, no impairment was recognized
for investments in associates for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: an impairment of RMB2,871,000 was recognized for
the investment in an associate).

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE022F12A31BILEE

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

20 BEERQNTRIBRE @

(@) Tne following table illustrates the summarised financial (@) TxHIREHAS - BEIER

information of Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian and Seesaw
that are individually material to the Group:

AS(ZEEHAEEMEBEKXR)
M BEERBE :
Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Seesaw
FEE BR/NE il

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 SRl RMB’000 BGLUERUN  RMB’000
SN TARY EEWNLE TARY EEWNSLE TARK

65,440 61,212 PEEIPN 117,348 CECENN 144,578
201,376 [EERINGTA 154,845 [ERPRYOR 247,234 IRELREY
PN (40917) BNEGY  (56,567) BEPEEG)  (37,456)
(49,605) [PERLON (15,425) BEGERPON (60,644) IENGOXEE)

137,682 166,799 173,906 188,967 193,694 231,630

220,944 EERIYOIN 472,575 QEEICERPE 234,623 [EREYRAV
(28,259) 5,395 (15,325) ©061) INEYEERY (14,427

Current assets MEBEE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities TEAaE

Non-current liabilities FRHarE

Net assets BEFE

Revenue KA

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/ &

Total comprehensive (10ss)/ 2HE(EE),ME
income B

(28,259) (15,325) (14,427)

BRERZERERAA
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®



(3 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 & N TRE @)
(a) (Continued) (a)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information FHEBEERBEENGS TS
to the carrying amount of the interest in associate recognised MERANERRBEARERZE
in the consolidated financial statements: EE 2 %
Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Seesaw
FHE AR/ BE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000 S1J=H0el) RMB’000 ERGLUERUON  RMB’000
NEL TARY EEWNSLE TARY EEPNSLE TARK

Net assets of the associates BEDNRZEE
FE 137,682 166,799 173,906 188,967 193,694 231,630
Proportion of the Group’s direct AEBREE NG E
ownership interests in the BEHARLA
associates 19.92% 19.92% 17.16% 17.16% 21.43% 21.43%
Net assets of interest in associate 7K £ [ & {5 Bt & 1 7)1
attributable to the Group BLBEEFE 27,426 33,226 29,842 32,427 41,509 49,638
Goodwill HaE 20,176 20,176 9,571 9,571 17,520 17,520
Effect on foreign currency IBEHEITE
difference 2,952 (2,889) (1,024) (3,952) G (11,510
Carrying amount of the Group’s 7% £ [ /A B & 1 7]
interest in the associate ERzEEE 50,554 50,513 38,389 38,046 53,469 55,648
(b) Individually immaterial associates b) ERFVAREREHE QT
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the B EYRBERBE AR 2 HEDS
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial G REB NG TIEEZREA
associates that are accounted for using the equity method. EESEBIYITEAEZEATE

AN -

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FAR®

Aggregate carrying amount of individually — BB W AE A Z B E N E 2

immaterial associates R4 106,692 96,331
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: (3B AARNEE 2 LA T 42
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FE(REE & AR (R )/ i 7T 1 (3,506) 3,780

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2H(EB) MEeg (3,506) 3,780

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets 21 HEREFREE
Computer
Goodwill software Trademark Total
Gk EREH (=R i

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TARE TAR®

At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H
Cost DN 580,931 11,101 499,346 1,091,378
Accumulated amortisation and 2HEHEIRE

impairment — (4,684) — (4,684)
Net book amount BREFEE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694

Year ended 31 December 2021 # Z2021F12831H

HFE

Opening net book amount FYEREZE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
Additions NE — 1,318 - 1,318
Disposal HE - (153) - (153)
Amortisation charge BT - (1,404) - (1,404)
Impairment WE (535,436) - (31,019) (566,455)
Closing net book amount FREREEE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H
Cost B AR 580,931 12,266 499,346 1,092,543
Accumulated amortisation and BHEHEIRE

impairment (535,436) (6,088) (31,019 (5672,543)
Net book amount BREEE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000

Year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12831H

ILEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000
Additions NE — 104 - 104
Disposal e — (339) — (339)
Amortisation charge i H — (1,464) — (1,464)
Closing net book amount FEREERE 45,495 4,479 468,327 518,301
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F 12831 H
Cost [N 580,931 12,031 499,346 1,092,308
Accumulated amortisation and B EEIRE

impairment (535,436) (7,552) (31,019 (574,007)
Net book amount REFE 45,495 4,479 468,327 518,301

BRERBRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

e S R R ()

(a) Useful life of intangible assets

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark
continuously and has the ability to do so. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which support
that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life.
The trademarks will not be amortised until the useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that

they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and

trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
the CGUs of the relevant group of restaurants, which
comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(“HHG”) and its subsidiaries (the “HHG Group”); and (2)
Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao Group”).

Due to the continuous impact on macroeconomic conditions
brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, the operating results
of the HHG Group and the Xinladao Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were below the management’s previous
forecasts.

As at 31 December 2022, management has conducted
impairment review on the goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life of the HHG Group and the Xinladao
Group in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”,
based on the updated forecasts and assumptions approved
by management.

21 HEREFEE @
(b) BEREERMERR

REANRNE  HERAERE
RACEHFHZARDOEE
ERERAENZRSELEM
BREWIERMAR/EREESR
RAR(MER] REMHME A
THMaasd]) kIR
BEREEARAR(#HmE])
LEMBAR ([HAREERE]) -

R COVID-19%% 15 18 3 ¥ R &
LERAISEER 2 FE NG
AEEEHRBESE B E2022F
12A3MBLEFEZKEXEER
REERELATATTEA -

R2022F 12 A31H  EREEE
itz &R Rk - B8
EBRESSZHENEICHRE
EREIEMEASEERMHKE
SECHEREBERAFEASF
B AR ETT R E R AT ©

BRERZERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG Group
For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of the
CGUs has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecast approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Management engaged an independent external valuer
to assist in performing the impairment assessments.
Based on management’s calculation, the recoverable
amount of the HHG Group as at 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately RMB432 million (2021: 500
million), which was 25.7% (2021: 18%) higher than its
carrying amount. Key assumptions used to determine
the CGUs’ value-in-use were as follows:

Value assigned to
key assumption

ITEREFTEBRRZEE

2021

21 HFEREFREE @
(b) BMERKBERENR @

() MEBEERENG
RHNAAKENS REE
EEfMZAKE SRR
et B EE A E T - %
BTy AR IR B L
ER SR 2B E R
AR SR EEAET

EREEEEELINBG
BRI BB ETRET -
BEEEEZFE &8
£ B R2022F 128318 2
A ESEEL BLA2EHE T
A R ¥ (20214 : 5008 &
TARE) REE@EES
25.7% (20214 : 18%) > %
THeELENUZFERE
EMFERAZEERERTOT

Approach to determining key assumption
FTEBRREERZE

Revenue (% compound
growth rate)
WAEEBREA L)

Gross margins

EHE

Long-term growth rate
(perpetual growth rate)
RHEREROKEERE)

Pre-tax discount rates
B A A 47 IR =

12.7%

45.8%

3%

15.9%

Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross
margins were determined based on past
performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.

BAWRARBRXRREMEDERBRERRA
REREHMSERERFL -

Estimated based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

ERMBEBETEERBAGGSELE  BEXT
HBEHEBATEZ FTHRPEREX -

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segment and the country in which the HHG
Group operates.

REEBEBESBRMNEARELEME
X2 ERMR -

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG Group
(Continued)
Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

If the compound revenue growth rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for the HHG Group had
been 3.3% lower than management’s estimates
at 31 December 2022 (10.5% instead of 13.8%),
the value-in-use of the HHG Group would
approximate its carrying amount.

If the gross margins used in the value-in-use
calculation for the HHG Group had been 2.0%
lower than management’s estimates at 31
December 2022 (43.3% instead of 45.3%), the
value-in-use of the HHG Group would
approximate its carrying amount.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections of the HHG Group had been 4.0%
higher than management’s estimates (20.0%
instead of 16.0%), the value-in-use of the HHG
Group would approximate its carrying amount.

21 HEREFEE @
(b) BERBERENA @

() MEAEEREFML

(/&)

FERREEBBHHZE

WAETFEMEAS
BEFRAEABEIES K
AEEERGERRER
2022F 12 A31 H Z 1
=R 2 3.3% (B110.5%
i 3E13.8%) * M & &
SEZFREERSE
HEmEMRRS -

WBIEFFEME AL
B AEEERNE
B E B E R20224F
12 A31 8 2 &5 R
2.0%( Bn43.3%im 3k
453%) MANEE

ZEREBESEALR
EERE -

WHAMEaAEBRE S
mMEBEARAZRB
RANTREREEE
2 fh &3 04.0% (8D
20.0% M FE16.0%) -
MEAEBZERE
BEHEEEEERE -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A3 B ILEE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

e S R R ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG Group
(Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions
(Continued)

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their
recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the
Company are of the view that there is no impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
for the HHG Group as at 31 December 2022.

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group

For the Xinladao Group, management has determined
the recoverable amount of the CGUs by assessing the
fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) of the
underlying assets, which is higher than the value-in-use
of the Xinladao Group as at 31 December 2022. The
valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy due to unobservable inputs used in the
valuation.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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21 BEREFEEE @

(b) BMERKBERENR @

(i)

ME A & B E
()
TERREGCEBHTE
(%)

ERERE  DEEARE
%8 BT ) A R A A
B HETRERASEL
B2 AR (E R A
E% 8-

RIE Ll ARFEE
[& R A R2022F 12 A 31
B - MeasEB s HEREA

BEERAERFEFHNZENL
BEWERIE-

i E S ERE G

R HEEEEmME B8
BEE@ABIEHRBEEEZ
AAEBEREEXATA
hEBERLEKRAR] BT
BeELEBEMZAIRE S
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HEB -dRZEEFERAT
A ERA A R
BARBEBREILZME
=



QE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)

Management engaged an independent external valuer
to assist in performing the impairment assessments.
The approach and key assumptions used to determine
the CGUs’ FVLCOD as at 31 December 2022 were as
follows:

Value assigned to

21 BEREFEEE@®

(b) BERBERENA @

(iy FFEmBEEERET M
(#8)
EEREECEBE LB
B AN % B E TR E RS - R
2022F12A31H ' EE R’
CELEBENUZARBER
HEKREAMEAFERE
ZRJ|UT -

Valuation key assumption Approach to determining
Technique Unobservable inputs as at 31 December key assumption
FABREN R12A3MBAEE
B B M BWABE TERRZEE TEBRREBESE
2021
Market approach Enterprise value/sales 1.26 Asat 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
RN multiple (times) enterprise value/sales multiples represent the
rEEE/THEER respective median of the enterprise value/
(B sales multiples of the same group of selected

Discount for lack of
marketability (‘DLOM”)

Rz TSR m TR
Tz Mm%
gl

Control premium

R B

Cost of disposal
(% of fair value)
HEKA(ARER
BAt)

25%

10%

1%

comparable public companies (each of
which is engaged in the catering business
and listed on the Stock Exchange) as at the
end of the reporting period.

R20224F B2021 125310 DEEE/
HERBEHERBREHRA—ALTE
AELR FTRB(SEREERERY
REIRF M) 2 % EBE/SHEEEH
izl Lkvd @

Quantified by the Black-Scholes option pricing
model which is one of the methods
commonly used in estimating DLOM.

BRMHER - HINB R ERYES
Bilb ZAERBFBRZTHRAMLSR
BZEBA AL

Estimated based on the median of the control
premium adopted for comparable
transactions.

BETELBRGERBZEGRAE 2P
AL Bkt o

Estimated based on the Company’s experience
with disposal of assets and on industry
benchmarks.

BEAAAHELEE C BB RITEREER
it e

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment assessment for the Xinladao
Group (Continued)

Based on the above approach and key assumptions,
the FVLCOD of the Xinladao Group amounted to
RMB249 milion (2021: RMB283 million) and was
11.1% higher than its carrying amount.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

° If the enterprise value/sales multiple used in the
FVLCOD calculation for the Xinladao Group had
been 0.14 times lower than management’s
estimates at 31 December 2022 (1.25 times
instead of 1.39 times), the FVLCOD of the
Xinladao Group would approximate its carrying
amount.

° If the DLOM used in the FVLCOD calculation for
the Xinladao Group had been 7.5% higher than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2022
(32.5% instead of 25%), the FVLCOD of the
Xinladao Group would approximate its carrying
amount.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their
recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the
Company are of the view that there is no impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
for the Xinladao Group as at 31 December 2022.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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21 HFEREFREE @
(b) BMERKBERENR @

)

FRESBERENM
(#8)
BELEAFEREZER
ROBRESBZARE
BEREEKAB249E BT
A R ¥ (20214 : 283FH &
TARE) REEKAES
11.1%

FERREERBHTE
e MHAEAEHRES
B R A EER LS X
AZbREBEEME

EREHRERER
2022F 12 A31H 2
=t R 2 0.14 5 (B11.25
%M 3E1.391%) » ¥ &
EEEZRARAEBAEAR
HEKAGELER
BHEE -

e (HHEFEMHES
B A xEERLESK
Kz zmsnak
g & E 1 B 12022
F12A31 8 2 {H5H1E
H07.5% (BN32.5% 1M 3k
25%) MHEEERZ
NABERDEKAR
BEERmMERSE -

EEEMRE IEEAZF
BREOBEFAAEAIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued) 21 HEREREEE @

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and (b) BERBERENA @
trademarks (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the FVLLCOD of the Xinladao Group 2021 F12 A31H  FiHESE
amounted to RMB283 million and was lower than its carrying AR EERLDSEKAA283H
amount. As a result, management’s impairment assessment ETARE BEREE@E-
as at 31 December 2021 was analysed as follows: It BEEER2021F 128318 2
BE G TAT
31 December
2021
2021
12A31H
RMB’000
FAR®E
Goodwill (attributable to the 87% parent’s interest) EE (R R AE87 %) 535,436
Unrecognised non-controlling interest in goodwill (Note 1) K #3292 JE 1= AR fE 25 (M 3E1) 80,008
Total goodwil BB 615,444
Carrying amount of identifiable net assets AHERFEEREMAE 314,019
Notionally adjusted carrying amount KERFAEEREE 929,463
Less: recoverable amount (being the FVLCOD) WAk Rl £ E(BEIAREBE
& R A) (283,000
Impairment loss BEEE 646,463
Allocated to: PEE:
Amounts not recognised in the consolidated statement if KR 4ix & 2 E K 25 F NHERZ 2
of comprehensive income: #E -
— Unrecognised non-controlling interest in goodwill — KRR B IR 80,008
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of JR4iR&E 2 E W ZANER 2 £ 88 -
comprehensive income:
— Goodwill (attributable to the 87% parent’s interest) — 792 ({5 & A 5187 % =) 535,436
— Trademarks with indefinite useful life (Note 2) —BEEERAFEAFHZAE
(B7E2) 31,019
Total amount recognised in the consolidated statement R4 & 2 HIWH X NER 2 £ 458
of comprehensive income 566,455
Total impairment loss BEEBEERE 646,463
BRERERAR

“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE022F12A31BILEE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

Notes:

1. The goodwill attributable to the Group’s interest of 87% was
approximately RMB535 million at the acquisition date. Therefore, the
goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interest’s 13% interest was

approximately RMB80 million.

2. Management allocates the remaining impairment loss of approximately
RMB31 million to trademarks with indefinite life and no impairment loss
is allocated to other non-monetary assets of the CGUs (mainly including
property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets), because
management is of the view that the fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use is greater than the respective original carrying value of

these assets.

22 Derivative financial instrument

21 HEREFEE @
(b) BMERKBERENR @

ML

1.

PUEE R E BN E8T%E @
ZHBHRBBETARK -
b EIE R R 13% w2 1R
HWRBOBEETLARKE -

EEERHBTHNINBEETARKZ
BEEBRIREAEERFHNLY
FETENEEMNRESRERS
EXEMZHEMFEREEE(E
EREME  MFE MR RER
HEE) WDHAREEERR/A
AEERDEXASKEBEBEAR
HEBEERBZREREME-

22 fTE€®MI A

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January M1A1H

Fair value change N BEZE
Exchange difference ME N, 2 58

As at 31 December ®12H31H

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory
Limited (the “2020 Investor”, a related party of the Company)
entered into an agreement (the “2020 Investment Agreement”) in
relation to the issuance of convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount up to HK$780,000,000 for a total consideration
equal to the principal amount of the convertible bonds. The 2020
Investment Agreement was approved by the Company’s

shareholders on 28 May 2020.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE
22,543 72,226
(23,754) (47,375)
1,211 (2,308)
22,543

202061 H13H * & 2 7 HUnited
Strength Victory Limited ([2020 & % &

# AR

BZBABT)RBETASR

¥ 7~ 8 780,000,000 7T 2 A] #2 % (&

HEI L ([2020F B &) - K

BERERENRITBRRESFZAEEE-
20204 % & % B 720204 5 A28 H
FEARRRIBREAAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

22 Derivative financial instrument (Continued) 22 fTEE€®mIAEm
Pursuant to the 2020 Investment Agreement, at any time during the BIE2020F & E W A2 AR
2 years commencing from 29 May 2020, the Company may deliver 2020F 5 A 29 H F 1A B R &F A T?E = H%
subscription request(s) to the 2020 Investor requesting the 2020 B A2020FE 1 EHE R B REF -
Investor to subscribe for convertible bonds in the principal amount K220 F W E B R ZERBB KA Ta
as specified in such subscription request(s). As a result, the A ASBRABBRIEES - At
directors of the Company are of the view that the above put option KARIEERERAE LA HHEERERK
constituted a derivative financial instrument for the Company and RANBZTES T E - JEARE AR
should be accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through NRBEFEEEZFHTABEZZSE
profit or loss. A& EE o
The initial fair value of the derivative financial instrument at the REREBEH ZTAEEe T A 296
recognition date which amounted to RMB46,631,000 was chfaﬂﬁz%%,esmooofc/\ﬁﬁiﬂ% B
recognised as a deemed contribution from shareholder and RAERERELE  URERIFEF
recorded in shareholder’s equity on special reserve. Subsequent ua BB ERERN HEZITE S Vﬁﬂ
change in fair value of the derivative financial instrument is TEZALBEEZFSHNEBIPER
recognised in profit or loss.
The Company did not exercise the put option which expired on 28 AKRAAEARITER2022F5 A28H @M
May 2022. As a result, the derivative financial instrument was MZohERE  ArZoTEem T AR
derecognized upon expiry, with a fair value change of EmELITER EALBEZH
RMB23,754,000 recognized in the consolidated statement of 23,754,000T A R ﬁ% RE £2022F 12
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022. ABNBILFEAFEE2ERRRF®
R o
As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the derivative financial MR2021FE12A31H Z T A S/ T
instrument was determined using the binomial valuation model, and By AnBEIIU-_BEAGEERES
the key inputs adopted in the model were as follows: EooMBRENAEANEZEG AR
wm
31 December
2021
20214
12A31H
Conversion price i (g HK$1.180
1.180/8 7T
Share price fi% (& HK$1.050
1.0507% 7T
Expected volatility IELNEIRS 25.67%
Remaining life T &4 F HA 0.41 years
0.414F
Risk-free rate 42 [7 [ ) & 0.18%
BRERERAR

“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

23 Trade and other receivables 23 ERESGRHEAMKIE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE FARK
Trade receivables (a) JEURE 5 7 TE (a) 13,737 15,929
Other receivables (b) H b FE Y FTE (D) 89,743 90,899
Total trade and other receivables FEWE 5 N Hua kB @58 103,480 106,828
Less: provision for expected credit loss B EWE S FIENTERER
allowance for trade receivables BREE (361) (406)
provision for expected credit loss H {th & W 30 18 B9 T8 BA (5
allowance for other receivables BRBE (12,782) (6,193)
Trade and other receivables — net JEUWE 5 M EMFRIE — F5E 90,337 100,229
Including: He:
Current portion BDEA &8 o
Trade receivables — net JEWE 5508 — F R 15,523
Other receivables — net Hfth e Wz — 5 &R 60,451
75,974
Non-current portion JE BN HA &R o
Other receivables — net (c) H A FE U RIE — JFEE(0) 24,255
Trade and other receivables — net EWE S M EMRIE — F5 100,229
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 23 EWE S R EMAKE @
(a) Trade receivables (@) EWE ZRKE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FAR®

934 470
12,803 15,459

13,737 15,929

(361) (406)

Related parties (Note 37) BB 5 (M 3E37)

Third parties E=h

Subtotal NEE

Less: provision for expected credit loss B TR E B kB E
allowance

Trade receivables — net JEWE S FRIE — F8

13,376 15,523

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BREZFEARBEMREZER
BHZRREDTIAT

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE

Within 6 months 61E A AR
Over 6 months HiE6(E A

11,500 12,237
2,237 3,692

13,737 15,929

BRERERERAA
—EZFER @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

23 Trade and other receivables (continued)

e S R R ()

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement for expected credit loss allowance

23 EWE S K HMFIE @
(a) BWE S KE @)

BEEREXRBEZS

As at 31 December
®12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®

As at 1 January ®1A1H

Provision for expected credit loss allowance 78 B 1= F 18 Sk & &

406 309
177 101
(222) (4)

Written off during the year as uncollectible =SSR s = R N g ]
As at 31 December W12 A31H

361 406

Trade receivables are all denominated in RMB.

For the restaurant operation and delivery business, the
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement. For sales of food ingredients, a
credit period not exceeding 180 days is granted to the
majority of customers. The credit period provided to
customers can vary based on a number of factors including
nature of operations and Group’s relationship with the
customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair
value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowance decreased by RMB45,000 to RMB361,000 for
trade receivables during the current reporting period (2021:
The loss allowance increased by RMB97,000 to RMB406,000
for trade receivables during the current reporting period).
Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

W E S HREHAAREE -

REBKERIIEXRHMS A
SEEEEPZEETIENR
R ERREE -NEERMM
FORAZEEPETZHREY
THEBI1BOXK - B TEFZHE
HREERR(BHRELEHER
AEERER ZEE) MAR -

AR REN KRB 2 RIS -
EEEEREASRE AR EEM
B

AEEEBESM B RE EL
FoOH LA BEHERE
K HBRMERKESREFER
GEBEEBREE RARE
HE KBS RBEBEBREE
B 45,0007 A R ¥ %= 361,000
TTARB(2021F : ERE 5K
TE 18 O BB R AR 3R 2 HA RS A8 0
97,0007T A R ® % 406,0007T A
R o M 553.1(0) 5 51 5 78 B &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

23 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

23 EWE S K HMFIE @

(a) BEWE S KE @)

Movement for expected credit loss allowance

(Continued)

Information about the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in

Note 3.1.

Other receivables

BHMERBARGBED
()
BRI E 5 HOARBERAX

BEMAEE@R2ERRR -
SRR LR RER 2 ERER
B3ES.1 o

(b) H fth FE WK IR

Consideration receivable in relation to
partial disposal of investment in
an associate (Note 10(a))
Lease deposits
Amount due from related parties (Note 37(b))

Loans receivable due from third parties (i)
Advance to employees
Others

HEE D
"EZEBNRE
(Kt 3%10(a))

HE%ES

JFEE L B U ROIB
(B 5E37(b))

FEWE = 75 B 3K0)
H’A%{EE

Hi

HEBE QA

Less: provision for expected credit loss
allowance
Other receivables — net

B TRHERBKERE

H fth JE W RIE — R

Note:

0] As at 31 December 2022, the balance represented loans receivable of
RMB6,413,000 (2021: RMB6,413,000) due from certain shareholders
of an associate of the Group, which were repayable in the first half year
of 2022 and bore interest at 7% per annum. As at 31 December 2022,
these loans were past due and classified as Stage 3. As of the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Group is in the
process of negotiating with the respective debtors in relation to the
repayment arrangements of these loans. Based on the information
available to the management, an expected credit loss allowance of
RMB6,413,000 were provided in the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
36,496

32,237

7,577

6,413

1,672

6,604

90,899
(12,782) (6,193)
76,961 84,706
MR2022F 12 A31 B # % A &K

SEEKRKETHERAAIRRZE
6,413,000 A R (20214 :

6,413,0007t A R#) - ZEERE
HR2022F FHFIEE  WIRFF R
T%ET B o H2022F 128310 %
LERERH YELEAIE=
Bl - BEMAEZERET R
*BH AEEBEEEABEKA
RZEERNEE LT EITERS-
EREEEBABS AR & ZE2022
F12A3MBEFE  BEREEH
BHREANTIREMEBBLEE

6,413,0007T A R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 23 EWE S & HMKE @
(c) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, non-current portion () M2022%4 R2021412H31H
mainly comprised lease deposits and loans receivables due JERHIE D T EREHERE X
from related parties. FEUEEHE S B AR o
(d) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of trade (d) 20224 K2021412A318 -
and other receivables approximated their carrying amounts. EWE S REMREBEBZ AL BE
HHEEEMES -
24 Financial assets at fair value through 24 RANREBEEGELEHED
other comprehensive income sTAHMEZAEKREZEH
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®
Unlisted investments — measured at fair value 3E FH#88& — IR A L BETE 2,000
25 Convertible bonds 25 TRKRESH
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY
Current B &
Convertible bonds — interest payable due AMkES — —FREBAZ
within one year FERTF) B 59,801
Non-current FEREI D
Convertible bonds ABKRES 532,024 442,267

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Q

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

25 Convertible bonds (continued) 25

As at 31 December 2021, current portion of the convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds”) issued by the Company to Sonic Tycoon
Limited (the “Investor”) amounted to HK$73,402,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB59,801,000), which represented interest
payable accrued from 23 November 2018 to 23 November 2022 at
the coupon rate of 3% per annum, which was due within one year
since 31 December 2021 (the “2022 Due Interest”).

On 19 December 2022, the Investor sent a notice to the Company,
in which the Investor agreed the Company to postpone the
payment date of the 2022 Due Interest to 23 November 2025. As
at 31 December 2022, current portion of the Convertible Bonds
amounted to HK$18,320,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB16,366,000), which represented interest payable due on 23
November 2023 and was calculated at the coupon rate of 3% per
annum. The remaining amount of the Convertible Bonds were
classified as non-current liabilities.

The major terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds are as
follows:

(i) Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds
at 3% per annum.

(ii) Conversion price

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s
shares at the initial conversion price of HK$1.18 per share,
subject to adjustments. The conversion price will be subject
to adjustment for, amongst others, consolidation, subdivision
or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

ARRES @

M2021E12A31B A A A AE=S
ERAR(EEER] BT ZRKRE
HF(AREHDZRDBLOESEL
73,402,000 7t (10 & 7 #959,801,000
TAR®) 8§ 82018411 A23H #
E2022%F 11 A23H A F E B R3%:t
E2EMAFE - B2021F12 A31H#E
H—F R EIE ([2022 F R ERA &) -

PR2022F 12 A19H - E F M A A
RBEHBEN B4 BKEAEBEAR
A A EE20224F B BR A B Ay 1+ B
Hi 22025411 A23H o 12022412
A31B AR EFN RIS A
18,320,0007% 7T (48 & M #716,366,000
T AR 38R 2023F 11 5238 3
HUNFEE3%TE 2 EMAFE - Al
BEFHRBEDEAIERBARG -

AT B 55 2 £ B IR R AT

i) F=

AR AARF N EI% A A 8
BAEFZFE -

(i) BRE

AHRBRESE AR EBRES
B8 TEB B AR BB
WA FHE - BRENESE
(R B BRNEH FAKRE
Mo mikEEEAL &
Ak - BB~ 18D B R
BBBEH MBS BB RE
Rk RETEMBEMAE -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

25 Convertible bonds (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Availability period for the Company to
issue the Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years commencing
from 13 November 2016 and neither party will have the right
to extend.

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the
seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

On 19 December 2022, the Company sent a notice to the
Investor and obtained the consent from the Investor thereon,
pursuant to which the Company and the Investor agreed that
the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds be extended to
the seventh anniversary of the date of issue (i.e. from 23
November 2023 to 23 November 2025).

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bonds
at an amount equal to the principal amount on the maturity
date, plus accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Convertible Bonds which remain
unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not redeem
the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption
on delisting as described below.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

25 AR ESF @)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EARABTIRRES
2B ¥
KABETABRBRES 2B B
H2016F 11 A13B #£ st A H MW
FoERN—FHEELEE -

A

BROOANBRREFAHRZABESF
F(EEFHEARE)EITES
ZEBAF -

R2022F12 8198 » KR A A%
BEEBT BN TREREER
WIEEHREE - B ARF K
WEERE GBI ES DR H
AEREZ#HTHHABAELBF
(BN 2023411 A 23 H £20254
11 A23H) -

FHEE

BOEERCER HHRIBER
i I URANYNECIE S S N S
AR ES 2 EENEHA
ZAREEE - HINA R BRIEF AR
MEERRIBRIDAZINZAE
HipFERR I REERIR - A QA
AEER AR EED A B
75 - HE T SCRT 42 I 4 2 5
BB 13 e B e By R 10 B BR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

25 Convertible bonds (Continued)

(vij Redemption at the option of the
bondholder

1)

Redemption on change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the
bondholder will have the right at its option, to require
the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such
holder’s Convertible Bonds.

The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent
amount which is the outstanding principal amount, plus
the amount of interest representing 8% of the internal
rate of return of the principal amount of the Bond from
the date of issue to the payment date (the “Early
Redemption Amount”).

Redemption on Delisting

In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the bondholder shall have the right, at its
option, to require the Company to redeem, in whole but
not in part only, such bondholder’s Convertible Bonds
at the Early Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at the
issue date. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option and recognised in shareholders’ equity on
special reserve.

25 AR ESF @)
(vi) EHBEAREED

(1)

BEHDZA
(EEUIEZ Y g

EHEEERED
BAERBERER  EHH
AABREBTEEERA
RABEZBELEHEAZ
2H(ELFEHBH) THRRK
% -

BOERSAREEATER
ZETEEEEMLES
BETHHUENRBME
A& BA LR X%
ZMEEB(EAMERS
Bl

BR he2 B B (2
AR RBRH T BEES
MR ET R T EEER
BHAMEE AEFSE
ABHEBITEEERAR
ARRENEDSEEE X
BEHREAAZZH(ELIF
) AR ES -

REERBRETAHSE
HFZMGHMEAE P

J
SRESRBEOIEEEBREL FRR R
ERHERRERTER -

BRERZERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

25 Convertible bonds (continued)

The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 are as follows:

25 AR ESF @)

H Z20214F N2022%F12 8318 It F
B AR EEAKRT D 2T :

Liability Equity
component component Total

=R BB &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FAR®E FARE FAR
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 81 H 485,425 104,294 589,719
Interest expenses (i) B F () 32,765 — 32,765
Exchange difference P& H Z % (16,122 — (16,122)
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 502,068 104,294 606,362
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%F1 81H 502,068 104,294 606,362
Interest expenses (i) BB X () 39,971 - 39,971
Modification (i) 1 24 (i) (43,688) - (43,688)
Exchange difference E X =58 50,039 - 50,039
As at 31 December 2022 HR2022F 12 A31H 548,390 104,294 652,684
Notes: Bt 5 -

(i)

(iii)

The interest expense of RMB39,971,000 (2021: RMB32,765,000) was
calculated using the effective interest method.

As disclosed in (iv) above, on 19 December 2022, the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds was extended from 23 November 2023 to 23 November
2025. Based on management’s assessment, the above extension of maturity
date does not constitute a substantial modification of the Convertible Bonds,
and therefore does not result in an extinguishment of the Convertible Bonds.

Accordingly, on 19 December 2022, the Group adjusted the carrying amount
of the Convertible Bonds to the present value of the cash flows under the
revised terms using the original effective interest rate (being 7.79%), which
amounted to HK$537,870,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB481,787,000).
The difference between the adjusted carrying amount and the previous carrying
amount immediately prior to the modification, which amounted to
HK$48,906,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB43,688,000), is recognized
as a deemed contribution from shareholder and recorded in shareholder’s
equity on special reserve.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted.
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(i)

(iii)

# B B3 389,971,000 A R # (20214 :
32,765,000 70 A R #) Jh 5% B B BRI R A5
=i

N b3 (v) Bt - 72202212 5198 » A
B ES ML BB S B20234F 11 A23H
ERZE2025F11 230 - IRIEEEBH T
iy EHUE R A B HA B I SR A 3 AT R AR
BEHEMNENER B TEEBARRE
FRK o

Hit - R2022F 12 4198 - A& EF AR
BERFR(B17.79 %) HE LR ESHRE
BELSETRRETZRERERE - A
537,870,0007% 7t (48 & X #7481,787,000 7T
ARE) KARKEEAREEBRANZ
4% 7] B T {8 2 1 2 5848,906,0007% 7T (18 &
M #)43,688,0007T A REE) HER AR AR E
FE WEAKRIFEE ARE R -

H £2022F K2021F 12 A31H Ik F & -
A7 4 AT A AR 1 A e i o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

26 Cash and bank balances

26 RE RIRITEER

27

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

HeRBLEENEEALERSE Y
HeRENEAASEARANZE
BB 1T 17 4K o 25 17 SRR 0 A 48 A
BB o

RelReEFEMUTIERE:

As at 31 December

RMB AR
HKD BT
UsD ETT

As at 31 December 2022, restricted cash of RMB1,707,000 (2021:
RMB961,000) was denominated in RMB.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

M12H831H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR% FARE
32,587 56,064
43 1,822
1,467 4,685
34,097 62,571
R2022F12A31H R & IR &

1,707,0007T A R ¥ (2021 £ : 961,000
TARE)AAREE-

27 BoREBEEGFEAHEE

SFABBCEREE

As at 31 December

Investment in wealth management products

RIEMEMZIIRE

M12831H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE
66,721 57,817
AEERERAR
—E-CFER



174

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

27

28

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all
denominated in RMB.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year. The fair values of
investments in wealth management products are based on cash
flow discounted using the expected rate of return (ranged from
1.8%—-2.6% per annum) based on management estimates and are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). Management is
not aware of any observable significant change in macro-economic
environment or fluctuation in short-term market interest rate as at
31 December 2022 that may significantly affect the expected rate
of return of the unlisted wealth management product invested by
the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Other current assets and other
non-current assets

28

o5
13

AREE B H &8
BECSRMEE@m

BEtELEEeH ABE
EHYUARESE-

Koy
Imlm

gl

ok
g
N\,

52

BI

2/

& Rh 2

H*>
/lﬂbs b
pil

BEAREBEFEAEZHTABREZ

CREEERTR EMBETETZ
ﬁ,ﬂﬁ%uﬂxﬁ WAl E—FRED -
BYERKREZAREBEIDAEANRER
B REBEFEHAERD®RE(FX
NF18%E26%) TR Z2EERER
B YT EAABERBREIHZAN (T
3.3) c R2022F 12 A31H B B W
THEBERBEERSBEENIBEE
ANEMKEHMSFE LI FE -
AR EmErEAEEMREIELET
B ERZBRHLBHRE -

RBERH ARz REA
ZER AR BEFEEHEEZFHT AE

R RBMAEZIREME-
HttRBEEREMIFR
BHEE

As at 31 December

Prepayments (a) TE K TE (a)
Deductible VAT input AR AT TR

R12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARK
26,876 29,893
2,113 29,447
28,989 59,340
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

28 Other current assets and other 28
non-current assets (Continued)

HMRBEEREMIER
BHEE®@

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARM

Non-current IE R B
Current mED

1,843 951
27,146 58,389

28,989 59,340

(a) Prepayments

(a) ENRE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE

Prepayments for raw materials Rk Z FBAS KB
Prepayment for property, plant and ME BELREZ
equipment BB
Amounts due from related parties JFE Uy A B 75 A
(Note 37(b)) (FF5E37(b))
Prepayments for software and digital HHEREFRG 2
services TEAT RIAE
Prepayments for rental MEZBEMNFE
Prepayments for property management ¥ ¥ &R BN AL EE
fees and utility expenses B A2 ENRE
Others HAtb

20,315 14,738

1,843 951

1,736 6,312

598 898
366 1,325

227 3,892
1,791 1,777

26,876 29,893

(b) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, non-current portion
mainly comprised prepayments for property, plant and
equipment.

(b) #2022% K2021E 128318 -
ERBAP»ETEBREDE BE
Rz TEFRIE -

BRERZERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

29 Trade and other payables 20 ENESREMKE
Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENESREMTBIEZEREE SE
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period ERFERYRAZANSE -E5
obtained for trade purchases is 30 to 180 days. BEZFHYBREIA30E180K °
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Trade payables (a) FE B S FIE (a) 53,855 59,166
Other payables and accruals (b) Hith JE A 0B M FEIR B A (D) 114,125 119,676
167,980 178,842
(a) Trade payables (@) BNEZ KA
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®
Related parties (Note 37(b)) R 7 (M 5E37(0) 7,604 6,608
Third parties =7 46,251 52,558
53,855 59,166
The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice ENESRBEBRNRERRERE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HEIZEBE® T :
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®
Within 6 months 618 A LAA 52,565 57,473
Over 6 months 618 A U + 1,290 1,693
53,855 59,166
Trade payables are all denominated in RMB. ERESHREZ2HHUAREE
G-
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

29 Trade and other payables (Continued)

e S R R ()

29

(b) Other payables and accruals

ENSE S Rk HEMRE @
(b) EttENRERFEAREH

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Wages, salaries and other employee TE FelhEMEERT
benefits 23,165 25,373
Deposit received in relation to partial MO HEBERFIRE
disposal of investment in an associate W B 2 % % (B 5 10(a)(i))
(Note 10(a)(ii) 20,000 20,000
Receipt in advance in relation to capital BN —HEBERRIREZ
reduction of an associate (Note (i)) TE W sk (B EE() 19,000 19,000
Payables for renovation costs FEEE{E B A 17,067 21,276
Payables for franchisee FET INBE g 1A 5,754 5,661
Tax payables (excluding current income FERTFIE (N B 15 B A
tax liabilities) Frisfiats) 5,722 5,147
Payables for rental expense ERAFAEE R 5,002 2,459
Payables for utility expenses R AREEER 2,366 2,332
Accrued auditor’s remuneration FEST A% XA B & 2,153 3,095
Payables for consulting expenses FEftEAE R 1,068 1,316
Payables for transportation expenses FEft 2@ E A 779 1,479
Payables for other property, plant and EmmE BERKRE
equipment B~ 3RE 611 571
Amount due to a related party (Note 37(0)) & 1 B8 B 75 70 I8 (B 5£37(b)) 305 2,000
Interest payable FE S FI B 75 75
Others E b 11,058 9,892
114,125 119,676
Note: B 5

0] As at 31 December 2022, the amount represented a deposit of RMB19
million received by the Group from an associate which is in the process
of capital reduction. Upon completion of such capital reduction, the
Group’s investment in this associate will be reduced and an amount of
RMB19 million will be returned to the Group. Management expects the
above capital reduction will be completed during the year ended 31

December 2023.

(C) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value of trade
and other payables approximated their carrying amounts.

(c)

[0} R2022F12 A31 8 » ZRIEEARE
EE—HBEEARIRRZES198
BTLTARYE ZHE QAR EETR
BoFmBTKE  AEERZ
BEARZIREBBRRL - B
AEBEBEREIOEETARE -
EIRE TS LR & 15 E £ 2023
F12A81BIEFERTEMK °

MR2022%F K2021 412 A31H « B
B9 REMBRBZ AABERLRE
HEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

30 Deferred taxation

The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

30 IE B IE

BEEMRSREE/(BE)DWAOT

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSMEE 61,368 45,850
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFGEHRERE (114,021) (114,021)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as ENELERENREEZGB WM T :
follows:
Payroll and Customer
accrued Amortisation loyalty Unused tax
expenses differences  program losses Leases Others Total
TR EF AEA
&R HHEEE L¥HE HBEES HE Hitr At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARE®E TARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H
3,257 2,876 683 18,768 5,221 2,755 33,560
(Charged)/creditedto (R iB#MNK),/
profit or loss HFAER (2,614) (741) 672) 17,736 540 (1,959) 12,290
At 31 December 2021 A2021%12A31H 643 2,135 11 36,504 5,761 796 45,850
(Charged)/credited to (R HIK),/
profit or loss FAER (312) (928) 12 16,192 994 (440) 15,518
At 31 December 2022 A2022F12F 31 H 331 1,207 23 52,696 6,755 356 61,368
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

30 JE & B IE ()

EREEFEGHEEREDMT

30 Deferred taxation (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as

follows:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment on change on
intangible investment Amortisation

assets property  differences Others Total

BREE REYHE
AREERAE 2AEEED M ER Hit A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY TARY TARY FARE TFAR®

At 1 January 2021 A2021F1H81H (121,790) — — (121,790)
Credited to profit or loss &+ A Bz 7,769 — — 7,769
At 31 December 2021 "2021F12H831H (114,021) — — (114,021)
At 31 December 2022 42022412831 H (114,021) — — (114,021)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had tax losses of RMB200,855,000 (2021:
RMB167,886,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as management considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB112,223,000 would expire through year
2022 to 2026 (2021: RMB77,375,000 would expire through year
2022 to 2026), the amount of RMB88,632,000 (2021:
RMB90,511,000) with no expiry date.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB21,363,000 (2021:
RMB29,017,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

EEFTSHREETE FERRBERBEF
mOBEBARRERD & F &R mt
Fr 4 88 2 T 75 B 18 1E 1 3R o 102022
F12A31H AEELAE 2 HRBEE
18 /200,855,000 T A R ¥ (20214 :
167,886,0007C AR¥) IR EBEEER
AEABERAREAZSEHFEEZ
AREEEMN W ABEBRRARL
TRIE & E - H#112,223,0007C A R ¥
#2022 F Z 20264 @ i (2021 4F ¢
77,375,0007C A R & #§ R 2022F =
2026 %F J& ) + 1M88,632,0007C A R #
(20214 : 90,511,0007T A R ¥ ) & 5|
HIR o

B4 B 1 TS B 0A 0 B 2008 4F 1
B1E#E - R B E A R AT IR F
ERZBEREHTHWERBTIE AR
REBEEMNIEF RO TR EEZBZE
- R R B R & K% ] g & B
TRUEESE WSRAMBRRITER
RERNTENBARRAEN T
M 2 %821,363,000 7T A R ¥ (2021 4F :
29,017,0007T A R #) 5 12 1% 1E 77 18 #
1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

31 Borrowings 31 B

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARM
Current BN &R
Secured B
Bank borrowings (c) RITIER(0) 5,000
Guaranteed BER
Bank borrowings (d) R1T & TR () —
Unsecured and unguaranteed IR A SRR
Bank borrowings H|ITE XK 10,000
(a) Maturity of borrowings (a) B ZE H
At 31 December, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as M12A318  AEEBE 2 ERER
follows: TH B EE
Bank borrowings
RITER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®E
12 months or less 121 A s AT~ 14,820 15,000
(b) Weighted average annual interest rates (b) MMEFHER R
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021
Bank borrowings H|ITIE K 4.35%
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

31

32

Borrowings (Continued)

(c) Asat31 December 2022, bank borrowings of RMB3,820,000
(81 December 2021: RMB5,000,000) were secured by
certain property, plant and equipment of the Group (Note

17(b)).

(d) Asat 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of RMB1,000,000
were guaranteed by a third party (31 December 2021: nil).

Contract liabilities

31 B wW

() M20224F12831H RITE XK
3,820,0007T A R ¥ (2021412 A
31H :5,000,0007t A R ¥ ) i &
SEETYME  BERZEEER
(B EE17(0)) °

(d) mo0o22%E 128318 R 17 & &

1,000,000t A RE B E = 1EHE
R(2021F12 A31 8 : &) -

32 SHNEE

As at 31 December

Prepaid card

Customer loyalty programme

Advances from customers

Advances from group-purchasing websites
Amounts due to related parties (Note 37(b))
Others

R12H31H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
AN 60,154 60,820
E P a2 102 44
BEE R 1,673 2,473
| B 48 Uk B 3K 100 267
JE 15 BB 5 3B (FT 3£ 37(b)) 128 —
Hity 822 270

62,979 63,874

The transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied has not been disclosed, as
substantially all of our contracts have a duration of one year or less.

As at 31 December 2022, there was no significant change in

contract liabilities as compared to 31 December 2021.

DERERBEEKKED REEKET
EEMRZEREBREE  JDARK
PBABINENHB—FHIAT -

M2022FE12A31E A B ERK
202112 A1 B EE A EH) -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER

©



Q
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

32 Contract liabilities (continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

32 EHNEE@Wm
() BAVBEEBEZZKA :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARME
Revenue recognised that was included inthe i ABI# & 41 B (64582
contract liability balance at the beginning of B #ZZYWA
the period
Prepaid card B 53,826
Customer loyalty programme EEEAHEE 2,687
Advance from customers P B 1,436
Advances from group-purchasing websites BE 48 uh 23R 153
Others Hfth 122
58,224
33 Deferred government grants 33 iE L B S 18 B
Year ended 31 December
BZ12BA31BLEE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®E
Opening net amount of the year FHFRR 1,380 3,167
Additions NE — 1,159
Amortisation B 8y (197) (2,946)
1,183 1,380

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
receive government grants (2021: RMB1,159,000) for the
establishment of restaurants and purchase of manufacturing
machineries. Such government grants were recorded as deferred
government grants and would be credited to the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the corresponding
assets using straight-line method.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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HE2022F12A31B ILFE - KEE
VESHAIERELES £ E®RIED
X JF 78 Bh (2021 4F : 1,159,000 A R
¥) o 3% E U 8 Bh B 5t AR T BUR
B WHREREREZEREEE A
FRFHRNFAZEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

e S R R ()

34 Share-based payments

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme remained in force for a period of 10 years from
adoption of such scheme had expired on 17 May 2021.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to () any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 82,500,000 shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first commence
on the Stock Exchange and approximately 5.23% of the Shares in
issue at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of the
shares of the Company in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company was obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

34 LR BERNR

AKRARIRIE —BR2011F58180 &
BZARABE CBERMBREST S
) UREESREERALT G
B Mz B R 10F "B R - I
BRR2021FE5 817 BJEM °

BRIBEFTE - ARRESEEHBEMRI()
iN/NEET eI NI B2/ Sl N - d/NE]
EZARZHBAR(BBAR] Z
ARMES - EEHERB: HHZTmA
BEAAFRIKBBE AR ZERES
EEHEM AW 2REE s
AARFBEARZEMNES  ES
SEMEEHRAB AT KVEAER
REETHATZCEMANER  #HER
SEEETHREAHBE R QAR

,T/\ °

EERFZERESNERERE BE
ARARNEN- BEEREFEMREHZ
BREMSPEZARNR TS RGEE
T4 8 :B82,500,000 & B 17+ 15 A%
MEARBEXMEERTMANEREE %
ITHRH10% R AFHRABE EHITRMD
#495.23% B FE R #5 B 22 P T AR Al
FEBARNT B A &R E[12
8 A R E P EMAE B A L 2 B8R
TS RZARNRESRHDEE =15
BBERZI2EASPHMzRE—A D%
TARRERD Z1% °

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

e S R R ()

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (i) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the

options.

(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 under
this scheme and their weighted average exercise prices are

34 URDABERSTR@

BREATRAATDEEBEEZEHRY
M (ZHRGHETEHREREER B
EEF10FA - X BREBRERN TITE
AIBAREZ&RERR(ME)) AT
E-BhENEZAFERNBNRZ
BATEL THEEHEFERNEE
EHEABERTIEBEZES
WA B D 2 EME (i) H PR LB
REE MM RARERMINZE
P W T (B ¢ e (i) AR £ 0 BB B R BB AR
BEMmMESEXAEBIME AR
BRI ZFHFRETIE-

(@) EEBRESE
H 20224 N2021F12A31H
IFE REAGFEHERTEZ
EREHE RENEFHTERE

as follows: ZEEMT
2022 2021
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per Number of price per Number of
share option Iai[eiE  share option options
BHERE Tt iE i
FETEE BREZNE PRSSEEdEN: Y 1 ¢!
HK$ (Thousands) HK$  (Thousands)
T (F 1) BT (F5)
As at 1 January R1HA1H 1.08 23,680 1.08 31,573
Forfeited during the year 4 A8 Uk - — 1.08 (7,893)
As at 31 December w12 A31H 1.08 23,680 1.08 23,680

Exercisable at
31 December

W12 A31 B Al 171

No options expired during the periods covered by the above

tables.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued) 34 URAPAERSTR@
(a) Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued) (@) EERBREE @
Share options outstanding at 31 December 2022 have the R2022F 12 A31H M K 17 F &
following expiry date and exercise prices: pE i BIEAE RITEEWNT

Number of Number of

options options

Exercise price 31 December 31 December

Exercise Period (per share) 2022 2021

BREHE 8 IR #E 21 B

2022 F 2021 £

TR TEEER) 128318 12 A31H

HK$ (Thousands) (Thousands)

BT (F 1) (F1@)

From 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024 HK$1.08 4,736 4,736
B2019F12 A31 H £20245 12 A30H 1.087% 7T

From 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025 HK$1.08 4,736 4,736
B 202012 A31 H £2025%5 12 A30H 1.087% 7T

From 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2026 HK$1.08 4,736 4,736
B20219F12 31 H£2026 512 A30H 1.087% 7T

From 31 December 2022 to 30 December 2027 HK$1.08 4,736 4,736
B20229F12 A31 H£2027 512 A30H 1.087% 7T

From 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028 HK$1.08 4,736 4,736
202312 A31 H £20284%5 12 A30H 1.087% 7T

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options 202212 A31H » HARITERE

outstanding at 31 December 2022 is 4 years (2021: 5 years). BREZIMEEHGB TNAENFEEA

44F (20214 1 5EF) »

BRERERERAA
—EZFER @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

e S R R ()

(b) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 11 November 2019 with a duration of 5
years commencing from the adoption date, subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme rules, the Board may
select any employee(s) (including without limitation any
executive director) of any member of the Group to participate
in the Share Award Scheme and determine the number of
shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) to the
respective selected grantees (or such number of Awarded
Shares as amended by the Board at its absolute discretion),
the applicable vesting date and make an award out of the
pool of issued shares held by a professional trustee (the
“Trustee”) to be appointed to administer the Share Award
Scheme to any selected grantee. In determining the Awarded
Shares for a selected grantee, the Board may take into
consideration matters including (without limitation), the
general financial condition of the Group the performance and
contribution of the relevant selected grantee and any other
matter which the Board considers relevant. The Awarded
Shares will only comprise existing shares which are
purchased from the open market by the Trustee out of cash
contributed by the Company. The vesting and transfer of
Awarded Shares to selected grantees are subject to the
compliance with the Company’s articles of association and all
applicable laws and regulations (including without limitation,
the Listing Rules and the public float requirements thereunder
and the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs).

The maximum number of Awarded Shares shall not exceed 4%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time. As
at the date of this annual report, such 4% limit represents
63,146,560 shares of the Company.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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34 URBPAERSR @
(b) MR 1D 28 =t &

QA R2019F 11 A 11 H R 49
it SR EVET B ([t R EDET E1))
BERMNB BB ABAEST
ERESEREBERGEBE W
IR AT RER TR B IE - R ip 88
BsrEINRE A)REETREE
%@E@i%ﬁ%h{ﬁﬁ %
BESEAAEENIFELE
&%"Exﬁ(ﬁ KiyBAEERE
—SBERS|IGEAE -

REBRNDZBAER EFE
AEEARKEERKE QA FH
EHEEC@%@T@EH%
ER)2 MR ERHE WE
ERMEEEEXLBEARDOR
NBB(RBEN)(AES
SERBBETNXFTERRN
2R EANREBEREY RKEH
REERNDEBAIEEANE
EXRANEEADFHRD #
1T B0t AR fa 38 T 5238 A B
HERE EEEMEEXEAR
LW RBERNIK EFEEERE
EHEE HBBEERRR)
AEBEBRBYBMN HEAEE
XBAZRALERMNALRESZS
M%H@ZEHﬁM$ﬂoﬁ®
B EBREIFEARNER
%Wﬁ%@@ﬁﬁ%t%fmﬁ
By - REIRMDERE N EE
TREEXBZARETAAAZA
BERAA M ERARE KA
RBEEIRREMARA LA
BRZRARFEREREARRAF
WkE - a6t R EIRETRI) -

HERMESH8E FEFBEBEAA
AN EBEITRA Z4% - R
FHRBH ZARHEBEHEER
63,146,560 % 2~ 2 Bl e 1 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held by it under the Share Award Scheme. All
cash income and the sale proceeds of non-scrip distribution
declared in respect of a share held upon the trust under the
Share Award Scheme will be applied towards (a) the payment
of the fees, costs and expenses of the trust and (b) the
remainder, if any, remain as part of the trust fund.

On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an
aggregate of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing
approximately 2.75% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019) to three selected
grantees (Awardees”). The amount of contribution by the
Awardees for the relevant Awarded Shares shall be HK$0.54
per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average closing price
per share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business days
immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.
Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been
fulfiled, such Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively.

Movement of the shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

34 LURGBGAERSIR@
(b) BB B (@)

EEATNGTEERERD ZE
AEmAEZEMBRO ZRERE-
REBEED ZEFERATEERE
Bt T 2R B9 FE A B AR 9 TR B9
FrE RS WA R EMERER
AR EFEHRE - KA R
B 3 K (o) B4 B8 (i B ) 15 1R BB 1E
EREESHN D -

MR2019FE 11 A1 EEE:3%)

M-REEXBAERADA
% H 43,413,260 J% 22 B BE 10 (4R
B R AR QD F R2019F12 A31 H
BETRABE Z42.75%) - &
A EEERROIELRNSE
1 B SR 2 B A% 19 0.54 7% T (BD
B D PR B2 42 4% o 52 B A% 15 A 20 1E
EEAZERFHRTEL1.08
BILZ50%) BT B R BEZ
EREHDEER  BE 2 BB
REN D 78 7 B 20194 ~ 2020
20214 ~ 20224 K& 20234 12
A31HS AEMBEEHARERA
SRIE -

B E20224F 2021412 831H
IEFERER M R 8 E LK
2 EBIMT

As at 1 January

wW1A1H

Forfeited during the year R 258 I

As at 31 December

W12 H31H

2022

Average
exercise
price per
awarded
share
R ER
TEE
HK$

T

0.54

0.54

(Thousands)

2021
Average
exercise
Number of price per Number of
awarded awarded awarded
shares share shares
SRR
=g | & 17 33 b35)
::dvig - ¢=| TIEE 17 81 B
HK$  (Thousands)
(1) &I (F)
35,520 0.54 43,413
- 0.54 (7,893)
35,520 0.54 35,520
BRERERAR

—E-CFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

34 Share-based payments (Continued) 34 URAPAERSTR@
(c) Expenses arising from share-based c) URBAERZARK
payment transactions SEEZHEX
Total expenses arising from share-based payment H £20224F K2021F12 A31H
transactions recognised during the years ended 31 December FEEEREREERGBNNE X —IF
2022 and 2021 as part of employees benefit expenses were DX EERZNRRSE
as follows: EzRAZT@BENT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

SN FARE

Share option scheme REfe kst 2l 1,044 1,033
Share award scheme R 1D 2B =t 2l 1,831 2,341

2,875 3,374

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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35 Cash flow information 35 ReREER
(a) Cash generated from operation (@) REEXEKFEHRE

For the year ended
31 December

BZE12A31ALEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
FARYE FAR®
Loss before taxation A ATE R (182,179) (665,685)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 12) e R (fE12) 112,296 144,641
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #7 % - kB & 5 & FE
(Note 17) (Mt&E17) 748 13,908
Impairment of Right-of-use assets EREEERE 3,373 -
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible HELEMELEERE
assets (Note 21) (ff3E21) = 566,455
Amortisation of deferred government grants 3 %E I i # B 46
(Note 33) (MF3E33) (2,946)
Finance expenses-net (Note 9) B & O FRE (MY 529) 47,959
Gain on partial disposal and dilution of B e REEE A R A
investments in associates (Note 10) &z Wz (HsE10) (82,041)
Impairment losses on investment in an BMENTRRENREREE
associate (Note 20) (Mf37E20) = 2,871
Share of loss/(profit) of associates (Note 20)  fE{FEE & A R BB
G ) (ff 5E20) 19,895 (1,569)
Non-cash employee benefits expense — IREEEBMAL —
share based payments (Note 34) LARR 19 B E B 3R
(M 7E34) 2,875 3,374
Loss on fair value change on derivative financial $7T4 &€/ T A AR BE
instrument (Note 22) FH)E1E (M 522) 23,754 47,375
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME  WEREE
equipment (Note 8) 518 (M7E8) 2,664 6,269
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (Note 8) & {# F8 # & &= U 25
(FF=E8) (2,522) (4,892)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance for & gt & E HFE Hi5 BB &
financial assets, net e F R 6,766 6,518
Net exchange differences (Note 8) b W ZF 5 (M) (309) 1,506
Investment income on financial assets at fair ~ F A 4 BEE 2 A H# &)
value through profit or loss (Note 6) SFABEEZERERA
(M 7E6) (1,706) (1,684)
Interest income on loans (Note 6) BERF B WA (H7E6) (222) (969)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other JEWE 5 &M H b FRIE
receivables (3% hn) 9,046 (168)
Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets — E fih & & & E w4~
€l 31,582 (934)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAGEm) 11,024 (2,897)
(Increase)/decrease in contract liabilities AHAREGEM),wWS (895) 4,730
Decrease in trade and other payables BB 5 RE M RIER D (4,958) (15,716)
Cash generated from operations REEBRMSHES 82,892 66,109
BRERERAR

—E-CFEH
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HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

e S R R ()

35 Cash flow information (continued) 35

(b) Net debt reconciliation

BEREER @)
(b) B FEYR

As at 31 December

M12831H

2022
RMB’000
FARY

34,007
66,721
(14,820)

(548,390)

(218,162)

Cash and cash equivalents HeEMREZEY
Liquid investments mEMEE
Borrowings — repayable within one year B ——FRNEE
Convertible bonds AR ES

Lease liabilities HEBE

Net debt (ER =

(680,554)

Cash and liquid investments

RERRBERE

100,818

(14,820)
(218,162)
(548,390)

Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERRE -8
Gross debt — variable interest rates BSRE — 28
Convertible bonds AT ES

Net debt BB TR

(680,554)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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2021
RMB’000
TAR®

62,571

57,817

(15,000)
(502,068)
(284,118)

(680,798)

120,388
(15,000)
(284,118)
(502,068)

(680,798)



For the year ended 31 December 2022

Q

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

HE2022F 12 A3 B ILEE

35 Cash flow information (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

(c)

35 HEREER @
(b) EFFEHER@®

Borrowings
Liquid  due within Lease Convertible
Cash investments 1year liabilities bonds Total
—-£R
Be REBMERE IMGER HESE TRRES &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
TAR® TARK TFAR®E TFAR® FTARE TAREK
Net debt as at R2021F1 8182
1 January 2021 B BE 123,741 27,931 (16,200) (316,165  (485,425)  (666,118)
Cash flows BeneE (58,580) 29,818 1,200 118,994 — 91,432
Acquisition — leases WiE—-HE - — —  (101,208) —  (101,208)
Currency translation EBmE =R
differences (2,590) — — — 16,122 13,632
Other non-cash movements  E #h 3£ 3 4 & &) - 68 - 14,261 (32,765)  (18,436)
Net debt as at R20215E128318 2
31 December 2021 B BE 62,571 57,817 (15,000 (284,118)  (502,068)  (680,798)
Cash flows ReRE (28,783) 8,397 180 76,965 — 56,759
Acquisition — leases Wi —-HE — — — (39,412) — (39,412
Currency translation EEhEEE
Differences 309 — — — (50,039) (49,730)
Other non-cash movements  E 4 3E35 4 & - 507 - 28,403 3,717 32,627
Net debt as at R2022F 128318 2
31 December 2022 B EE 34,007 66,721 (14,820) (218,162)  (548,390)  (680,554)

Significant non-cash transactions

(i) The purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB17,678,000 have not been settled as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB21,847,000).

(i)  Refer to Note 18 and Note 35(b) for the addition to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities respectively.

(c) EXFBRERS

U)

(i)

» 2022412 A 31 8
BEDE BREERZHE
17,678,000 7T A R # (2021
4 :21,847,0007C A R # )
i REEE ©

E@EEMNERAEEE LM
EaE BFHon2EKE
18 K B 3E35(b) °

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

36 Share capital 36 B
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE -}
HK$’000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: IREEO0.10% T2 EiBAK -
Authorized: ET
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 R2021F1 418 »
and 31 December 2022 2021F12 A31 8 &
2022412 A31 H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount Amount
ZEREE o ok
HK$’000 RMB’000
FExT FARS
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022 2021 4F % 2022 £
12A31H 1,578,664,000 157,866 133,023

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(a) Significant Transactions with related

parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

37 BB RBEEFEE

() HBEBLT ZEARS

ERAEE T EITIATR S ¢

2022 2021

Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000

BEEEB % REME TAR® TARE

Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest accrued on 39,971 32,765

convertible bonds
ETERARA SN ARRESEHE
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing) Significantly influenced by key Management service fee 413
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BentEER L R)ERAT ARRFEERABABAYE EERBER
Xin Liang Ji Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controlling interests ~ Purchase of goods (i) 15,003
("Xin Liang Ji") of a subsidiary

FRER@MKRIER)ERAF(ERE]) BB D Rz SRR 2 2 BEEM)

Zigong Yanweiyuan Food Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controlling interests ~ Purchase of goods (i) 944
of a subsidiary

BEERRRRBRAA BB AR SRR S BEEM)

Shandong Yudaoyuan Biotechnology Co. Ltd Significantly influenced by key Purchase of raw materials -
managements of the Company from (i)

LWRBBERENNEERAF ARRFEERABABAYE BERMH()

Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Sales of goods 34
managements of the Company

BeHRAMIOER)ERAR ARAFEERABASAYE EmEE

Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Purchase of raw 661
managements of the Company materials (i)

B2HRAMIER)BRAR ARAFEERABASAYE BERMH()

Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Purchase of warehousing 1,807
managements of the Company services (i)

BeHERAMIOLR)BRARA ARAIFEERABAERYE BERRREN

Quanjincheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key Purchase of ingredient -
managements of the Company processing services (i)

BeHERAMIOER)ERARA ARAFEERABASAYE BEMHIMIRA()

BRERBRAA

—E-CFEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

37 BBRBEIFEE @

37 Related and connected party disclosures
(Continued)

(a) Significant Transactions with related
parties (Continued)

(@) HEB A ZE AR S @)

The following transactions occurred with related parties: HEBAETUTRS (&)

(Continued)

2022 2021
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE L8 B% XH%E FARM TARH
Beijing Tianshuilai Catering Management Co., Ltd Associate Provision of services 112
IRRKRERERERDA BERT RERE
Spicy Foook Associate Provision of services 24
MHEE Bana RERS
Yujian Xiaomian Associate Provision of services 92
BRIV BE DA RERS
Quanwei (Beijing) International Investment Significantly influenced by key Provision of services 33

Management Co., Ltd. managements of the Company

ERGERBERREERERDA ARAFEERABASAYE RERTS
Seesaw Associate Provision of services 42
il BERE RERS
Pizza Marzano (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by key (Repayment of loans)/ (2,000) 2,000

BEHEZR(LBERRA
Pizza Marzano (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd.
ELHER(LB)ERAR

Spicy Foook
MEBE
Spicy Foook
MEBE

Spicy Foook
fREE

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

managements of the Company
ARRTEERABAEAYE

Significantly influenced by key
managements of the company

AARERERARAEAYE

Associate

il YNG

Associate

BERF

Associate
3N

Ioang received
(BEER)/BZEER

Sales of goods
EmEE

Purchase of raw materials

BERMH

Provision of loans
REEH

Interest income

MEHA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(Continued)

(a) Significant Transactions with related

parties (Continued)

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

37 BBRBEIFEE @

(@) HEBAEZEARS @)

HEBDETATIRS - (8)

(Continued)

2022 2021
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE L8 B% REME FARM TARH
Shenzhen Panda Hot Catering Service Co., Ltd Associate Provision of loans 1,300 -
AT RREEERRBERAA BERT RHFEER
Shenzhen Panda Hot Catering Service Co., Ltd Associate Interest income 40 —
RIIT R R ERRBERAA il NG| FEHA
Shenzhen Jiezhi Catering Management Co., Ltd Associate Provision of loans -
AT REERERERRA BE DA REER
Shenzhen Jiezhi Catering Management Co., Ltd Associate Interest income -
RITHREERERER DA - UNS| MEKA
Shenzhen Jiezhi Catering Management Co., Ltd Associate Loans received -
AT REERERERDA BERTE BEER
Shenzhen Jiezhi Catering Management Co., Ltd Associate Interest expense -
AT REERERERDA) BERE MEHX
Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing) Associate Sales of goods -

Co., Ltd.

SERAAEREER)ERDT i YN EmEE
Note: Bt 5%

0] During the year ended 31 December 2022, the above transactions
constituted connected transactions under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

[0} HE2022F 1231 HIEFE » Lt
ROBREBHERHHERAD A
FHELETMHRNEBT2H@ERS -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from
transaction with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

(b) E2
*

Assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables — current (j)

Other receivables — non-current (i)
Other current assets — prepayments

BE

W & 5 3R IA

H i & WK IR — BIEA()

H i & WK IR — SR B HA (i
Hit REEE — BN HIA

Notes:

(i)

As at 31 December 2022, the balance mainly included: (1) loans
receivable due from an associate amounting to approximately RMB2.6
million (including the principals and related interests), which was
guaranteed by the equity interest of the associate, bore interest at 5%
per annum and repayable in 2023; (2) loans receivable due from an
associate amounting to approximately RMB1.3 million (including the
principals and related interests), which were unsecured, bore interest at
5% per annum and repayable in 2023; (3) management service fees
receivable due from related parties amounting to approximately RMB6.3
million, of which an expected credit loss allowance of RMB4.4 million
has been provided; and (4) other amounts due from related parties
which were unsecured, bore no interest and repayable by the
respective related parties within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the balance mainly included: (1) loans
receivable due from an associate amounting to approximately RMB3.2
million (including the principals and related interests), which was
guaranteed by the equity interest of the associate, bore interest at 4.5%
per annum and repayable in 2024; and (2) loans receivable due from an
associate amounting to approximately RMBO0.3 million, which was
unsecured, interest free and repayable in 2027.

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2022

(i)

37 BBRBEIFEE @

[

HEHREKREE
As at 31 December
R12H31H

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE
470
7,311
266
6,312
14,359

HR2022F12A31A £H T E R
()RR SRR ERKN268 8
TARB(BREASREBBHNE) -
HT LB & AR 2 RN EE
R R F R E5%ET B KA 72023
FEE QRERBEATERN1S
BETARB(BEAS RIBEBATF
B REER - RF R E5%ET A
KRR 2023F (B3 « () FE U B 77
EEREELNCIEETARE H
FEF EEFEREIIEETA
RSO TR EE k(@) e BRI
HihhE AEEF 28REH
BN —FREERE -

R2022F12A310 £#H T E B
Fr()ERBERAERLS2ES
TARB(BEASRAEEAFE)
HThLAB & AR 2 IR AN R
R IREFRAE5% B R BR2024
FEE RQEWRBEARERLY
03BEBTARKE  AEEE 28
R AR 2027 EEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

37 Related and connected party disclosures
(Continued)

BE (#)
(b) Outstanding balances arising from FAZRBEEZ
transaction with related parties (Continued)
2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARS
Liabilities =R
Trade payables ERE S %A 6,608
Other payables (i) o A BIA () 2,000
Contract liabilities e ON=Ni -
8,608
Note: [

(c)

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the amount represented loans provided by a
related party, which were unsecured, bore interest at 5.31% per
annum. The Group had repaid these loans to the related party during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the amount represented loans provided by a
related party, which were unsecured, bore interest at 4.5% per annum
and repayable in 20283.

Compensation of key management (c)
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

[0} MN2021E12A318 - Z K BB
BMAERUNER AERFRIZ
5.31%F F K7 8 o Bl E2022F 12
ABIALEFE AEEB MBS

BEZSER -
R2022F 12 31 H » i KB IE R Bt

TRENER  BEER  R45%
FREE S RAN2023F EE

FTEEBEAEHMH

EELEMEBEEBKRERF
NZFHMMT :

As at 31 December

Short term employee benefits HEEERT
Share-based compensation expenses AR D ABEBROFH A
Post employment benefits RIKERF

Other benefits E A iR

M12831H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
5,392 6,035
2,875 3,374
823 434
- 300
10,143
AEERERAR

—E-CFEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 38 AT X EM B A 7 2 =%
Company &

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and

(a) 20224 K 2021128
BIAAXRRABIETEWE

2021 are as follows: AZEBWMT :
Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
MRS/ rEERAZ
DRER B3R EMER BB A ER TEER
2022 2021
Heroic Path Limited* The BVI Registered capital [0 0EZS 100.00%  Investment Holding
23 May 2014 UsD1
SEERAR" EBABRES afER REER
20145 5H23H 17T
Hero City Global Limited* The BVI Registered capital g [0KIOEZ 100.00%  Investment Holding
21 March 2014 USD1
HERR AR AR EBABRES ahER REER
2014% 3R 21H 1E7T
Wonderful Dawn Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Registered capital [VO0EZE 100.00%  Investment Holding
18 December 2015 HKD1
AERER AR BB AR REER
2015412 418H 18T
Delightful Year Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Registered capital (VK07 100.00%  Investment Holding
18 December 2015 HKDA1
EERRERAA N AR BREER
201512 418H 18T
Hongfu Catering Management The PRC Registered capital O00EZS 100.00%  Catering Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* 10 April 2017 RMB100,000,000 Service
RRERER(RIDAERDA" L FMAAR BEHEERS
2017F4F10H 100,000,0007C A R #
Baifuhui Network Technology The PRC Registered capital CERTEZN 65.87%  Technical Consultation
(Beijing) Co., Ltd™ 04 June 2019 RMB5,000,000 and Services
BREBEBBGLR)AERAR"  $H &R ety &6 3 82 R 7%
2019%6H4A 5,000,0007 A R #
HHG* The PRC Registered capital CPEOEZN 82.50%  Chinese fast food
02 December 2003 RMB12,000,000 restaurants chain
e R FE AER PR EHEREE
2003%12A28 12,000,0007T A R 15

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal

e S R R ()

15 &)

subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation
and operation/date of

Name of company incorporation Registered capital
AMREE

ARER B3R EMER

Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management ~ The PRC Registered capital

Co. Ltd*
REMERZHERLA

Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye
Food Co. Ltd*
RETERBERMBERAA"

Beijing Hefeng Technology Co. Ltd.”

ERAEMRBERAF

HHG (Beijing) Supply Chain
Management Co. Ltd.”

MERER)RERERER
BEAERAA

Hehegu International Company
Limited

Hehegu International Company
Limited

Xinladao **
e
Shanghai New Spicy Way

Catering Management Ltd.»
FEMREERERERAA"

11 September 2013
B
2013F9A11H

The PRC

19 June 2014
B

2014F6 A 19H

The PRC
2 January 2019
i E
2019F1A2H

The PRC

2 January 2019
i

201941 H2H

Hong Kong

21 July 2017
EE

201757 A218

The PRC

30 December 2005
L=

2005412 A30H

The PRC
05 July 2010
FE
2010%7A5H

RMB500,000
A A
500,000 A R#

Registered capital
RMB27,368,400

&R
27,368,400 7T A R

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

RN N
2,000,0007T A & 1

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

FMER
2,000,0007C A R #

Registered capital
HKD1

AMER
1B

Registered capital
RMB15,000,000

AMER
15,000,000 A R %

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000

aMER
1,000,0007C A R #&

38 ARFAEXTENMBRAAZH

(a) 20224 K 2021128

BMNAXRFAETENELD
G2 E INNENC §

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Group Principal activities
rEERAZ
BERAER TEEHR
2022 2021
PR 82.50%  Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
hREHREE
yeRELAN 78.38% - Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
FREHREE
PR 82.50%  Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
FREHEREE
GPROEZN 82.50%  Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
FREHREE
CPRALZN 82.50% - Chinese fast food
restaurants chain
FREHREE
CPEO0EZE 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
restaurant
FELESE AREE
CPO0EZN 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain

restaurant

REEHARER

HEERERAR
—E-CFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

e S R R ()

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation
and operation/date of

Name of company incorporation Registered capital
HMREE B
AL HRALAS EREE
Tianjin New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital
Management Ltd.” 20 October 2010 RMB1,000,000
RENREERERBERAR" FE aMER
20105104208 1,000,000t A R
Xi’an La Zhi Dao Catering The PRC Registered capital
Management Ltd.” 11 October 2011 RMB100,000
ARRZEERERERAR" FE &R
2011F10A11H 100,0007C A R

Shijiazhuang New Spicy Way
Catering Management Ltd.”
AEENREERERER AR

Zhengzhou New Spicy Way
Catering Management Ltd.”

IMHFREBEREEBRAA

Tangshan New Spicy Way
Catering Management Ltd.”
BLFREERERARAR

Huhehaote New Spicy Way
Catering Management Ltd.»
FHEBERERERAR"

Beijing Hong Ri Hong Yuan Food
Co., Ltd®

EREABRRAER LR

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

The PRC

26 October 2011
i

2011105 26H

The PRC
09 December 2011
G
2011F12A9H

The PRC

16 December 2011
Bl

2011412 716H

The PRC

12 March 2012
HE

201293 H12H

The PRC

28 March 2012
B

201293 F28H

Registered capital
RMB500,000

RN N
500,0007C A & #

Registered capital
RMB100,000

FAMAER
100,000 A %

Registered capital
RMB100,000

AfMEA
100,0007C A B

Registered capital
RMB100,000

HfME A
100,0007C A R

Registered capital
RMB1,064,000

aMER
1,064,0007C A R #&

38 ARBFEMB AR Z&F
15 ()

(a) 20224 K 2021128

SIAAXRRAFTEHE QD
AZHEBOT @

Attributable equity

interest held by

the Group Principal activities

rEERFER

BB AER TEER

2022 2021

CPEO0EZN 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
restaurant
TEEHABEE

CPO0EZN  87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
restaurant
FELEEAREE

CPAO0EZE 87.00%  Chinese hotpot chain
restaurant
FEEHARERE

GPAO0EZS  87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
restaurant
FRLEEARER

CYRO0EZN 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
restaurant
FEEEARER

CYRO0EZN 87.00% - Chinese hotpot chain
restaurant
FELESE A REE

CANEEZN 81.78%  Manufacturing
condiments
EERWRE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 ARBFEMB AR Z&F
15 ()

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720224 }2021F12H
SMIAAXRRAFTEHE QD
AZHEBOT @

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
BRIV E -5 17 rEERFER
ARER B3R HEMEX BB AER TEER
2022 2021
Shenyang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered capital CYRO0EZN 87.00% - Chinese hotpot chain
Catering Management Ltd.” 31 May 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
BENREERERFERAR. FE aMER REEHEANRER
2012%5A31H 100,0007C A R
Hefei New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital CPRO0EZN  87.00%  Chinese hotpot chain
Management Ltd.* 16 October 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
AEFREERERERAR" FE &R FEEHEANRERE
2012510416 H 100,0007C A R
Beijing New Spicy Way Trading Co., The PRC Registered capital GPRODEZN 87.00%  Wholesale and retall
Ltd® 17 October 2017 RMB1,000,000
ERFmEmgERAA" i E AR HERTE
20174103178 1,000,000 T A R
Shenzhen Qianhai Youfu Network The PRC Registered capital y[VO0EZS 100.00%  Catering Management
Technology Co., Ltd.* 06 November 2019 RMB10,000,000 Service
RYFERBREMEERAA  HE FAMAER EREERRS
2019411 A6H 10,000,0007C A R #
Tianjin Tongfu Network Technology The PRC Registered capital g [OKEAE 100.00%  Catering Management
Co. Ltd.» 11 June 2020 RMB5,000,000 Service
RETRABEAENRERAR" H [ERiliN= ¥ EREERRY
202056 A 11H 5,000,0007C A B #
Beijing Bailanerling Food Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital COERPZN 80.43%  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd.» 21 September 2020 RMB1,000,000
TREH_ZRMAMBERAF, FE ERilig= ¥ ERKE
20209 A 21 H 1,000,0007T A R
Beijing Baiquanerling Technology The PRC Registered capital GRRALZN 89.91%  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd.2 10 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
ERER-_ZRMMRAERAA  HE aMER ERKE
2020104108 1,000,000t A R
BRERBRAA

“ECZCFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal

subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows: (Continued)

38 ARBFEMB AR Z&F
15 ()

(a) 20224 K 2021128

MNAXQAFEIEMED
BA2HEFET @

Place of incorporation Attributable equity
and operation/date of interest held by
Name of company incorporation Registered capital the Group Principal activities
AMREE rEERFER
ARER A B EMER BB AER TEER
2022 2021
Beijing Baikeerling Technology Co., The PRC Registered capital COEREZN 86.43%  Restaurant Operation
Ltd.2 12 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
LTRAEE_ZRMMBERAF: $E aMER ERKE
2020104128 1,000,0007C A R #&
Baifu JieZhi Catering (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital CRYAZN 606.37%  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd.» 24 July 2020 RMB1,000,000
BREEER(RINERLDA FE &R ERgE
202047 B 248 1,000,000t A R
Baifu Gongying (Beijing) Network The PRC Registered capital y[O0EZS 100.00%  Catering Management
Technology Co., Ltd.* 17 June 2020 RMB70,000,000 Service
BRER(IR)BENMEERLA FE AR EREBRS
2020663178 70,000,0007C A R #
Lanzhou Jufu Catering Management The PRC Registered capital OEZE 51.00%  Leasing and business
Co., Ltd.” 30 April 2021 RMB1,000,000 services
HMERERERER A" G FAMAER BERBERY
2021%4F308 1,000,0007T A R #
Beijing Huibaifu Data Technology Co.,  The PRC Registered capital 100.00% —  Technical Consultation
Ltd.» 16 March 2022 RMB5,000,000 and Services
ITREBREFREERARS Bl HAMAAR ety &6 0 B2 AR 7%
202263 A 16H 5,000,0007C A K%

Notes:

Registered as a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise under PRC
Law

Registered as a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture under PRC Law

Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC Law

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 38
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
HHG Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the HHG
Group are before inter-company eliminations.

ARBREFEMBLATZF
15 ()

(b) FZRELS

TXHIMEAEB 2T HER
BE ZEEREHAKEMS
BEAZFFERERZ MAEAE
BrzeREARRKIHENRE -

Summarised balance sheet EEEBRAE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Current assets mENEE 139,930 151,046
Current liabilities nEBE (149,764) (153,556)
Current net liabilities REBEEFHE (9,834) (2,510)
Non-current assets EREBEE 323,928 360,492
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (130,775) (149,691)
Non-current net assets IRBEETFHE 193,153 210,801
Net assets EEFH 183,319 208,291
Accumulated NCI RETEIERER 25,563 29,686
HEEERERAT

—E-CFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiary of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (continued)

38 ARFAEXTENMBRAAZH

15 &)

(b) FEI= AR @)

Summarised statement of comprehensive TEHKERFE
income
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FAR®E
Revenue e A 349,252 457,887
Loss for the year FRER (22,742) (10,298)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBEE (23,561) (10,298)
Loss allocated to NCI M IEFERR M R 0 B 2 B8 (4,123) (1,784)
Dividends paid to NCI S FIEERER 2 KRE - -
Summarised cash flows RERERE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Cash flows generated from operating KESE RS RE
activities 61,087 54,594
Cash flows used in investing activities KEEZBSMARSARE (2,357) (15,672)
Cash flows used in financing activities METEMARESREE (48,730) (68,917)
Net increase/(decrease)incashand BHE&RELSZEYE M
cash equivalents (Ba) 28 (29,995)

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

38 Particulars of principal subsidiary of the 38
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (continued)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
Xinladao Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the
Xinladao Group are before inter-company eliminations.

ARBREFEMBLATZF
15 ()

(b) FEI= RS @)

TXEIIFREEE M HEER
BE ZEEREHAKEMS
BEAZFFERES - FTRES
BreREARRKHENRE -

Summarised balance sheet EEEBRAE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current assets mEEE 24,304 39,214
Current liabilities nEBE (164,582) (193,755)
Current net liabilities REBEaEFHE (140,278) (154,541)
Non-current assets EREBEE 480,098 533,900
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (125,358) (139,874)
Non-current net assets IRBEETFHE 354,740 394,026
Net assets EESHE 214,462 239,485
Accumulated NCI REt IR = 28,025 31,280
BRERBRAF

—E-CFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

e S R R ()

38 Particulars of principal subsidiary of the 38 RAFRETEMB LT ZFHF

Company (continued) 5@
(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) FEI= AR @)
Summarised statement of comprehensive TEHKERFE
income
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR®
Revenue A 172,150 273,530
Loss for the year FRER (25,035) (57,756)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEREAE (25,035) (57,756)

Loss allocated to NCI mIEERRE R D B2 B8 (3,255) (7,508)
Dividends paid to NCI TR TIEERERE 2R E - -
Summarised cash flows RERERE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Cash flows generated from operating activites #& & )EBNFTBIR SR E 41,220 70,429
Cash flows used in investing activities KREFESFARERE (4,732) (6,603)
Cash flows used in financing activities RETZEMAESAEE (35,645) (64,680)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents € &R £ % & Y12 in

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e S R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 9 KR TEEEBEBRKGHEE
the Company =)

Balance sheet of the Company AABEERBER
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries M ERRIRE 964,121 801,317
Derivative financial instrument TELR T A - 22,543
964,121 823,860
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 31,788
Other receivables H b fE I 508 1,399
Other current assets Hittmeh&E 46 42
3,451 33,229
TOTAL ASSETS EEHATE 967,572 857,089
CURRENT LIABILITY REAE
Other payables H {th & 5B 3,917
Amount due to subsidiaries RS INGIE S 21,793
Convertible bonds — interest payable due AMkES — —FREHZ
within one year FE SR B 59,801
85,511

BRERERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12 A1 B ILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 9 KR TEEEBEBRKGHEE

the Company (Continued) @ E] (48)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) APBEEREER®@®
As at 31 December
M12831H
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Convertible bonds IR (& & 532,024 442 267
532,024 442,267
TOTAL LIABILITY BEHAE 574,907 527,778
CAPITAL AND RESERVE EXR#E
Share capital B& 2 133,023 133,023
Reserves i 259,642 196,288
TOTAL EQUITY B 392,665 329,311
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EEREREE 967,572 857,089
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of KATREEBEREN202343 A30
Directors on 30 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf: HREgEEed g YR TNIWALTRE
HE
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HLE FhEE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
Ex EF
@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12431 HILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 39 KX ARIEEEBREEHE
the Company (Continued) 2B @
Reserve movement of the Company AAvREERS
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserves deficit Total
B EE Hib 2t E#E &=t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH FARY TFTAR® FARH®
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 A1H 693,388 312,422 (116,541) 889,269
Loss for the year FABAE — - (659,160) (659,160)
Value of services provided — BERx #E = 2 & I% 9
under share option RN EIIE T
schemes and share award ~ FTI2{E RE 2 (B1E
scheme — 3,374 — 3,374
Currency translation EEHmE =
differences — (87,195) — (37,195)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12H31H 693,388 278,601 (775,701) 196,288
Loss for the year FRNEE — - (67,522) 67,522)
Value of services provided B J& # =t 2| & %
under share option SR EtE BT
schemes and share award ~ FTIRER A 2 EE
scheme — 2,875 — 2,875
Deemed contribution from 1| {ERL &
shareholder — 43,688 — 43,688
Currency translation BB EE
differences — 84,313 — 84,313
At 31 December 2022 M2022%F12H31H 693,388 409,477 (843,223) 259,642
Events after the balance sheet date 40 HEHEREHE

40

Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of the
consolidated financial statements, no important event affecting the

Group had occurred.

MR2022F12 AT BENEZGRA UK
MABH TERLYEAERNE
KEIF o

HEERERAR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBBE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE TARY
(Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (a)) (Note (a))
(FF5EMm)) (MiE®))  (BisE®)  (Mik@) BlGEAE)

(Restated)
(Eu)
RESULTS £
Revenue S 470,181 998,250 650,691 752,959 537,510
Loss before taxation T B E5 1B (7,474) (79,257) (160,689) (665,685) (182,179)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrE % (X H), H % (2,348) (7,013) 9,693 13,848 15,471
Loss for the year FABA (9,822) (86,270)  (150,996)  (651,837) WNELGIN(V:)]
(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements. @ RV BEFTHEaGAMBRE -
(o)  The financial figures were extracted from the 2021 annual report. (b) ERVBEFT M E2021 FF® -
At 31 December
M2A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 [GLVIEHVY
TAR®E  TARE  TARE  TAR® EEPNLH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEER & &

Total assets BERTE 2,438,434 2,280,365 2,157,711 1,520,296 BRPRERKRET
Total liabilities BfERE (1,455,138)  (1,295,399) (1,157,040) (1,164,885) MaRENLLE))

Net assets BEFH 983,296 984,966 1,000,671 355,411 210,608

@ Best Food Holding Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HEgREARE

About the Report

Reporting Content

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“Best Food”, “the
Company” or “We”) to review and summarise the Company’s ESG work
in 2022.

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope includes Beiing HHG Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. (“HHG”) as well
as Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”), which are all
controlled by Best Food Holding Company Headquarter and its holding
companies (the “Best Food Headquarter”). Unless otherwise specified,
the Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022.

Basis of Report

The information disclosed by the Report is the “mandatory disclosure
requirements”, “general disclosures”, and the environmental and social
KPIs set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix 27 to the Main Board
Listing Rules released by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(HKEX).

Reporting Principles

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in Part C of the ESG Reporting Guide during the year under review.

Materiality: The content and order of the Report is based on the
communication with investors and other stakeholders and the
identification of the importance of ESG issues. Please refer to “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Material Issues” for the detail.

Balance: The Report objectively discloses positive and negative
information to ensure an impartial presentation of the company’s ESG
performance during the reporting period.

Quantitative: The scope, assumptions and calculation method of KPIs
are explained in the Report.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the methodologies used in the
Report are same with the 2021 ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B -HEREARERE (R

Instruction

It is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance Report
contained in the 2022 Annual Report of Best Food Holding Company
Limited, for a more comprehensive understanding of ESG performance
of the Company.

Board Statement

The Board of Directors of Best Food believes that the establishment and
perfection of ESG management system is conducive for Best Food’s
development and better fulfilment of its social responsibilities. Best Food
maintains the top-down ESG governance structure, under which the
Board of Directors is responsible for the supervision of ESG issues, while
the Working Group (consisting of the functional departments of the
Company and the executives of each subsidiary in charge of ESG
management) is responsible for the implementation of specific ESG work.

Before the publishing of the 2022 ESG Report, the Board of Directors of
Best Food evaluated the potential impacts and opportunities the ESG
may bring to the Company’s overall strategy, and reviewed the results of
materiality assessment on ESG issues. The Board of Directors has
identified the relevant ESG issues of Best Food and determined the
current ESG management measures and the unique ESG management
concept of Best Food. This year, Best Food took key ESG-related risks
into risk management system. The ESG working Group and relevant ESG
departments are responsible for conducting risk assessment and
reporting to the Board twice a year. The Board is responsible for
reviewing the critical risks of ESG and putting forward recommendations
for improvement.

During the reporting year, Best Food reviewed the environmental goals in
terms of business operation set for 2021, namely the target emission and
resource consumption levels from operation of restaurants, office areas
and self-owned factories. The Board of Directors reviewed and discussed
about the implementation and achievement of the goals. In addition,
during the year, the Board of Directors discussed with the management
on efforts made for the environmental goals and provided
recommendations, which were conveyed by management to staff of the
Company and subsidiaries. Details of Best Food’s major ESG issues
such as green operation, food safety and responsible operation are
presented in Section 1-5 of the Report.

With detailed disclosures of the Company’s ESG issues, the Report was
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023
after being confirmed by management.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -d@gRER®RE (H)

ESG Governance Structure ESGERE R
ESG Philosophy ESGE =

Best Food believes that a sound ESG management system is a requisite HEIHE BB E2HEE HehELE
for the Company’s sustainable development. We focus on ESG ZEE QA A A ZE?‘E& B B R o B9
performance of catering companies in which we own shares and are I TE FIER LR 2B RBIE QA H
committed to building a catering industry investment and management ESGXIE - O NITERFEERRE N E K
platform empowered by the idea of sustainability. BEZEEETES -

Harmony #13%

o The Company’s ESG vision is to realise harmonious coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and
actively fulfil corporate social responsibility and strive to build a harmonious relationship between the Company and the
environment, employees and the society through our constant efforts

J FEREREIMENMNBEEERARAERRE HEREARTRENERBER -RMBETMERME
ThEEHERET AEBBEFNTEHS N Em%éﬁiﬁaiﬂ EILA&zi@ZFaﬁ EMGE R 2 BRR

Team Cooperation B &1E

il

° Team cooperation is a key attribute for the Company to achieve good ESG performance. As the business line of the
Company mainly covers catering industry, we face complicated challenges in ESG management. To overcome such
challenges, it is critical to collaborate as a team within the Company to realise its vision of harmony.

e EBRAERARAEREBITRERE H8KER E&H«%ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ ARABEBHBEEPRERE  £FR
B oHegREATEITAEHBEERNIE - RERBATRACHEREE THEREENELE X
FES -

Scientific management &£ &1

|

° Scientific management is an effective way for the Company to realise good ESG performance. The Company insists on
promoting scientific management methodologies and creating a more efficient ESG management model.

e REEFEEARAERRER HERELRFRANENEE ARABRFHENZSENETERAE KM
BEENMSHHERE HEREREREREA -

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Iﬁiﬁ N ’HZ%& E‘./niﬁﬂ:( E)

ESG Governance Structure

With a vision of “become a leading and influential multi-brand ‘new’
catering and food platform enterprise with digital operation as the core in
China and the world”, we stick to compliant operation and incorporate
the concept of sustainability in our business. We also formulate ESG
strategies, engage with stakeholders and monitor ESG performance to
continuously improve ESG management. Considering the practical
conditions of the Company, the following ESG governance structure is
established upon the review and authorisation of the Board of Directors
and management of the Company.

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body for ESG
management of the Company, responsible for monitoring ESG issues
and taking the overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The ESG working group (the “Working Group”) consists of the
Company’s Internal Control and Audit Department (the “Internal Control
Department”) and the executives of each subsidiary in charge of ESG
management (commonly the head of the Finance Department). As the
centre for ESG management, the Working Group’s duties related to ESG
management include:

—
—

) developing ESG principles and strategies;

(2)  setting ESG objectives and following up the achievement of such
objectives;

(8) assessing the materiality of ESG issues and determining the key
ESG issues of the Company;

(4)  evaluating ESG risks and developing controls and measures for
significant ESG risks based on materiality assessment results;
(5) reviewing and approving annual ESG working plans of various

departments;

(6) preparing disclosures such as ESG report;

(7)  reporting to the Board on above issues.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -d@gRER®RE (H)

Related functional and business departments of each subsidiary suchas KJEERAGANER TMHELS H=%
human resources, marketing & operation, quality control, sourcing and % « £ 8 - RIS HEBE XN EK A
internal control are responsible for: &g

—
—

) developing annual ESG working plan of the department and (—) RFEAKILHESGEETE - W IR &

carrying out ESG work based on the approved annual plan; Bt EFESI T EEIIE:
(2)  taking measures to achieve the approved ESG objectives based on Z) REBERKUEN A FIESGE 1Z - R EL
the final approved ESG objectives of the Company; FEE BV E R R i

(3) collecting and regularly providing disclosure materials for ESG (=) W& F HHIREESGRE M H EE R
reporting;

(4) identifying ESG risks and developing risk control measures  (PO) % BIESGE k& - # F ESG R b FE ¥ &
accordingly; iii g

(5)  organising ESG trainings to enhance staff's ESG awareness and  (#1) 40 £ ESGIE |- IR+ A 7l 8 TESGE

capability; #ANBE T
6) conducting ESG study, communication and publicity; and (77) FIRESGHZ » RmA{EHETE:
(7)  reporting to the Working Group on above issues. (1) A EZBMESG T EHEEFTIESR -

The Board of Directors

g

ESG Working Group
ESG I {4

Internal Control and Internal Designated officers in charge of ESG management in HHG,
Audit Department of the Xinladao and other majority-owned companies
Company MEAESGEEA
P BB 422 %l B2 2 5t &P HFIBESGEE A
HZERAREEA

ESG Working Departments
ESG T {E &5 P9

BHREERERARF
CECC_FER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B -HEREARERE (R

Assessment of Material ESG Issues

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company values our stakeholders as well as their key expectations.
We establish a variety of communication channels to enhance
stakeholder engagement and understand their expectations and valuable
recommendations on Best Food’s development in a timely fashion to

safeguard their interests.

Major Stakeholders
FTEFRMEES

Key Expectations
FEFRK

ESGEZ MR B

M EELRE
RARER D EEE O ROE R A %
W7 ARMMMERESR - RMELT S
BL o0 BB EE - MR AT e R
B RETHRENSERNSIHERERE
HOEEE RMEH - REARQF RS
75 e

Ways of Communication

BEARE

Government and regulators

B REEHE

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Employees
BT

Suppliers
HER

Clients and consumers
EFEHEEE

Community

o

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Compliance operation
BREE

Stringent internal control and risk
management

B AR Y 1A P 42 i) K2 [ e B 3R
Energy conservation

£ B R BE

Investment returns

% & |8,

Transparent governance
ERBEHA

Remuneration and benefits
RN

Career development
BEER

Labour rights

LI

Fair competition

AT HE

Integrity

EEE

Common development
HEZRE

Service value

R EE

Product responsibility
EmEA

Privacy protection
AR &

Community development
it 2 R

Public warfare activities
N

o= -><

Major conferences, policy consultations, institutional
inspections, official exchanges, information
disclosure

BREH
w5

BERHH BBEER  AXER - FER

Annual reports and announcements, meetings
FRERNE &

Employee satisfaction survey, labour union, employee
activities, hotline and email

BEIREERE Ig§ BI1EY BREFEK
1

Visits, conferences, telephone calls and emails
RmEsh B B RBMY

Face-to-face communication, telephone calls and
emails

R - B NEA

Visits, donation and other charitable activities,
corporate presentations and internship opportunities

Bif BHELAREH2E BPETHER
EE#E



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HEREAEE (R

Material Matrix EEMEE

The Company sets out the materiality matrix through communication with RN A F@ B Z R EHE X EFZHE H 8
key stakeholders, taking into consideration management’'s B VTiEABTEEBES  RINLERD K -
recommendations and internal and external experts’ analysis. The matrix EBr&EZMHEEE ZEEZMHEEE S S
contains key issues in the ESG Reporting Guide and helps us determine (3835 - it @ R & A REIE3DP HEE S
the focus of ESG reporting and following-up action plans. BN ERMEREERE A2 kKEE
WEMEREAD  RT—F1T85E -

HERURERRNEEY

Importance for sustainable development for Best Food

Importance for stakeholders

HAZEBRINEEZM
Environmental indicators I 15 ¥ 15 1= © it & % 5 1= Social indicators
1 Emission reduction jg 4> 5 2 HE i 1 Pandemic prevention and control J& f [y 1%
2 Resource saving £ #] & J& 2 Food safety and health & & % & E /2 F

3 Conservation of ecological environment and natural 3 Environmental and social risk management related to the supply
resources 1R & 4 & F1 B R B IR chain f fE 8 IR 35 K 4t 2 E b B 12

4 Climate change tackling & $f &, & & (&, 4 Dining environment 3t & & 15

5 Service quality iR 7% S &

6 Community investment #t [ &

7 Advertising compliance & & & #%

8 Intellectual property protection % 25 & 42 {7 %

9 Data security 15 %2 &

10  Employees’ rights protection & T # z5 1% 2

11 Employee safety and occupational health 8 T %z & K B 3£ (2

12 Staff training and development & T 3% 3l 82 2% &

18  Labour rights protection 4 T # 25 {# #

14 Integrity building B& )2 7 &%

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R - @RERERE ()

1. Optimal and High-quality Food

Relevant UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
MBS B A5 A 8 B £ (SDGs)

Best Food dedicates to providing safe, healthy, fresh and green foods to
customers. Upholding the core values of “Focusing on customers,
making breakthrough with innovation, providing platform for strivers,
sharing, creating and profiting together”, Best Food realize the vision of
technology enabling catering and food, and providing “Providing people
with delicious and healthy daily meals”.

1.1 Trusted Choice

Best Food gives top priority to food safety. The Company holds a strong
belief that safe and high-quality food is the premise for excellent customer
experience. In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and regulations,
the Company strictly controls food safety and quality throughout the
whole value chain, covering upstream suppliers, logistics, factories,
kitchens and restaurants. HHG is certified by Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Point (HACCP). In 2022, the Company holding brands had no
significant violation against the laws and regulations related to product
health and safety. No product recalls happened due to health and safety
reasons.

1.1.1 Food Safety First

Adhering to a “farm-to-table” food safety philosophy, HHG has
established a comprehensive food safety management mechanism that
covers the whole process, ranging from raw materials, factory, logistics,
1o table and customers. By this means, we strive to protect food safety in
an all-round way and provide trustworthy food for customers. HHG has
formulated the Comprehensive Emergency Plan for Food Safety
Incidents, the Measures for Safety Management of Supplier Quality, the
Specification for Food Safety Management, the Measures for
Management of Food Additives and other policies related to product
quality inspection to manage matters concerning food safety in a strict
manner. HHG has passed the certifications of ISO9001 Quality
Management System.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, HHG stepped up food safety efforts in the
following ways:

° Enhance soybean oil testing: We started to test the acid and
peroxide values of soybean oil at restaurants. For soybean oil used
in deep-fried dough stick pans, refreshment pans and frying pans,
the company requires restaurants to test soybean oil with test
papers, and replace the unqualified soybean oil in a timely manner;

° Regulate time bar filling rules of the restaurants: The way and
frequency of filling in the time bar used to record the time points of
each operation of the restaurant during food storage are specified
in great detail, including key time points such as unpacking time,
defrosting time and use time.

° Conduct timely inventory counting and reporting: Inventory is
counted on a daily basis before closing to identify and report
unqualified products in a timely manner, ensuring the quality of
inventories;

° Cooperate with professional pest control companies: Restaurants
are comprehensively disinfected at least once a month, with
records maintained. If the result is unsatisfactory, the frequency and
intensity will be increased until all the pests disappear, ensuring the
food hygiene and safety.

Xinladao upholds the core concept of “food quality is the manifestation of
personal quality” and establishes the food safety system based on its
business characteristics. The Company has established the Product
Committee of Xinladao under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”), which includes the heads of relevant departments (the Market
Department, the R&D Department, the Internal Control Department, etc.)
and core operating personnel at restaurants. It oversees the development
and implementation of policies and standards on food safety. Xinladao
carries out stringent management on pest & rat prevention and control,
foreign matter cleaning, raw materials supply and other links at
restaurants, including regularly eliminating pest and rat with reference to
the requirements of local law-enforcing department. Besides, the
Company pays field visits, and makes the evaluation results be
commensurate with the performance of operating personnel at all levels.
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In order to improve new employees’ food safety awareness, Xinladao
provides trainings concerning the fFood Hygiene and Safety, the
Unqualified Product Reporting Process and Filing Method and the
Precautions for Restaurants during Disinfection for new employees. In
terms of restaurants, Xinladao offers targeted training to employees of the
restaurant on a sustained basis, improving their abilities to manage food
safety.

This year, in accordance with the Interim Measures for Supervision and
Management of Food-related Product Quality and Safety issued by the
State Administration for Market Regulation, Xinladao updated the
checklist of the technical auditors (TAs). More items such as the degree
of disinfection and cleaning and disinfection records of eating and
drinking utensils need to be checked. The inspection on key items are
strengthened, so that a more comprehensive and detailed inspection is in
place for food quality and safety at restaurants. This year, Xinladao has
added new channels to access the monitoring system at restaurants. The
food safety management personnel can use mobile applications to view
operations to foods at restaurants in real time, so as to ensure that
employees work in a compliant manner in food preparation area and
dining area. Besides, they also can provide reminders and guidance on
any problems found.

1.12 Selected High-quality Food Ingredients

Taking the quality of ingredients as a priority, Best Food strictly controls
it. The Company has developed the Measures for Management of Food
Recalls. For product quality problems identified in the supply chain, we
will figure out what batch they belong to immediately, ask relevant
departments to carry out investigations, and solve the problem through
rejection, recall, exchange or other ways based on actual situation.

During the year, HHG continued to update the Standards for Raw
Materials. The acceptance standards for raw materials improved,
including the new standards for 124 categories of market products and
the archived standards for 33 categories of products off the market. HHG
performs sampling test on each batch of incoming goods, including
product appearance and size, taste and quantitative indicators testing, to
assess the quality of incoming goods from the perspective of customers.
This year, a batch of rice noodles of HHG were found damaged during
routine check. Then HHG recalled those distributed to restaurants in a
timely manner and returned this batch to producers.
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This year, to control the quality of ingredients, HHG took the following A4 [E @ A REWM T S BEHEIALIER
measures: MEE:
Production line pre-cooling optimisation: HHG factory has o A EGEABHEL : NEALHE
optimised its pre-cooling production line, which has reduced the RTRZEERNENX BLTER

cooling time before product preservation. In addition, ingredients
are preserved with a lower temperature, further minimising bacterial
breeding in ingredients and improving product quality.

Replacement of canning machines: The new canning machines at

E?E)\ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ’]/%éﬂ%?ﬂ I £
REESRERFRM - #—
TEMABOARZE  RBRATER

THEBERE: MEATHMENKROH

the factory of HHG add a vacuum function, which vacuum the TIREREMIE M THEEEE  TE®
product in the packaging process, reducing leakage during HEMBETRRBEYEETHESTE

packaging and improving the product packaging quality. For this
link, the adoption of the technology has raised the product’s pass
rate t0 98.5%.

Temperature control inspection on vehicles: HHG conducts regular
inspection on the temperature of logistics vehicles and holds
monthly communication meetings on their temperature
management. If the temperature of a logistics vehicle is found
unacceptable, the Logistics Department is required to inform the
fleet of the problem and push for improvement. The measure has
reduced the number of logistics vehicles that are not eligible due to
the temperature issue.
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Improving Soybean Oil Quality
RAXREHEER

In 2022, HHG has developed a standard operating procedure, namely the Specification on Use of Soybean Oil and Recycling of Filter Boxes, which

regulates the operating process of soybean oil used at the restaurant, improving the quality of soybean oil supplied. The Specification has reduced residues

in soybean oil by increasing the number of filters, the frequency of filtration, and the settling time. Meanwhile, HHG has provided training on operational

process for employees to promote and standardize the processes.
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Improving Green Salad Packages

FREXRDABERS

In 2022, HHG improved the packaging for salad and shredded kelp products. The package of salad products was changed from cups to boxes, which
not only guaranteed taste, but also avoided poor-sealing and temperature-sensitive spoilage of the salads in cups, thus improving the quality pass rate of
products. The package of shredded kelp products was changed from laminated boxes to snap-lid boxes, which enhanced the sealing of the products and
reduced the leakage resulting from poor sealing during transportation. Through the above measures, the product quality risk during transportation has been

lowered, with higher product satisfaction and fewer customer complaints.

EmmEE B> TEPRFHUE -

2022F  MARUARNETHERRET TERENR - VHERGHRERANEARNARKBEBE EREFAKNORE - BRT
REPRZHAR FXAEFEMEHLENER BRATERNEEARET  BRHABRRMRRNERERRANERKR
BENTEREHE RLTEGRETPERABHTEMBRNBER DA BEBRHRET EGBRTNEREERAR  TRAT

Complying with national and local quality management standards,
Xinladao has developed rigorous standards on acceptance, whereby only
verified and qualified raw materials can be put into production. For food
storage, Xinladao maintains a food shelf life management system to
ensure that the food in stock meet relevant regulations on shelf life. At the
same time, it has fully deployed the transport vehicle temperature
monitoring system to ensure that food are transported under required
temperature and prevent food spoilage.

1.2 Enjoyable Meals

Best Food strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. Embracing a
customer-oriented philosophy, we constantly improve service quality and
enrich product categories, so as to provide enjoyable experience for
customers.

121 Service Experience Optimisation

This year, HHG and Xinladao have optimised their membership systems,
covering settlement and prepaid card settlement, in accordance with the
Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China and the Regulations on the
Administration of Single-purpose Prepaid Cards in Beijjing.
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Improving Dining Experience

HHG continues to improve service quality and is committed to “becoming
the most reliable catering brand for Chinese”. To this end, HHG takes the
following measures:

o Closer cooperation with third parties

o] Understand the direction of product improvement with
reference to customer comments from third-party platforms,
and develop instant solutions for key issues;

o] Take feedbacks and positive comment rates on third-party
platforms as one of the restaurant evaluation criteria, so as to
encourage employees of the restaurants to improve service
quality.

° Internal assessment improvement

o] The headquarter regularly conducts spot check on
restaurants to ensure the requirements of Service Handbook
are implemented properly.

Built on the idea of “101% customer satisfaction with quality customer
experience at its core”, Xinladao always regards customer experience as
a core criterion in perfecting services on a sustained basis. Xinladao
encourages employees to collect feedbacks from customers and identify
their actual needs, so as to improve customers’ dining experience. This
year, Xinladao launched takeaway service of disposable fish hot pot, after
which the company identified what to optimise based on feedbacks
collected from platform users and took actions to improve the product
quality on a sustained basis.

Xinladao continuously optimises the design of restaurants to provide
comfortable dining environment for customers. This year, Xinladao
revamped the restaurant layout by considering the meal process, so that
customers could have better experiences throughout their dining process
— from approaching and entering the restaurant, to taking a seat and
ordering. Major changes included:

° A storefront (brand name, category), a lightbox (branded products),
a large menu (featured products) and a promotion board (promotions
and new products) were placed at the entrance to show customers
the features and product types of the restaurant;
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° Promotional flags and table cards concerning products and
festivals were presented in the dining area to create a good dining
environment;

Listening to Consumers

Best Food strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations including the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests, and establishes a customer complaint and
communication mechanism based on the business characteristics of the
catering industry. We continuously review our customer engagement
system and have multiple channels to collect feedbacks from customers,
including on-site feedback, hotline, ordering evaluation system, third-
party evaluation platform, email, social media official accounts.

This year, HHG has continuously refined its approach to complaints.
HHG requires employees to give prompt feedback in accordance with
company policies upon receiving on-site complaints from customers. For
complaints to products, once a complaint is verified by the manager,
restaurants would grant free orders or revoke orders and report to quality
department. For other complaints such as service complaints, the
manager of the restaurant would approach customers to provide
appropriate solutions. If the manager fails to settle the case, the regional
supervisor would act to determine responsible department and clarify
who is responsible considering the specific situation, and provide a
solution to the customer in a timely manner. HHG requires employees to
figure out what happened upon receiving online complaints and report
customer opinions to the manager of the restaurant. Then the manager
would contact the customer and provide solutions in line with company
policies. During the year, the number of customer complaints regarding
services and products in HHG totalled 20, of which the number of
product-related complaints totalled 5 and the number of service-related
complaints totalled 15.
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Xinladao publishes official compliant phone numbers on the official
website, menus and other channels, and widely collects customer
opinions through third-party service and communication platforms.
Xinladao has established a comprehensive compliant handling
mechanism. For customer complaints and inquiries received at
restaurants, duty managers would immediately contact customers and
provide solutions. Where the respective restaurant fails to settle the case,
the regional manager and market manager at each level would follow up
to ensure that a satisfactory result can be given to the customer. Xinladao
summarises the common problems raised by customers once a week
and incorporates the problems into the general training plans for
restaurants nationwide. Besides, customer feedbacks are directly linked
with performance appraisal. During the year, the number of customer
complaints regarding products and services in Xinladao totalled 36, of
which the number of product-related complaints totalled 21 and the
number of service-related complaints totalled 15.

122 Innovating Diversified Products

The Company made more efforts in the research and development of
dishes based on customers’ demand and the consideration for health,
continuing to innovate and enrich the menu with more nutritious and
delicious products. In this year, Wuchang rice was required to meet the
standard GB/T19266 by HHG. It means that HHG put forward higher
requirements on the natural environment of origin, quality inspection rules
and methods, product transportation and storage. At the same time,
HHG had obtained the exclusive Wuchang Geographical Indication
Certificate. Besides, HHG took photos of Wuchang rice in the harvest
period to better display to the customers the geographical environment
where Wuchang rice was produced. HHG provides customers with free
sealing clips. It is convenient for customers to store the rice, which helps
to keep the taste of rice and improve the experience of customers.
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Xinladao continued to develop new menu, launching various promotional ~ ¥ ¥R B R A F KL - RIFEFTF K
events or seasonal dishes on a monthly basis based on customers’ fE A EB#EH TR EHHEFTHRE X
demand. In addition, the fresh longsnout catfish hot pot and fresh — an° 4N AREFEEFHRENIEB R MBER
sturgeon hot pot, newly launched by Xinladao this year, have won FIEEBNG  BETHEENEE -
consumers’ favour.
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1.3 Technology-based Operations

With digital transformation as a significant task, Best Food is striving to
become a “new multi-brand catering and food platform based on the
capability of digital operation”. Best Food continues to improve the
consumption and working experience respectively for consumers and
employees by establishing the online membership service platform,
integrating the data platform and optimising the internal digital
management system.

1.3.1 Optimising the Online Service Platform

HHG and Xinladao continue to optimise the online service platform and
increase the functions of the platform to provide customers with better
dining experience. HHG and Xinladao both provide customers with
various options on the online platform, such as placing order and
takeaway, to meet the customers’ needs for ordering in different
scenarios. Moreover, this year, HHG launched the applet-based ordering
system, benefiting customers and further enhancing their experience by
providing working meals, paid premium membership, small amount of
top-up, etc.

Xinladao has formulated the Front Hall Service Process of QR Code-
Based Ordering to standardise the service process for restaurant servers
in handling the QR orders to guarantee the customers’ ordering
experience. In 2022, Xinladao optimised the QR code ordering page on
mobile phone ends, enabling customers to place orders more easily and
faster, with following updates:

° A menu bar added on the ordering page publicising new dishes or
other promotional activities

° Zoom-in of dish pictures to present details
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1.32 Establishing a Digital Operation Mode

Customer Experience

Best Food continues to optimise the Company’s data platform and
carefully analyse customers’ feedback in a timely manner. By integrating
the membership management, mall and community operation through
the brand applet, Best Food has been gradually gaining an insight into
consumption preferences cross brands and in multiple scenarios to
better serve customers.

Each restaurant of HHG and Xinladao has its own WeChat account,
through which customers can communicate with restaurant staff after
being its WeChat friends while HHG and Xinladao can collect and
address customers’ opinions and needs in a timely manner. In 2022,
during the pandemic in Beijing, HHG leveraged the restaurant community
for group meal business, therefore, consumers could still enjoy HHG’s
food during the lockdown.
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Employee Management

Best Food is committed to improving employees’ experience through
digital management. Employees can give feedbacks/opinions and voice
their hearts through digital platforms such as WeChat and internal official
accounts. Management can understand and address employees’
demands quickly and efficiently through the digital platforms, enhancing
employee satisfaction significantly.

2. Adhering to Green Development

The Company strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste, the Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment and
other state laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection.
Best Food pays constant attention to the updates and amendments of
relevant laws and regulations, and constantly innovates and implements
energy conservation and emission reduction practices in the management
and technology application aspects to reduce its impact on environment,
climate and ecology by considering the operation. In 2022, Best Food
had no incident or grievance in relation to environmental non-compliance
that would have a significant impact.
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2.1 Environmental Goals

Insisting on the idea of green operation, Best Food is committed to
minimising the impact on the environment within its scope of business. In

2021,

Details are as follows:

Goals and Commitments’

B R

taking into account its own operations, the Company set 7K @]
environmental goals, covering energy consumption, greenhouse gas (GHG) 12 -
emissions, water resource consumption and waste management. The
Company reviewed the completion of goals this year and set plans.
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21 BIEH

Progress
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Goals for energy °
consumption

By 2025, the energy consumption
intensity decreases by 2% from 2020;

BE TR £ F o  F2025%F -+ e lR B FEE E AH 2020
BEFETPE2% :

e By 2030, the energy consumption
intensity decreases by 5% from 2020;

°  ZE2030%F - BLIR BT EHE 2020
BFETEE%

Goals for e By 2025, the greenhouse gas emission
greenhouse intensity decreases by 2% from 2020;
gas emission ¢ ZFE2025F RERBHNETEER

BERBHEN 2020 EHEFE T 2% :

e By 2030, the greenhouse gas emission
intensity decreases by 5% from 2020;

e Z2030F  BEREHERETEEER
2020 E FEF TPEE% :

Goals for water ¢ By 2025, the water consumption intensity

resource decreases by 1% from 2020;
consumption * ZE2025%F - K E 2020 FE AEF
KEREH TFE1%

e By 2030, the water consumption intensity
decreases by 2% from 2020;

*  ZE2030%F - FK®E 2020 & £ F
TFE2% :

! the energy consumption intensity, the greenhouse gas emission intensity and the water !
consumption intensity all refer to the consumption intensity per million yuan of income

for each indicator.
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Based on the actual operation in
2022, the Company reviewed the
completion of the goals formulated in
2021. This year, the customer flow of
HHG and Xinladao was significantly
limited caused by the pandemic that
led to decrease of income. Also, it
caused the increase of energy
consumption intensity, greenhouse
gas emission intensity, and water use
intensity compared to the base year
of 2020. The energy consumption
intensity increased by 12% compared
to the base year of 2020; the
greenhouse gas emission intensity
increased by 12% compared to the
base year of 2020; the water intensity
increased by 12% compared to the
base year of 2020.
ER2022FEREEBR AR
H21FHEMRFBRER |i
RETTRS -KEE XEBEF
= %Dé@&%ﬁ%ﬁL@ﬁ%ﬂﬂ B2
IR W AT SEERERER
- &Zﬁé’:}#ﬁﬁlﬁ & A R Rk a8
[E82020 K £ F 1B L - BEIR
%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁmm%°¢tﬂ7
12% © m = 18 HE A 2 i 812020

fﬁﬁiﬂ? 12% : F7K5&8 EHEE
2020 EMEF FFF T 12% ©

EHE&ERS

BERBEREE -

The company continues to
strengthen the management of
energy and water consumption
in operation, including replacing
high-energy facilities and
equipment, optimizing the
water use structure of
restaurants, etc. We strive to
reduce energy consumption
intensity, greenhouse gas
emission intensity and water
consumption intensity in 2023.
Also, we keep track the goals
formulated in 2021 which
include energy use, greenhouse
gas emissions and water
consumption.

48 I 58 8 2 P AR TR IA Sk
BRNERAER BFEH
DR RERE BB
FE /K& 1B % - 2023F FH
BEREREREEE AESR
BEMEEUARAKEE
B B R, o 3548 IR i 2021 A
Eﬂﬁﬁéxﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ R ER HEEF
W KREREAER-

==

RERBHEREE - A RAKSE
BETRARHEFRRE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Goals and Commitments'’

B e

Progress
ER

BRE HEREA®RS (B

Plan

oL

Goals for waste ¢ By 2022, the Company will complete

management revision on the Restaurant Waste
BEYNER Management System and other internal
systems and standards related to waste  all stores.
treatment and sorting and distribute the 20224 + AR E
related systems and standards to all RE B RT I

restaurants for implementation. For
operating regions beyond the reach of
waste sorting policies, the wastes shall
be subject to sorting and management
under the related system of the
Company.

o 2022F R RAHTERCEBINRE
BHIE)E R IREIE - D EMEREAE
HIERBOER] - W TEEMAFE
EITEEHERT HRUE D BBEE
BABENSEM  BRBERA A
EETHETURDEER -

2.2 Practising Green Operations

To implement the policies for environment management and carry out
green and low-carbon operations, Best Food sets high standards and
works together with various departments of HHG and Xinladao to
optimise the management of GHG emissions, energy, and water
resources in the operation.

Wastewater Treatment

HHG and Xinladao maintain constant management of wastewater in their
day-to-day operations, ensuring that all restaurants are equipped with oil
separators that meet relevant requirements, and the water separated
from oil is discharged into municipal sewage network after complying
with local discharge standard. The waste grease generated by
restaurants and factories is handled by waste grease recycling
companies certified by the government or third parties designated by the
property management company. In terms of wastewater discharge, the
domestic sewage and industrial wastewater generated during the
Company’s operation is treated by the sewage treatment plant in the
factory before being discharged into the local sewage treatment plant for
subsequent treatment. HHG’s Tianjin-based factory has upgraded its
wastewater management capability based on the newly launched
environmental indicators, Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(DB12/356-2018), issued by the local authorities of Tianjin in 2022 to
ensure that its wastewater meets discharge standards.

In 2022, the company has completed
the revision of the above rules and
regulations and implemented them in

7T
SEEMARIE -

In 2023, We Strive to achieve
100% degradable plastics
takeaway packing.

2023 FF FHUE 3R 100% & 5)
BERRNATRBELEEE

o

FERK bt AR =

W

22 BITiRBES

REERBEERRNMGCEBEEZ 7
BASER BBENE S M RE S
FIARSN BLELBIETREREH

M BEIR MOKEIRE R

BE K R 38
ﬂ AR HEEARBERFEYREX
ETEE BRABMELZETHEED
EXRWEEML . DB Z NS KEED
HEEREERETRSKER - FIER
ITHREENEREYZRERILHBTRE
MEZHERNRCEXDWERETNE =
TR W R - ST EEKBEER - R R E
ERBEPEEMETSK EEEKYH

RS KE B ETRIE  BHEASHS
KEBHETEBERE - MaAE TR

FKEW TR BRI&IEB2022F K2 T 8
B FT B 12T K &R & BE IR % )(DB12/356-
2018)  Je A TS K B IR AL 7 - RER R 7Kz
B HE R 2 o

BRERZERERAA
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Exhausted Gas Treatment

The Company abides by the Emission Standard of Cooking Fume
(GB18483-2001) and related local regulations regarding exhausted gas
emission where the restaurants operate, such as the Emission Standard
of Air Pollutant for Catering Industry (DB11/1488-2018) issued by Beijing
and the Emission Standard of Cooking Fume for Catering Industry
(DB12/644-2016) issued by Tianjin. HHG and Xinladao maintained the oil
fume purification equipment and exhausted gas collection systems of all
factories and restaurants this year. Moreover, HHG and Xinladao engage
qualified third parties to clean and check the oil fume purifiers and kitchen
ventilation ductwork of factories and restaurants on a regular basis,
ensuring that such equipment complies with emission requirements.

Waste Treatment

Paying high attention to restaurant waste sorting management, the
Company strictly abides by the Domestic Waste Management Regulation
in Beijing and the Domestic Waste Management Regulation in Tianjin,
and formulates the Restaurant Waste Management System that complies
with local requirements. Relevant systems were revised this year to set
the waste management measures for the restaurants across the country,
including requirements for waste handling by qualified third-party
companies. Such systems ensure the compliance of each restaurant with
the local requirements for waste management and provide waste
management measures for the operation location where the policies for
waste sorting are not yet in covered.

2.3 Optimising Resource Utilisation

In compliance with international and local laws and regulations, Best
Food actively practices green development in its operations by reducing
the impact of environment and continuously increasing resource
utilisation efficiency. Also, the Company strive to accelerate the low-
carbon and energy-saving production and operation methods.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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AARBBRETER(AR EREEBEZE
7 ) (GB18483-2001) Fl 38 & b 48 8 fBg & HE ik
RE - WAL RTCERERRS EMEEE
7 ) (DB11/1488-2018) F1 K & T & £k ¥ Jh
1 BEFAZ %) (DB12/644-2016)55 » AN E E
MEAMFBEREY S THAMME & H
BEFELELRENERRERRETHE R
B ey RETCHLTEEEENE
= HEPIEF TR EY HE R (bR A BB
TERNMBE  REELFAERAREK -

ERYEE
ARB+HEREBRNFHRER BB
AR AE SR E R  CRET
AR ERGIDEBRRRE  HIE T
AEMBRA(EBRIREEHE) - AF
EEXEHBHENET RBLT2H
EPEMERERTR  EhellER
MRGEBEENE=ZTRAIREEFTERK-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Promoting Clean Plate Campaign

Regarding resource utilisation as an important task, HHG is committed to
reducing resource waste. In terms of restaurant operation, HHG acted in
the light of the call of the country for “Clean Plate Campaign” by adjusting
the quantity of meals based on customers’ practical needs to minimise
leftover. HHG prepares materials for dishes on a single-service basis
during the off-peak periods to avoid the waste caused by large
consumption of raw materials when the demand is small.

Xinladao continues to promote “clear the plate” activities, providing
customers with different options including large, small dishes and half rice
to avoid food waste. Also, the Company advocates reduction of food
waste through table cards and tickets, verbal communication, and
poster.

Using Less Plastic

HHG and Xinladao encourages the reduction of plastic products in
operations in response to the Guideline on Further Strengthening the
Control of Plastic Pollution and the Notice on the Solid Promotion of
Plastic Pollution Control issued by the Nation. At HHG restaurants,
disposable tableware is charged at the rates publicly announced at the
cashier desk to encourage customers to use less disposable tableware.
The warehouses of Xinladao replaced conventional plastic boxes with
reusable turnover boxes this year for the food distribution, reducing the
use of plastic products.

Energy Management

Best Food attaches great attention to the energy consumption of each
sector. For the stage of factory production, HHG factories adopt the
digital energy monitoring and management system to track and analyse
the electricity consumption in the factories, and take targeted measures
to save electricity, such as replacing the cold storage insulation panels
and refrigeration unit with the ones of higher energy efficiency. By doing
so, the factories can realise the delicacy management of energy and
lower energy consumption. Xinladao adopts the “Safety Stock Report”
which is based on the digital management platform to manage stocks.
The turnover rates of products have increased by capturing and analysing
the maximum and minimum stocks, safety stock and the days of supply,
accordingly, reducing the resource waste caused by sales drop.

BRE HEREA®RS (B

REXETE
MERTHERERER  BMAORNBLE
RRE -HEERELTH MAAEERER
[ERTHINRE REETERREE
HBETHEEE RIFBHRXRENE
MeMEANEREREERRAERE
DRHNTA BEEFRENHBERT
REFHREME EMEETLENRY
RE e

7

MRESPSHBHEE XCRTH NG
B RETREXNNMES  FOKRFE
HWEBRRMEE  AFER BRE
BEHNANEBERRRYRE

D 2B R 5 R
MEaRMAERGERBER(ENE—F
MRBRISAOREMER) (BN E
BROSZORE TEMBADFARGH - &
EBBEETREBRLVBHERNER - M
EAREMERE -—REELETRELR
ERATHEWRRER HBBETRIH —
REBENER - FTREREAFERHE
ARRERANASEEKEREHMEERX
B - BATEHNERNERE -

BEREE
BRERSEMIZSRENEREABRL &
THREERE NARAIRBERBET
LREBREZEEERG  BRAFTLONT
BRI 3% B9 B BB A S B R EUED
B PIMERERE SRS EREH
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In the transportation sector, Xinladao continues to use cargo to deliver
goods to stores directly, which simplifies the cargo process and reduces
the energy consumption generated in the transportation.

Water Resources Management

Best food continues to strengthen water management and reduces water
usage through promoting processed vegetables and half-processed
vegetables. The two holding brands of Best Food continue to strengthen
the fine management of water resource in factories and implement daily
water-saving management measures in stores to reduce excess water
consumption. HHG continues to use multi-functional water-saving and
energy-saving instruments to improve the water efficiency at store. At the
same time, HHG continues to promote the use of filtered wastewater to
mop the floor, and takes the cost of store resource into employee
performance assessment to further increase the enthusiasm of

EEBRE MAREFERAEVERR
EXEFENEMESG I BLLTEET
R BRETERBREFELENERHE
o

KEREE
BREEMBKEREE BBEET
¥ LFEMNER RLOEERKE -GRE
ETMRERIIEHFEEBCTHKER
B TR EBMEREHKER
B ORL SHKERER - NAREE
WSS KEERE BSPIERA
KA o BB - FNA A E RIS B
B HF R I S5 R
RAMABETERER E—SRAME
B IEHE RO BB -

employees to save resources in stores.

Improvement of Fish Product

ABERIZXR

Xinladao continue to promote live fish instead of frozen fish in fish hotpot to further decrease the resources consumption of products. At the stores, this
measure reduces the thawing steps of frozen fish which effectively reduces the energy consumption of freeze. At the same time, it eliminates the package of
frozen fish which reduces the total package usage. Besides, live fish can be transported without freezing so that it can reduce energy consumption. In 2022,
based on promoting live fish instead of frozen fish on its main product channel catfish, Xinladao promotes Northwest River Regiment and Sturgeon, making
the coverage of frozen fish to live fish reach about 60%. Also, Xinladao continues increase the coverage of stores which use live fish instead of frozen fish,
which has increased to 94% by the end of 2022. In 2022, Xinladao would save about 102,200 kWh of electricity and more than 30,000 cartons due to the
promotion of replacing frozen fish with live fish.

FREFEHAANBPEANAERNBETRABEANEDHRRE E—PREZEMNERER - EMER  ZRERERT RAE
EBRESE BRBRETRAZAEAKERZ AR ZRERERTLAREAMBEEARMBNER BRI TEEVNERERE - It
S ERMERBREZT LR NMBETERARTERNERE 2022F FRECFTEER RERIRBNRAETAER - 371
THELIE RELAMEARETZEIINEE CPRABIAERBEXEIN60% RF HREBRERARARAETRIHON
EBEX HZE02FDRATENMY% - 2022F  ARBETEMERE HREFEAEN102200T L - B KAHEIBEZAE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

2.4 Climate Change Tackling

Best Food has incorporated climate-related risks into its overall risk
management system and carried out climate-related risk management in
the light of the recommended framework of voluntary disclosure that is
based on Task Force on Climate Related Financial Disclosure (TCFD).
Best Food will continue to improve and strengthen its ability to identify
and manage climate-related risks and opportunities to better address
climate change.

Governance

The Board of Directors of Best Food oversees ESG-related risks,
including climate-related risks. The ESG working group is responsible for
the management of climate-related risks, in particular, the Internal Control
and Audit Department is responsible for identifying and assessing risks;
the executives of each subsidiary in charge of ESG management are
responsible for identifying and managing climate-related risks, formulating
corresponding management systems and response measures for the
identified major risks, and conducting daily management of risks. The
ESG working group will report to the Board regarding the above matters
on a regular basis.

BRE HEREA®RS (B

24 BHRKEREL

BRETEZEEAREREERZPMNAEIR
BIlCEBENER Y2BREHEEYEE
B 3% T T #E/)NH (TCFD, Task Force on Climate
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Strategies F &

Best Food is aware of that climate change will affect restaurant 5 22 5% Z| ﬁ{ll “{t BE EEES Lk
operations, supply chains, etc. The transformation risks faced by the ;:ig LR BN A 2R $ 7] T B & 8 1Y @
Company mainly come from policy risks and market risks. The physical &+ Z R B B/\LBZ BETISRER - AR
risks faced by the Company mainly come from the acute and chronic 7 iGN ER I = PK BERRIEE{E

impacts of the extreme weather and natural disasters caused by climate £ # 1& i X & )32 g R EE R 2 M F2
change. Please refer to the table below for the details of specific risks &2 HEREBRAND IR EYFEKS

and response measures:

Main risks Risk profile
TERE®K [ B ¥ ot

T&:

Response measures

P& 5%

Transition risk

HA R R

Policy risk National and local environmental protection policies

I8 2R 2 B continuously intensify. Regulations and requirements
are increasingly strict, which raise the management
cost.
KEMANIRRBEBENE  BEEFHZ
FERMBERESIRSD  EBMEEEREKAK -

Market risk With the impact of climate change, the production

™ % B B and transportation of raw materials may cause
supply shortage and influence the normal operation
of restaurants. In addition, the risk may increase the
costs of raw materials, equipment, freight, labour
which increase the costs of operation.
RIEE(LHTET J?M%#Ei?&ifﬁ%ﬁﬁ
AlREEAEES E’gEB/iE%IE%“@” AR - Z
BEBERRME  RE EWER AN E

—rﬁT%J:/EE iE jJD & %WZ’K °

Physical risk

B

Chronic risk Rising temperature increases the operating costs of

12 1% 3 B restaurants and supply chains.
RARETSEHPIERHERELKE
T+ o

Acute risk Hurricane, torrential rain and snowstorm affect

=% & adversely the normal operation and the surrounding

environment of restaurants.
REARXRMERTESRATZEMERMIERSE
FEMIERIEE-
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e Actively follow up national and local compliance
requirements, formulate, update and implement
all the management measures.

e EHRREBREMTERER  HIFE  EH
WEESBEEEE -

e Continue to optimise supplier management to
ensure the stable operation of the supply chain
and take climate change risks into oonsideration

s FHEEICHERER WREBHEMNEBTE
7 BRE2CEARAAZEEE -

e Pay constant attention to the physical risks of
climate change in the operations and take
measures to mitigate the impact on the
operations.

s HEETREMIRGELERBRAR HR

T FE ) FE S HE 7 - DA PR AR Y 1B ¢ *ﬁmﬂﬁ
@,

e Establish standardised operation codes for
extreme weather and extreme weather
emergency plans.

o 1R i R R AE AR A DA R AR i K R =
iCE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Meanwhile, the low-carbon economic transformation driven by climate
change also brings opportunities to the Company. We encourage low-
carbon consumption among consumers through our products and
services. As the Company promotes the low-carbon development of
society, its reputation of green development has been enhanced, bringing
more opportunities for the Company’s operation. Please refer to “2.3
Optimising Resource Utilisation” for detailed measures.

Risk Management

Best Food has incorporated climate risk (part of ESG risks) into its
corporate risk management system and risk assessment process. Best
Food will identify and monitor climate-related risks in every aspect of the
Company’s operations, and continue to enhance its ability of managing
climate risks. Moreover, it will continuously monitor, review and adjust the
climate risk related management systems and response measures to
reduce the impact of climate risks on the Company. The key risk
management measures taken by the Company in every aspect of its
operations include:

Procurement and production

BRE HEREA®RS (B

BRI RIERZATHOEREEEL
AR QA RMEE  HAEEE M ER
BREMNADEEEBERMEE ©£H#
EHEERBERORE  BAQAAKEIR
RERER  BRAREZTREZHIE - 5
MERELE23BLERMNBIEE -

o=
RIRERIERESGRRN —HD  ARE K
HMAGERREESRRALRARFGR
BeARBBNANEZLERELRA
B SRR A8 BB L B 0 30 AE 4B 0 58 SRR R B Y
EEEES  FEEE R MGABRRERAR
REMERSEEEYEGE RERER
REARAHERNTE - ARIEEZER
MERBNEIZRAREERERE:

The supplier management measures are updated as needed, with climate-related
factors incorporated. Supplier substitution plans are developed based on the

updated management measures, and suppliers are replaced in a timely manner

s RFEFHEBEEME SREZCHEFERMAETERSE  EUILER

national and local regulatory requirements for climate change to enhance green

e HEMBAAREEURERBERMMTOEHRIEECABBEETENR M

The food warehouses are built near the operation location, which can keep the
supply of products undisturbed in the event of supply chain disruption due to the

s HGELZMMMIEVABHRMETHT ERRRELCELANERRARSE

KBEE
according to the management measures;
FHIEHEFERIR URKRBEEIETRUERER
o The Company continues to enhance the internal management and abide by
procurement.
BAREIRE -
Storage and transportation °
REEH
physical risks arising from climate change.
B e T AT - AT ORAE A o ML o
Restaurant operations ° Restaurants are encouraged to implement more energy-saving and
BEEEE environmentally-friendly measures.

s HEMERERTZEHAERREN-
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Please refer to “2.2 Practising Green Operations” and “4.1.3 Supply
Chain Environmental and Social Risk Management” of the Report for
detailed measures for climate-related risk management.

Indicators & Goals

Insisting on the idea of green operation, Best Food is committed to
minimising the impact on the environment within its scope of business. In
2021, based on the national goal to achieve a carbon emission peak by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060? and its own operations, Best Food
set the following goals of reducing GHG emissions:

Goals of GHG emissions °

BERBHERER .

ARREZECERERFAMER F2R
ABREZEEHMR2EBTHBEE | AKI413

HERRE HeRABER]-

BIEF B E
BREBEFEAGOCELZES AR BE
BEEHEAEREENN T E 20214
B &S Bl K IR A 2030k 2 & - 2060 4%
FRMPEEUAERCEEFEERR HET
UTREREREBIZ:

Reduce GHG emission intensity by 2% by 2025 compared to 2020;
20255 )R F R BB P E EAHE 2020 & £ F T E2%

° Reduce GHG emission intensity by 5% by 2030 compared to 2020.
e E2030F  AERBHWNEEHB2020EEF T [F5% °

For greenhouse gas emission indicator data, please refer to section 2.5
Key Environmental Performance of this Report.

2.5 Key Environmental Performance®

Unless otherwise stated, the relevant documentation and performance
are information as at 31 December 2022, covering office areas of HHG’s
headquarter, HHG’s directly operated restaurants, production factories,
logistics centres, and Xinladao’s directly operated restaurants and offices

2 In 2020, the PRC President Xi Jinping announced at the 75th Session of the United
Nations General Assembly that “China aims to peak carbon dioxide emissions by 2030
and strives to achieve carbon neutrality by 2060”.

The environmental performance indicators only cover office areas of HHG’s
headquarter, HHG’s directly operated restaurants, production factories, logistics
centres, and Xinladao’s directly operated restaurants and offices. The resource
consumption of Best Food Holding Company Limited’s headquarter only comes from
a little amount of purchased electricity and water resources consumed by the
operations of the office with negligible impact, so it is not included in the disclosure
scope of environmental performance indicators.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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HHG Environmental Performance Indicators

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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MEARBENERR

2022
Indicators BE 2022 F
Emissions BErk
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! SR = RIS HEMMBE (SE — L& E —) (M)’ 8,896.12
Including: Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) Hep: HEEH R (EE—) (1) 264.85
Natural gas (tonnes) KIRm (H8) 245.72
Including: Petrol (tonnes) 2 (WE) 19.13
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes) RZEHE (8 E =) (E) 8,631.27
Electricity (tonnes) B 7 (H8) 8,631.27
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB miillion in revenue BETWRAREREEKRML, EET) 25.42
(tonnes/RMB million)
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? HMEREZEYHLE ()2 1,001.52
Total non-hazardous waste per RMB miilion inrevenue S ASTWAEEZEEEZEYLE (B BET) 2.86
(tonnes/RMB million)
COD generated (kg) CODEA=(Fm) 43.53
Use of resources EREA
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BERHMEEE JRER)® 13,380.99
Direct energy consumption (MWh) B ¥ 82RB R UK FLE) 1,256.71
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) e 1% e TR B R K FLBS) 12,124.27
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue SEEBITWALEREECLEE BET) 38.23
(MWh/RMB million)
Total water consumption (tonnes)* 4 FE K2 (WE) 4 106,966.04
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BEETWAEKRKE (M HET) 305.62
(tonnes/RMB million)
Packaging (tonnes)® B EEY (BE)° 1,020.87
Packaging per RMB million in revenue BETKRABEY (B, BET) 2.92
(tonnes/RMB million)
BRERERAR

—E-CFEH
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Xinladao Environmental Performance Indicators

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MAEBRREMEERER

2022
Indicators BE 2022 F
Emissions BBy
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! SR = RIS HEMMBE (SE — L& E —) (M)’ 3,716.06
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB million in revenue BETHRAREREHR(E 5 ET) 22.52
(tonnes/RMB million)
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? mEpEEYEs ()2 2,259.59
Total non-hazardous waste per RMB miillion inrevenue SRS TWAEEZEEEZEYLE (I HET) 13.69
(tonnes/RMB million)
Use of resources ERER
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BEREEEE KRS 5,219.91
Direct energy consumption (MWh) BEERREREERR) 0.00
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) fE 5 82 R 08 7 K L) 5,219.91
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue FEETKRAERERECKRE BET) 31.64
(MWh/RMB million)
Total water consumption (tonnes)* BREK = (HA)* 68,955.85
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue FHRETWAREKE (M, BET) 417.91

(tonnes/RMB million)

1. Due to its operating nature, the major emissions of HHG and Xinladao represent GHG 1.
emissions, arising mainly from electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels. Greenhouse
gas lists include carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas is listed
as per CO2 equivalent, and is included in the accounting according to the 2019 China
Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors published by the Ministry of Ecology and

Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

2. Due to its business nature, the major solid waste includes non-hazardous waste such 2.
as kitchen waste and food-producing waste, as well as hazardous waste such as few
waste cartridges and ink cartridges in office areas and factory engine oil. The total
amount of hazardous waste is very small and it is not material to HHG and Xinladao’s

business, hence no disclosure is made.

3. Energy consumption mainly includes purchased electricity, natural gas and petrol. The 3.
energy consumption data are calculated based on the energy consumption of petrol
and natural gas and the conversion factors in the National Standard of the People’s
Republic of China General Rules for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy

Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

4, HHG and Xinladao’s main source of water is public utilities and there is no problem for 4.

HHG and Xinladao to obtain the suitable sources of water.

5. Packaging materials mainly includes cartons and plastic bags.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

3. Employee Development

With the philosophy of “Welcome all talents from all over the world to
contribute to catering industry together”, Best Food regards talents as its
foundation for growth and value creation. Focusing on talent recruitment,
employees’ voices and the protection of legitimate rights and interests of
employees, Best Food has cultivated an equal, healthy, safe and
comfortable environment for employees, and grows together with
employees.

3.1 Employment and Employee Rights

Complying with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Special
Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees, the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees, the Provisions on Minimum Wages
and relevant laws and regulations, Best Food is committed to protecting
employees’ rights and strictly prohibiting the employment of child labour
and forced in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. In addition,
the Company continues to improve its human resources (“HR”)
management system.

Labour Management

The Company is committed to creating a fair and equal working
environment for employees, without regard to gender, age, race, ethnic
and religion. The philosophy of fairness and equality is instilled into every
important step, including recruitment, onboarding, promotion, and
resignation. The anti-discrimination and anti-bullying requirements have
been clearly specified in Xinladao’s Employee Handbook to regulate
employees’ behaviours.

The catering brands under the control of Best Food have established
internal attendance and leave management systems based on national
and local laws and regulations to manage the working hours of
employees. Best Food encourages employees to balance work and life.
Time off in lieu or overtime compensation is offered according to the
Company’s systems to the employees who have worked overtime.
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We strictly prohibit the employment of child labour and forced labour.
HHG clearly stipulates in its Employee Handbook that it is not allowed to
employ or use child labour. Xinladao puts stringent limits on the age of
employees on active duty and new employees, and if such cases are
found, they will be investigated and dealt with in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. The Operational Manual for Personnel Practice of
Xinladao sets out detailed guidance about avoidance of child labour
employment and establishes employee examination mechanism. This
year, under a tightened examination and management agenda, the HR
Department, in conjunction with the Training Department, the Finance
Department and regional managers of Xinladao, conducted monthly
inspections on and paid visits to restaurants, checking employment-
related documents on site. With regard to employment, Best Food
respects the wishes of employees and guarantees their engagement on a
voluntary basis, avoiding forced labour. In 2022, the Company was not
aware of any use of child labour, forced labour or other violations of
employees’ rights.

Best Food handles employee dismission in strict accordance with the
national laws and regulations, and assists employees with resignation
process. The HR specialists or the relevant managers in restaurants will
also communicate with the employees who apply resignation to review
vulnerabilities in our management and operation system and make
relevant adjustment in a timely manner.

Remuneration and Benefits

Best Food offers employees with competitive remuneration and incentives
based on performance and contributions. HHG and Xinladao regularly
review the remuneration packages of their staff, and offer fair and
attractive salaries and bonuses based on their professional qualifications
and work experience.

HHG updated incentive plans of chain stores this year by establishing
restaurants performance bonuses and optimising bonus distribution to
recognise employees’ dedication. Xinladao improved the incentive policy
for peak months and special days, and refined the incentive policy by
business type, which shortened the period of incentive mechanism and
increased the times when incentive policies are enjoyed by employees,
so that employees could receive a more direct recognition and support
for their business capabilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Best Food values employee care and, apart from remuneration
guarantee, provides reasonable welfare guarantee. We ensure that
employees have paid annual leave and maternity leave, and make
contributions for pensions, work injury insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance, medical insurance, and housing provident fund
for all employees according to law. HHG and Xinladao also provide
employees with post allowance, transportation subsidies, labour
protection supply and other additional benefits. We make other constant
efforts to raise employee happiness and satisfaction. For example, HHG
prepares holiday gifts for employees, and Xinladao offers a 30% discount
of restaurants dining for all the personnel.

Communications with Employees

We have launched a variety of internal communication channels, such as
internal on-line platform, email and internal address book, to encourage
employees to share their opinions and create an open and equal working
environment. We also hold regular communication meetings for
employees to listen to their ideas and suggestions. HHG and Xinladao
regularly collect employees’ thoughts and opinions on their work and
respond to their needs in a timely manner.
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311 BEBEEEEN

HEABEEENIEER

3.1.1 Key Social Performance

Best Food headquarter Employment Performance Indicators'

Indicators 2022
B 2022 F
Headcount 72
ETHAE(A)
Headcount by gender Headcount of male employees BEHETITEH 36
HERIE DB THEHE(A) Headcount of female employees 7B T 36
Headcount by age Headcount of employees under 30 F#305% (7 &) LA A 26
RERESETLE(A) (exclusive) 8T A
Headcount of employees between — F #3053k 2 405% (T 2) 1Y 30
30 and 40 (exclusive) BITAH
Headcount of employees between — F #4052 505% (1 5) K 16
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT A
Headcount of employees over 50 FE50m% (B) A £ 0
(inclusive) ET AZ
Headcount by employment type Headcount of employees under MEhSEHIE T A 72
ZREEMESHETAE(A) labour contract system
Headcount of employees under MEREE B T A 0
labour dispatching system
Headcount of full-time employees EPHETAH 72
Headcount of part-time employees ~ 3&H 8 T A& 0
Headcount by area® Headcount of employees inside FREEAMEE T AR 72
B RE D B TRE(A) China
Headcount of employees outside RSN R B T A S 0
China
Headcount by employee level® Headcount of senior management BEREEEETAH 13
HETERESHE THEC(AN) Including: headcount of female Ed - mhEREg s 2
senior management ETAZ
Headcount of middle management A EIE[EE T A&l 42
Headcount of junior employees AEBB T A 17

1. The employment data covers Best Food headquarter. 1. ETHESEREARAETS -
2. Area is defined as the regions where the employees perform their duties. 2. BEOACAETIEB I FEANFTEME -
3. The senior management include the headquarter employees at deputy director level or 3. A EEBREANRAENR A ERBET &

above; the middle management include employees at the manager and deputy

manager level, as well as factory directors.
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Best Food headquarter Employee Turnover Performance
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BERAMEIRIAERERR

Indicators
Indicators 2022
BE 2022
Employee turnover rate by gender, age and area’
BZER FREGBEEINEERLILER
Employee turnover rate by gender (%)  Male employee turnover rate BEHBE T MALE 3.84
LIRS D B TRkt & (%) Female employee turnover rate 7w B I RAH R 2.44
Employee turnover rate by age (%) Turnover rate of employees under FRIOE(TE)ATH 4.20
BFERARE D HE TRKEE%) 30 (exclusive) B TRkl =®
Turnover rate of employees between £ #3085k 2 405% (&) 1Y 3.60
30 and 40 (exclusive) B IRk X
Turnover rate of employees between £ #2405k Z2505% (1T~ &) #) 0
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT RKL=R
Turnover rate of employees over 50 F#505% (&) A EHWE T 0
(inclusive) TR E R
Employee turnover rate by area (%) Employee turnover rate in Mainland A B KBEH [ B T iRk 3.11
iR E D 8 T K X (%) China b &
1. Employee turnover rate = average number of employees leaving each category each 1. BEEREAX-GAKERNBBE T TH A &

month/average number of employees in each category corresponding to the same

period each month

RRAMEHERENE T FHAK

BRERZERERAA
“ECZCFER

D



HHG Employment Performance Indicators'
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MEAETERFEARIEER

Indicators 2022
BE 2022 %
Headcount 1,133
ETHAE(AN)
Headcount by gender Headcount of male employees EHEETHEY 385
WIERIE DB TAH(A) Headcount of female employees B T#E 748
Headcount by age Headcount of employees under 30 #4305k (R &) LA T 127
HFEREI DB THRE(A) (exclusive) ETAE
Headcount of employees between — F #3085 £ 405% (T 5) K 319
30 and 40 (exclusive) BT A
Headcount of employees between — F #4055 Z2505% (&) 1 416
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT A#H
Headcount of employees over 50 FH505% () A EK 271
(inclusive) BTAH
Headcount by employment type Headcount of employees under LE)eREIET AR 560
ZREEMESHETHAE(A) labour contract system
Headcount of employees under BEREH BT AR 539
labour dispatching system
Headcount of full-time employees BB T AH 585
Headcount of part-time employees & 5%k 8 T A &1 9
Headcount by area® Headcount of employees inside FEIREAHE B T A 1,133
TR E| D 8 TRH(A) China
Headcount of employees outside FREEIMDE S T AH 0
China
Headcount by employee level® Headcount of senior management BEREEEETAH 14
ZETREAEIPHNE TRH(A) Including: headcount of female Ed:ghEE8EL 5
senior management BT AH
Headcount of middle management HAREIEEE T A 14
Headcount of junior employees EHEBEBIAH 1,105

1. The employment data cover Beijing HHG Catering Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin
HHG Co., Ltd.

2. Area is defined as the regions where the employees perform their duties.

3. The senior management include the headquarter employees at deputy director level

and above; the middle management include employees at the manager and deputy

manager level, as well as factory directors.
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HHG Employee Turnover Performance Indicators

Indicators

BE
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1

MERBEIRAEAREERR

2022
2022 F

Employee turnover rate by gender, age and area’

BHEA - FRRGES S NESR KL R

Employee turnover rate by gender (%)
1z RIE 5 B T K & (%)

Employee turnover rate by age (%)
RERARE D E TR E (%)

Employee turnover rate by area (%)

iR 25D 8 T K X (%) China
1. Employee turnover rate = average number of employees leaving each category each

month/average number of employees in each category corresponding to the same

period each month

Male employee turnover rate

Female employee turnover rate

Turnover rate of employees under

30 (exclusive)

Turnover rate of employees between

30 and 40 (exclusive)

Turnover rate of employees between

40 and 50 (exclusive)

Turnover rate of employees over 50

(inclusive)

Employee turnover rate in Mainland

B e B Tk %
% 18 B Tt Sk bt

FERIOR(TE)ATH
BT RAKLL =
FHI0mE40m (T E)H
BT RAKL=
FERAORES0R (T E)H
B TRk =
FH505% () A EH
BT RAKLL =

oh A RE MR B TR 4
b %

6.32
517

14.04

5.23

3.85

4.30

5.56

BERAX=BAZHENBERETTHAR B
ARAMEHESENE T FHAK
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Xinladao Employment Performance Indicators'
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MAREETIRBEMEERERXR

Indicators 2022
BE 2022 %
Headcount 855
ETHAE(AN)
Headcount by gender Headcount of male employees EHEETHEY 332
WIERIE DB TAH(A) Headcount of female employees B T#E 523
Headcount by age Headcount of employees under 30 #4305k (R &) LA T 280
HFEREI DB THRE(A) (exclusive) ETAE
Headcount of employees between — F #3085 £ 405% (T 5) K 165
30 and 40 (exclusive) BT A
Headcount of employees between — F #4055 Z2505% (&) 1 148
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT A#H
Headcount of employees over 50 FH505% () A EK 262
(inclusive) BTAH
Headcount by employment type Headcount of employees under LE)eREIET AR 555
ZREEMESHETHAE(A) labour contract system
Headcount of employees under BEREH BT AR 0
labour dispatching system
Headcount of full-time employees BB T AH 555
Headcount of part-time employees & 5%k 8 T A &1 300
Headcount by area? Headcount of employees inside RIS A E B T A SR 855
TR E| D 8 TRH(A) China
Headcount of employees outside FREEIMDE S T AH 0
China
Headcount by employee level® Headcount of senior management BEREEEETAH 5
ZETREAEIPHNE TRH(A) Including: headcount of female Ed:ghEE8EL T 1
senior management BT AH
Headcount of middle management HAREIEEE T A 14
Headcount of junior employees EEB T A 836

1. The data cover Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. and directly operated
restaurants.

2. Area is defined as the regions where the employees perform their duties.

3. The senior management include deputy director level and above; the middle

management include employees at senior manager, manager and deputy manager

level.
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Xinladao Employee Turnover Performance Indicators

BRE HEREA®RS (B

MABEIRRAERERER

Indicators 2022
BE 2022 %
Employee turnover rate by gender, age and area’
BMER - FREMEESHNESR KL R
Employee turnover rate by gender (%)  Male employee turnover rate BB T MALE 12.77
B RIE D 8 TR KR %) Female employee turnover rate B Tk & 11.06
Employee turnover rate by age (%) Turnover rate of employees under FH305% (T &) ATH 18.12
LEEARNE DB B TR K L &%) 30 (exclusive) B Ikt =
Turnover rate of employees between 4 #5305 Z 405% (T2) 1Y 6.83
30 and 40 (exclusive) B I RKE X
Turnover rate of employees between £ #4057 2 505% (1 2) 1 7.19
40 and 50 (exclusive) BT RKLX
Turnover rate of employees over 50  FE #505% (£) A &) 8.05
(inclusive) BT REL=X
Employee turnover rate by area (%) Employee turnover rate in Mainland B K B i [& 8 T i 2k 11.72

iR 25D 8 T K X (%) China
1. Employee turnover rate = average number of employees leaving each category each

month/average number of employees in each category corresponding to the same
period each month

3.2 Occupation Health and Safety

The Company strictly complies with to the Work Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance and other laws and regulations, and has established internal
safety management system and is committed to providing a safe and
sound working environment for all employees.

32.1 Care for Employees’ Health

Best Food is concemed about employees’ health and well-being. HHG
and Xinladao provide free annually health check-up for employees in
headquarter offices and pre-employment health check-up for all new
recruiters; staff of all restaurants, logistics division and related
departments are required to obtain health certificates before on-boarding
and have health examination annually for certificate renewal.

b %
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ARAMEHESENE T FHAK
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HHG has set up the relevant internal documents such as the System of
Labour Safety and Health and Operation Protection to continuously
maintain employees’ production safety. It has also issued the Regulations
on Restaurant Safety Management to further regulate and manage
employees’ health and safety matters at restaurants. HHG has taken the
following measures at restaurants to prevent accidents and strengthen
employees’ safety awareness.

— Equip restaurants with firefighting and safety documentation
portfolio including instructions on using firefighting equipment, and
emergency plans for safety and health accidents;

— Appoint safety administrator in restaurants to regularly conduct
safety training and oversight the implementations;

—  Designate lifeguard and evacuation manager on a proportional
basis to undertake safety responsibility.

Xinladao promulgates the Safety Preservation, Personnel and
Government Policies, Disinfection and Food Safety and issued Xinladao
Restaurant Crisis Operation Guide and Emergency Event Flow Chart to
provide employees with standardised and practical safety guidelines. For
the protection of frontline employees in its restaurants, Xinladao requires
restaurant managers to address safety risks in a timely manner by
patrolling the restaurants daily. For second-line employees, Xinladao
arranges safety trainings at regular intervals to enhance their safety
awareness. It also provides employees with optional supplementary
medical insurance and financial support for accidents.

Besides, we also arrange a variety of spare time activities for employees.
HHG organises team building activities at intervals, such as mid-autumn
celebration and birthday parties for new employees, to raise the sense of
belonging. The Company also pays attention to employees’ psychological
health. We send relevant persons every month in charge to visit
employees at restaurants to learn about their working and living
conditions and provide timely encouragement and guidance. During the
year, HHG also distributed the Dietary Guidelines for Chinese Residents
(2022) issued by the Chinese Nutrition Society to all staff through the
internal official account “HOMETOWN?” to remind them to arrange their
meals properly during the epidemic.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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Xinladao organised activities such as talent shows and mountain hikingto ¥ EAGHER T T &% 8 LE RS E
help staff relax after work. In order to ease employees’ mood while EE)  FEE TR ITEZBEWBRF L o R -
staying at home during the epidemic, it invited employees to participate A4 S TR IS ITHBAOOIE  FrEa
in activities such as book sharing sessions, fitness competitions, cooking 44 THEEZH =€ @ E AL HER
demonstrations and craft activities to help neutralise their emotions and R~ F L/EHE 5% SHE THAMBE -
relieve stress. ETEEIR 7 o

Team Building Activity of Xinladao in 2022
2022FFREEEDD

3.2.2 Implementing Production Safety 322 BEBXEZLZS

Best Food places emphasis on production safety, and has built a BHREZEER ij* ZE UWEERTE2EDH
comprehensive management system for factory production safety to T HAELZ L2 ETEBZMNEE BL 2 4%
embed the concept of production safety in daily production and EE4 T E3Z EI ) E@ [k ==l

operation.

In order to ensure that equipment is used in a disciplined mannerandto AR ZB R EF BHE & HEMHEFT AR
avoid relevant risks, the following measures have been taken on an S MEATMBEEDN T A TEBRE

ongoing basis at the HHG plant to ensure production safety: HEELRZS:

—  Set up special equipment team who implements electricity safety — SJRVHEFNREH: B 5EEELE2H
management, timely rectifies electrical safety violations and EEEMEBATETBEHEMBEEIT
eliminates identified safety risks arising from faulty electricity B THRE BRIEERELDE
facilities; =

—  Assign special personnel in charge of safety for each production — XEBZ2E5TEHE: SE4EER
equipment, checking and confirming the safe operation of the HMEZ2EFEEN=E /\ B HFERH
equipment before starting up and after shutting down; < 1| iﬂ] Eﬁ 75% 2B HRE MIER R

TR E
BRERERAE
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—  Formulate management measures for special equipment, such as
equipment with electrostatic discharge ground clip, which must be
correctly clamped before use, where special personnel is assigned
to periodically check whether the metal on both ends of the clip is
still properly attached to the equipment;

— Arrange fire safety personnel to regularly inspect fire control matters
in the factory, and mark and record risk points;

—  Build up freezer shift system, stipulating that employees working in
freezer shall alternate shifts every 40 minutes, and provide labour
protection supplies, including cotton clothes, cotton shoes, gloves,
etc.

In the past three years, there has been no work-related death in Best
Food, HHG and Xinladao.

Work-related injuries and work time lapse due to work-
related injuries in HHG'

- HIERKRRBEERE HHYBHF
ERMRORE EEREEAAL
AR EEMRS AIFEE ALHEFEA
THREEMRMHEBSENE
o

- RHEBZEZE: EMKERERD
FIE - WHREREERBERE

- BURREWHEGIE: STHELLR
EMET RESRIODEMAEHMR
B UYABETRETHER BE-
FEZFEFRAM-

BE=-FER MEABEFBRETRELE
RAITTHEMS-

MEAEIESEBAIEHE

2022
Indicator BE 2022 F
Work time lapse due to work-related injuries (Days) IEB&LXIEBHCR) 111
1. The number of work-related injuries refers to the number of work-related injuries 1. IXREAEIEBRBEMWANERMEERER

identified by the local Human Resources and Social Security Bureau.

This year, there were no work-related injuries recognized by the local
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in Best Food headquarter
and Xinladao.

3.3 Employee Development and Growth

The Company attaches importance to the cultivation of talents and
always counts employee development as an important driving force for
enterprise development. We have been creating favourable conditions for
employees to better explore their potential and achieve continuous
learning and growth, tailoring career paths for different roles and helping
employees in various positions to improve their professional skills and
working abilities.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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With the philosophy of “discovering, cultivating and perfecting talents”,
HHG has established the training, certification and promotion rules for
chain stores. HHG has established clear career path and promotion
system for employees, which specify the business experiences, learning
contents and training courses that employees in each position need to
obtain and complete for promotion, helping them develop their own
career development plans in a more scientific manner. It has set up a
strict promotion process, including assessment and certification, which
promotes talents based on their professional qualification and working
performance, so as to provide outstanding talent resources for its
development. In 2022, it revised the orientation training process for new
hires to help them better understand HHG, grasp working skills and grow
rapidly.

This year, HHG launched a rotation program for recent graduates
recruited by HHG. Based on their majors, wishes and needs, HHG
offered them with on-the-job learning and training opportunities in the
Product Department, the Channel Department, the Quality Control
Department and the Customer Service Centre. They can decide their final
positions based on their learning experience in the actual post, striving to
make the best of their talents.

Under the philosophy of “cultivating subordinates, guiding others,
respecting superiors, predecessors and teachers, as well as keeping
diligent and eager to learn”, Xinladao provides diverse and up-to-date
learning resources for employees for their personal growth and career
development. It makes constant efforts to improve its employee
assessment and promotion mechanism, building a transparent and
systematic transfer and promotion process for employee at all levels and
in all positions in the restaurants. Xinladao has established a hierarchical
and professional training system to carry out targeted training.

° With regard to specific position at restaurant, it conducts relevant
awareness enhancement and skill training for leading positions,
service positions, food delivery positions, and cleaning positions;

o With regard to the features of management position, it arranges “functional
empowerment training” for the management personnel to help the
new management of the restaurant realise role-switching and
constantly improve the business competence and management
quality of the management level.
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On-duty Assessment Training Workshop
BEUFEZFIITHEE

In order to enhance the competency of management team at restaurant regarding on-duty arrangement and assessment, Xinladao opened a specialised
on-duty assessment training workshop this year. The workshop organised monthly activities under the theme of on-duty skill improvement, and made
the skill training more interesting through communication and drills, and interactions similar to daily operations. The management team made a significant
progress in on-duty skills and management confidence after continuous learning and sharing.

RRAFEEREHERZHFNFENEEED HREAFERARTEMNERTEBEIIEEZ - TEEGABBRAERRENE
BHREAELE TRBBERANER MORBELNEHIN  RARGEINERE - ETEWBENOZ 2T ERAMEIIRE
MERELA THERM -

MRBEINIAEES
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Best Food headquarter Employees Training Performance

Indicators’

Indicators
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Total number of trainees (Person)

I EAB(A)

Percentage of employees participating

in training by gender (%)

BIMERIE D EIIE T HD (%)

Percentage of employees participating in
training by employee level (%)
REIERESHNXIE LA D HA%)

Training hours per capita (Hours)

A2 REFIE & ()

Training hours per capita of employees by

gender (Hours)

BERIB DB T A2 HEE

(/)NBF)

Training hours per capita of employees by

employee level? (Hours)

REIEREODWEIANGZH

5 Al By &2 (/)

employees
1. The related data of employees covers Best Food headquarter.
2. The senior management includes employees at the headquarter deputy director level

and above; the middle management includes employees at the manager and deputy

manager level.

Total number of trainees at office

Percentage of male employees

participating in training

Percentage of female employees

participating in training

Percentage of senior management

participating in training

Percentage of middle management

participating in training

Percentage of junior employees

participating in training

Training hours per capita of male

employees

Training hours per capita of female

employees

Training hours per capita of senior

management

Training hours per capita of middle

management

Training hours per capita of junior

BTHIEEEERETRE -

E%ﬁn"u\_l-lgg Ii Jll AR X \&}E ‘134%1
2022
2022 F
PBREFIBAHE 99
EHEET2NEINE D 100
ZHEEBTZ2MEIE DL 100
EREREZ2MEI 100
ANk
FAREERE2 NS 100
Elald
HEBTITZ2NEIE L 100
7.95
EHBETAHEINE 14.58
ZHEEB T AHEINE 17.50
BREEEAHEINE 53.71
FREREAEEIRE 18.61
HEB T AHEIRE 45.97
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HHG Employees Training Performance Indicators' MEREIEIERIEER
Indicators 2022
BE 2022 %
Total number of trainees (Person) Total number of trainees at BELEE I B A B 79
Z B AE(A) headquarter
Total number of trainees at PYJE 15 T 48 A B 883
restaurants
Percentage of employees participating in ~ Percentage of male employees SHEIZNEINES L 92
training by gender (%) participating in training
HHEREDHZINE THD (%) Percentage of female employees Z M8 T2 ME A DL 89
participating in training
Percentage of employees participating in ~ Percentage of senior management = 4% & I2 |8 2 hn 52 71 100
training by employee level (%) participating in training AN

HETELRBSHNZININE TEHDLA%) Percentage of middie management &
participating in training
Percentage of junior employees AEEETI2NBZIED L 96
participating in training

RERE2mE 100

Training hours per capita (Hours) 48
A2 EER R (NE)

Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of male  E M8 T A EIIRE K 45
gender (Hours) employees
HERIEIDHE TAHZ2ELEEK  Training hours per capita of female # |4 & T A 1E 35 & 49
(/NEF) employees
Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of senior SR EEE A EIIE K 40
employee level® (Hours) management
HETELRI»ME T AL HE Training hours per capita of middle = 4% & I8 & A 955 3)|iF & 44
5l B =2 () management
Training hours per capita of junior E[E & T AHFIJIF K 49
employees
1. The related data of employees covers Beiing HHG Catering Management Co., Ltd. 1. BIEIIEBESEREILR ﬂ]/\ N Z BRI B R
and Tianjin HHG Co., Ltd. RARKENEBRELRBERA
2. The senior management includes employees at the headquarter deputy director level 2. SR EEEREANBNAENIAERRE T F
and above; the middle management includes employees at the manager and deputy MEBEEREREBERISCERAB T -

manager level.
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Xinladao Employees Training Performance Indicators' MR BEE I ERIEER
Indicators 2022
BE 20224
Total number of trainees (Person) Total number of trainees at BELEE I B A B 28
Z B AE(A) headquarter

Total number of trainees at PIE BB A 1,200

restaurants
Percentage of employees participating in ~ Percentage of male employees SHEIZNEINES L 100
training by gender (%) participating in training

HHERIEIDHZINE T HE DL (%) Percentage of female employees Z 8 T2 ME A DL 100

participating in training

Percentage of employees participating in ~ Percentage of senior management = 4% & I2 |8 2 hi 52 71 100
training by employee level® (%) participating in training ERald
HETRERESHZINE TH DY %) Percentage of middle management 7 4% & 12 |8 2 N2 3 100
participating in training
Percentage of junior employees AEEETI2NBZIED L 100
participating in training

Training hours per capita (Hours) 18
A2 EER R (NE)

Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of male  E M8 T A EIIRE K 18
gender (Hours) employees
HERIEIDHE TAHZ2ELEEK  Training hours per capita of female # |4 & T A 1E 35 & 18
(/NEF) employees
Training hours per capita of employees by  Training hours per capita of senior SR EEE A EIIE K 48
employee level® (Hours) management
HETELRI»ME T AL HE Training hours per capita of middle = 4% & I8 & A 955 3)|iF & 48
5l B =2 () management
Training hours per capita of junior E[E & T AHFIJIF K 18
employees
1. The related data of employees covers Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. and 1. EIEIEESEREL R REEREEAR
directly operated restaurants. RAIAREEPIE
2. The senior management includes employees at the headquarter deputy director level 2. SR EEEREANBNAENIAERRE T F
and above; the middle management includes employees at the manager and deputy MEBEEREREBERISCERAB T -

manager level.
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4 Corporate Responsible Operations

Relevant UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
HH B B & B 7] 5 4 % R B 12 (SDGs)

Best Food applies the principle of responsible operations throughout the
whole chain management. We continue to optimise supplier selection
and evaluation criteria, strengthen identification and prevention of supply
chain risks, and build up green supply chain to safeguard customers’
food safety. We have made continuous efforts to fight against corruption
and promote integrity, and strictly abide by laws and regulations. We
respect the protection of intellectual property rights, and do our utmost
to ensure data security and advertising compliance, in a bid to protect
customers’ rights and interests and our sound operation on all fronts.

4.1 Supply Chain Management

Strictly observed to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Tendering and Bidding, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations, we have continuously
improved the supply chain supervision mechanism. Both HHG and
Xinladao have organised professional work teams to manage supply
chain process and continuously focus on the efficiency and effectiveness
of supplier management. We have established sound supplier selection
and daily performance evaluation mechanisms to ensure high-quality raw
material supply. Attaching importance to ESG risk prevention and control
for supply chain, the Company conducts ESG risk assessments of
suppliers and each part of the supply chain, and takes risk response
measures (e.g. inventory monitoring) to lower environmental and social
risks in the supply chain. We shoulder our responsibility of promoting
green development and work with our suppliers to optimise the usage of
tableware and packaging materials to create a green supply chain.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

41.1 Supplier Access

HHG continues implementing rules such as the Work Procedure of HHG
Procurement Committee and Procurement Bidding Management System.
Also, HHG established a top-down responsibility division system and a
supplier management system including the board of directors, the
procurement committee and relevant management departments to work
together to complete the supplier screening work. The Board of Directors
of HHG is responsible for the review of the bulk procurement of the
Company, and supervises the implementation of the qualification
process. The Procurement Committee conducts the qualification review
and approval for suppliers and evaluated whether they meet the HHG’s
procurement standards in terms of labour, food safety, and environmental
protection. The legal affair is responsible for searching whether the
supplier breaks the laws and regulations and have the public punishment
record. Moreover, they summarize the relevant negative matters to the
Procurement committee as the basis for evaluation and review.

Following the Supplier Access Mechanism, Xinladao conducts
quallification inspection on all suppliers. It optimises the review and
approval process through the Office Automation (OA) system to perform
efficient on-site or remote reviews. Each department of Xinladao has a
clear division of functions and responsibilities. The Purchasing
Department is responsible for supplier bidding and admittance, which
mainly includes querying the administrative punishment records of the
suppliers regarding employment, food safety, environmental pollution and
other aspects. The Quality Control Department is responsible for supplier
operation on-site review, and making scores on suppliers’ production
management ability, product processing quality, environmental and
healthy control, personnel management, etc.

4.1.2 Supplier Performance Evaluation

HHG has established the Supplier Management System to conduct
regular assessment of suppliers’ performance in terms of contract
fulfilment, product quality, environmental and hygiene control, etc. For the
non-compliance identified during the inspection, HHG communicates
with suppliers in a timely manner and discusses solutions together. In
case of batch quality problems, the Company will terminate cooperation
with the supplier concerned.
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The Purchasing Department and Operation Department of Xinladao jointly
conduct supplier performance evaluation, and they complete the Supplier
Review based on suppliers’ performance in terms of supply ability,
delivery term, supply quality, packaging, and services. As it stresses the
identification and monitoring of supply quality and safety, Xinladao adopts
the PQNC system to classify and report the quality of the food materials
used by each restaurant, and identify product quality problems of each
batch. If common problems occur in products at multiple restaurants, it
will contact suppliers and ask them to conduct rectification. For suppliers
who fail to meet the standards, it will terminate the cooperation with
them.

413 Supply Chain Environmental and Social Risk
Management

Best Food always highlights the management of supply chain
environmental and social risks. The Company incorporates such risks
into risk management database, regularly conducts risk identification and
risk assessment, formulates risk response measures and reports to the
Board of Directors. We cooperate with various departments to implement
supply chain risk management measures and keep a watchful eye on risk
management to mitigate related risks. The major supply chain
environmental and social risks we identified during the year and
countermeasures include:

° Environmental risks
o] Policy risks

The national laws and regulations related to environmental protection
continue to be tightened, placing higher demands on enterprises’
environmental risk management. All relevant parties in the supply chain
are required by the Company to strictly comply with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China. We also discuss risk
management measures with suppliers and monitor their implementation
of such measures.

o Social risks
Under the impact of climate change and policy adjustments, inventory

tracking delay may occur, resulting in risks on food safety and quality in
the supply chain.

Best Food Holding Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

HHG has prepared an emergency stocking plan, which requires major
non-local suppliers to set up warehouses and vegetable production
bases in surrounding areas of Beijing, so as to effectively respond to the
risks posed to the supply chain by unforeseen circumstances.

u Rice suppliers in Heilongjiang have stocked up at the processing
plants in Langfang, Hebei Province to prevent the impact of traffic
control on supplies due to extreme weather and epidemics.
Supplies of around 250 tonnes per month are guaranteed by their
inventories;

u Takeaway meal box suppliers in Dalian ensure their supply of
around 600,000 boxes per month by renting warehouses in Daxing,
Beijing;

u Suppliers for food raw materials grow commonly used vegetables
for production (e.g. green kale and lettuce) in Yanging, Beijing, and
prepare warehouses with sorting and storage capacity in Xin Fa Di
Market, Beijing, to ensure the supply of vegetables of stable quality.

Xinladao has adopted a “Safety Stock Report” mechanism to
systematically manage supply chain inventory, and track and adjust
inventory in a timely manner, reducing under- or over-supply of
ingredients. It has also applied a “dual-supplier mechanism”, and
conducts regular product exhibitions to increase supplier options. In July
2022, since the original supplier of Xinladao was unable to offer cattle
stomach due to the epidemic in Henan Province, the Procurement
Department promptly activated an alternative supplier to ensure the
supply of quality ingredients.
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414 Promoting Green Procurement in the Supply Chain
Best Food keeps its commitment to green development and cooperates
with suppliers to continue reducing the use of plastics, proactively apply
environmentally friendly materials and streamline the packaging, in a bid
to propel green development. At the stage of supplier access, HHG gives
priority to suppliers who use environmentally friendly materials such as
biodegradable bags, photodegradable bags and PLA straws. This year,
HHG replaced the suppliers of carrier bags in its takeaway sector with
those offering biodegradable materials, driving a greener supply chain.
Xinladao makes joint efforts with suppliers to mitigate the negative impact
on the environment by encouraging them to prioritise the use of larger
packaging during selecting stage instead of the smaller one and to lessen
the amount of packaging used when assembling the same number of
products. It also prioritises the cooperation with larger suppliers with
better performance in environmental protection, so as to improve the
overall pro-environment in its supply chain. During the year, Xinladao
selected large grain and oil suppliers with better performance in
environmental protection to further practice the idea of enterprise green
procurement.

415 Supplier Key Performance*

As at the end of the reporting period, the total number of suppliers of
HHG and Xinladao was 148 and the breakdown of suppliers by
geographical region is as follows:

HHG Supplier Data Sheet'

414 REHBBZORE
BREBTHREAR ETHEBEH FE
W ERERARERME BEEEYE
B -BhksgeRR  EHEREAR
B NMEeABEZEERMEYERR X
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KERE MEAEBTHEXHPHFIE
KR EEREHATEBEMENHE
BETAE RETHERSERE - FKR
BREAEEHARBEHRBENNA@EF
g SEftEREeEREERELER
REERRNEE ERERSHEES®
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ZRERRNTEXRREMEF AL HIE
BETAE U2 HEET A F HFE oA
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AR T ER £ RETEE
HRERBONESD -

415 HEEBEREE W
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A E B148 - R E B 5 M 1 E R HE
mE :

MeAaHEBEEXR

2022
Regions where suppliers operate HEGLEEMEHE 2022
Total suppliers in Mainland China PR KR E R ERESE 86
Suppliers in East China EREHRERYE 12
Suppliers in South China EmiEHEERYE 0
Suppliers in Central China EhREETHEE 4
Suppliers in North China EiwREEHEE 62
Suppliers in Northwest China it EmEE 1
Suppliers in Southwest China it EEEE S E 1
Suppliers in Northeast China RitwEHERESE 6
1. This year, all of HHG’s suppliers were from mainland China. 1. REE  MEAEERORAPEAERER -
4 Suppliers include those who provide relevant services for Best Food main catering ~— * HEEREAERILEREFNRBBBRSEDN

business. fHrpER
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Xinladao Supplier Data Sheet’

BRE HEREA®RS (B

MREREEEER

2022
Regions where suppliers operate HESEERMEHE 2022 F
Total suppliers in Mainland China B KR [E R AR 62
Suppliers in East China ERmERERHE 8
Suppliers in South China EEmEHEERHE 0
Suppliers in Central China EhinEEERHE 1
Suppliers in North China ZimREREHEE 46
Suppliers in Northwest China At REEEEE 1
Suppliers in Southwest China it EEEE S E 6
Suppliers in Northeast China Rit = EEEmEE 0
1. This year, all of Xinladao’s suppliers were from mainland China. 1. KEE FyEHrgyRkgh B KER -

4.2 Information and Privacy Security

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations including the Civil Code
of the People’s Republic of China, the Personal Information Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, and the
Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China. We constantly
optimise the way in which private information is obtained and stored, and
enhance the protection of information and data through multiple
channels, ranging from the internal information management system to
external third-party management systems, to protect the rights and
interests of our customers.
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HHG’s IT department applies a way of “multi-layer encryption +
hierarchical access control” to safeguard information security. In terms of
membership information management, HHG adopts its permission
control approach to set up employees’ access rights to member
information according to their posts, and stipulates data confidentiality
clauses and corresponding default clauses in the contract to restrain the
rights of third-party companies developing the membership information
management system. During the year, HHG further expanded the scope
of data and information management and strengthened the protection of
consumer information in on-line orders by setting up an encryption
system for consumer information in the takeaway sector and only
authorising such information to administrative staff. HHG staff at
restaurants are required to provide internal contacts to consumers with
such request, so that consumers can reach to the restaurant on their
own initiative unilaterally, reducing the risk of their contact information
leakage. HHG also updated the ordering mechanism in the app for
members this year, so that individual users do not need to authorise the
use of personal information such as WeChat nicknames and phone
numbers while placing orders, further safeguarding their privacy.

Xinladao safeguards customers’ rights and interests and privacy from
multiple angels, including management of channels, rules and data. It has
adopted customer relation management (CRM) system and engaged
experienced third-party companies to help manage the data. Prior to the
cooperation, Xinladao requires third-party companies to sign
confidentiality clauses to ensure storage and access security of member
data. The primary data of its customers is encrypted and stored on the
third-party cloud platform. It has also established the access
management and remote disaster recovery mechanism to back up the
data to the local server every day.

In 2022, the holding brands of the Company had no significant incidents
related to exposure of customer privacy.
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4.3 Anti-corruption

Best Food strictly abides by laws and regulations, such as the Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery, and continues to refine the internal anti-corruption management
to ensure the healthy development of the Company. In 2022, Best Food
continues to provide the integrity and anti-corruption training for all
employees, and makes relevant reports to all directors at the board
meeting. It also produces the integrity construction training courseware
and engages all directors and employees in learning. In 2022, no litigation
regarding corruption was filed against the Company.

The Internal Control Department of Best Food is responsible for internal
anti-corruption and monitoring, which prevents the risk of corruption in all
aspects of operation and management, and handles corruption reports.
We have issued the Administrative Measures for Complaints and Reports
(the “Measures”), which stipulates the scope of reporting, reporting
methods and channels, and handling procedures after receiving reports,
and require each business entities to post the Measures in the public
office areas. Our holding companies have formulated the Anti-
Commercial Bribery Clause as an additional agreement to the commercial
contract, requiring all suppliers to sign at the access approval stage, so
as to regulate their behaviours.

HHG has no tolerance for corruption, bribery or embezzlement of public
funds. The Employee Handbook conveys the ideas of anti-corruption and
anti-fraud, and has explicitly stipulated the inspection and punishment for
corruption and bribery. For employees who commit serious negligence of
duty, illegal acts for personal gains and fraud, HHG will pursue criminal
responsibility and economic compensation according to relevant laws.
HHG has set up public mailboxes, party building bulletin boards, and
corruption complaint boxes for employees to report corruption, bribery,
abuse of power, extortion and fraud, and launched the Detailed
Implementation Rules for the Corruption Complaint Box to protect the
privacy of whistleblowers. HHG takes immediate action to deal with
suppliers involved in violation of integrity. This year, HHG added the
commercial bribery prohibition clause in the franchise contract to further
maintain the order of fair competition and promote its healthy
development.
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Xinladao sets up various supervision and reporting channels such as
working group, e-mail and phone, so that employees can timely report
issues and the relevant mechanism for whistleblower protection is
specified in the employee handbook to provide employees with
comfortable reporting channels. Xinladao ensures that all reporting
channels are fully accessible, and the issues reported can be investigated
in time. As for significant problems such as illegal operation and potential
fraud, the internal control department will carry out timely follow-up. Once
the facts are verified and confirmed, the problems will be dealt with
seriously. Xinladao regularly inquire and spot check the management
situation of the related department about supplier price selection to
ensure the rational and compliance of the price of different materials
purchased by enterprises. This year, Xinladao drafts a Supplier Integrity
Commitment and required suppliers which have potential risks in the past
must sign the commitment before cooperation.

4.4 Intellectual Property Protection

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations including the Civil Code
of the People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, resolutely
safeguarding our own rights and interests in accordance with the law. We
protect our intellectual property rights and maintain the honourable image
of our brand by promptly applying for patents and spontaneously
monitoring the risk of trademark infringement in the market. At the same
time, we respect the intellectual property rights of others and obviate
infringement on intellectual property rights through a strict review process
of promotional materials. As at the end of the reporting period, one IP
image copyright was registered by Xinladao this year.
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4.5 Compliance Advertising

The Company strictly complies with the relevant laws and provisions in
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and truly and
objectively reflect the advertising content. Before the promotion content
released by brands under Best Food, such content and the related
materials are strictly reviewed by multiple departments according to
relevant laws and regulations to ensure the rigour and authenticity of the
information.

HHG and its partners have signed the advertising endorsement
agreement, and negotiated and confirmed that within the validity period
of the agreement, the image, voice and name of the spokesperson can
be applied for omnichannel promotion of HHG’ s products or brands. At
the same time, the Company ensures that the content of advertisements
is consistent with the requirements of laws and regulations, and does not
carry any political complexion or religious tendency. Xinladao has
established the Advertising Law Content Specifications to standardise
the internal management process of advertising and publicity, which
clearly requires brands to carry out publicity based on the actual product,
and avoid unreasonable content misleading consumers. Xinladao
maintains a rigorous review of the promotional content and conducts
self-examination of promotional brochures introducing products and
dining environment, especially the authenticity of publicity information on
products, including product-related regions and relevant numerical
information. In 2022, the Company had no significant violation against the
laws and regulations related to advertising.
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5. Social Responsibility for Public Benefit 5, #E21REMRE

NOPOVERTY QUALITY EDUCATION SUSTAINABLE CITIES
Ity AND COMMUNITIES

EUHE
AEBE
A E

iiid | W | B

Best Food places emphasis on community involvement and is committed B @ER ER T B 28 - M HEM & 5=
to building a harmonious and mutually beneficial relationship with the & FI| - @ MK L L (&K - A B JE F 2
community. Its holding and shareholding companies actively undertake X E LR D ERBBAEH S A S ST 5
social responsibilities for public benefit and give full play to their strength. S 2 ENF¥ H= > BEHEES AT E
They communicate with employees, customers, and local governments T E X - # A BTSN ER - TR
of places where they operate to understand the short-term and long-term 5SS HiBEI R ERE Sk - BB L WAL H & #4952
needs of the region. In addition, they serve and repay the society by F  -EEHT BEEERNRESEH - RBE
participating in activities related to sports, army support and care for tt& - B o

underprivileged children.

Organising Sports Matches to Carry Forward Sportsmanship
ERRAEY RERERY

HHG pursues the spirit of “strive forward and never stop”, and believes that, by doing physical exercise, people will not only
become stronger but also get inspired to input positive energy into society. It organises sporting events to enrich the sporting
and cultural experience of the public. In June 2022, HHG and its partners jointly arranged an amateur football tournament,
which diversified the sporting culture of the general public and promoted a healthy lifestyle.

MeER—BERAZ[TARHE X TIEFINEERES HEBEEPTUERARBRNAKEEAL  BRULE
HRERE AREREMBEES S5 ARBELETE 2022F6 8 MarAGIERHEBARNT —
SEREHE BEARBEL  HERRES -
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Delivering Our Care and Love to Army and Their Families
BEIEAER BEL¥ER

HHG advocates the fine tradition of supporting the army and giving preferential treatment to their families, and always
provides support for serving soldiers, their families and veterans. It takes practical measures to support the army and give
preferential treatment to their families, and provide jobs for veterans. It gives priority to military personnel in serving meals at
the restaurant and offering delivery services, and arranges positions and related training for veterans, showing love and care
to military personnel. In 2022, HHG was praised as a member of the Socialised Army Support Unit at the Capital.
MEAEBLAEATEENERES BEBFARREAN BFAEE BRREAZFMEL -RAFRKNEEE
=T AR RRLXBSFSEIE FEEBLIREARMBERXERYG UTARKEARHBERELC
LiEIES  VEREARIIBEMERE -2022F - e RELAEH T SLHEEKEEA -

Helping Underprivileged Children Grow Up with a Healthy Childhood
LEERRE PHRERER

HHG has always cared for children in poverty and is devoted to guarding their healthy and happy growth. HHG employees
actively participates in the public welfare activities carried out by Beijing Chunmiao Charity Foundation. In 2022, HHG was
awarded the “Caring Enterprise” certificate of merit by Beijing Chunmiao Charity Foundation.
MER—EBEBELHEIERRE BN TEERNREREREN R NEeRAEBEIEB2HBItREEESE
PERERNAGRIER  FHEFL 2022F MEARFHIIREFEEASESERENIBOREIRERZRK -
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(R -HEgR

)RR R

Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
& 5 HERSEEH ¥
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: ~ Board Statement 212

BIRRE

HEFSHLMNEBR EFHATIASR

()  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
) HEEESHURE HENEARFENEE:

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

@ BFEENRE HEREAEBRFIHLEE 8
BRI REREENRE H8REREBEE
H(BREETARBEOAR) MBI &

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how they
relate to the issuer’s businesses.

Q) EFGHMRESR HEREGHEBERRE
B WERBRe M EETAEBEHE-
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Corresponding
Issue Description report chapter

= E R HEREEEH

Page
B

Reporting Principles
BEE ¥R R A

Reporting Boundary
e <3 &5

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the About the Report
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG BN A WS
report:

HASKMEBERERE g kEgomsRumERT

i 3 R A1) -

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(iiy if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results
of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

EEM RE HELERREREE  0BFIEER

B HekErRENBRERELRARMER: ()W
BOTABETHOELZ2E BRANEERHMHENRER R
BITARMEL2HENBERER -

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

Bt BRERENE ERER(WER)FTARIZE .
FECBRE/IFEIAENER  URAERMNEREA
HHRRIE T HREE -

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

— M BETARERE HeREARSTRESTA
FERERETEENEE (W) IANEMTEEEERL
WEEBEREE -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG About the Report
report and describing the process used to identify which entities B A 2N £ &

or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a

change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference

and reason for the change.

MEBRE HeRERMESMERDE - KA it P i Le
ERIEBMOARE HERELIRGNBE - FERSD

EBMAE BTAEBRBEIRZEREHRA -
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Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
11 =B HEREEEH HE

A. Environmental
AR

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT: HEHRY
General Disclosure Information on: Adhering to Green 229-240
— R E FHRERIRERBEN  MAKRTMEEET - BERE  Development
FEEVHNELESH BRGEER
(@  the policies; and
(@ HBE: &
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
() BTHBTABEAZENHBZEZRRONE -
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Adhering to Green 238-240
B A B IR AT A BED W & %8 KR A HE BB - Development —
Key Environmental
Performance
BREGeEERE—
BRIRBEX
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas  Adhering to Green 238-240
BRI B IZA1.2 emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per Development —
unit of production volume, per facility). Key Environmental
B (EE) kg REE (BHE2) ) BEREHENE KL (LABE  Performance
FEIR(MERBE(WMLNEESEM  BERBTE) - BRHEEER -
BRIRIEE N
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Adhering to Green 238-240
FAREBUEREALS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Development —
facility). Key Environmental
FTEEAEREEDES (UHEE) R (WER)EE (LA Performance
BESEM BERKBTHE) - BEGEERE —
R IR R AW
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11 =B HEREEEH HE
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Adhering to Green 238-240
HAREBUEREAL4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Development —
facility). Key Environmental
FREEEREEEDES (UHEEE) R (WER)EE (LA Performance
BESEMN BERMTE) - BESEERE —
R IR IR AR
KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Adhering to Green 230-231
FAREBUEEALS achieve them. Development
MO NERERRREINELERMERNY BHESZEER
B e
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Adhering to Green 230-231
FAREBUEIZALG handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ~ Development —
taken to achieve them. Practising Green
MR EERBEEEYN L KM ATET S8R E Operations
BRERREIELEFEMERIRO LR - BEREER —
BT BES
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHEA2: EREA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Adhering to Green 229-240
— R E water and other raw materials. Development —
ERERBER(BIEER  KREMEME) BB Optimising Resource
Utilisation
BESEER —
B{EIRF A
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Adhering to Green 238-240
B AR IR IR A2 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. Development —
per unit of production volume, per facility). Key Environmental
REMNESHEER SHZEER(WE  Rh)BFE  Performance
(LAJHFFEM AEREEWMNEGERBEN SERE BHKEER-
iE R IR IR AR
BREREROT

—E-—F
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Corresponding
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BB =B HEREEEH B
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Adhering to Green 238-240
MR EBUEIREA2.2 production volume, per facility). Development —
REXKERZE(WANSEEEN BHEIXHBTE) Key Environmental

Performance

BREGEERE —

R IR IR AW
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Adhering to Green 230-231
B IR B2 A2.3 taken to achieve them. Development

WA IMEREAMZEERASEIELREMREN BEFEER
B 2 B o

KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that ~ Adhering to Green 230-231
B IR B2 A2.4 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken ~ Development
to achieve them. BREGEER

fib 2t SREGE A KR AT BRI RE - A R PTAT S /) A K&K
wEEERREDEELBEMRMATER-

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Adhering to Green 238-240
IR EBUEIEA25 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Development —
BNMETAREMBNEE (AEE) R (MEA)ZEE  Key Envionmental
BAhE o Performance
BRGEERE —
BRIRIEE N
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EEA3: RERXAREIR
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the Adhering to Green 229-240
— B E environment and natural resources. Development
BERBEITAHRERAAREREKNERTZENBE - BEREER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Adhering to Green 229-240
8 4 45 TR 12 A environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Development —
manage them. Optimising Resource
HMEBETHHRERRABRNEAZERERINEIE Utiisation
T ENTY- BEZEER —
BB IRF A
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4: RIFEL
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Adhering to Green 235-238
— R related issues which have impacted, and those which may Development —
impact, the issuer. Climate Change
BRI NEHERRAIGRSHBETAEETENEARNRIKME Tacking
BEEHBEK - BEGEER—
JE ¥ AR 1t
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have  Adhering to Green 235-238
Ba s 1B TIB 12 A4 impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the Development —
actions taken to manage them. Climate Change
MR EHETAEETENEARARIEHEBE  Tacking
B REHTH- BEEREHER—
JE R &1L
BREREROT
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B. Social
B.#&
Employment and Labour Practices
BEEREZEIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Employee 241-243
— R E EEFHERE BERSEA ITEKE R TE#  Development —
g 2k RERUAREMFSEREHA : Employment and
Employee Rights
(@) the policies; and BIHhEIKE —
1 BE: R BT EFEEES
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
Q2 BITHBTABEAZENHBZEZRROINER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Employee 244-249
B AR B 1E B full- or parttime), age group and geographical region. Development —
RIER - EREAR (ME2BFRE)  Ficdh L& S  Key Social
K fE B BE - Performance
BMHhEINEK —
BREEER
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employee 244-249
AR EBIEEB.2 region. Development —
RIER - FiRAMNRMWEE D HEERKLE - Key Social
Performance
BMHEIKEK —
BB g A
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #REZE

General Disclosure Information on: Employee 249-252
— PRI EE ERARHZ2TIERBELRREEEHABEMESH Development —
Occupation Health
(@  the policies; and and Safety
(1) HE: R BHEIKE —
BERERET D

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

@ BIHBTABEAZENMEBEIELROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of Employee 252
A 4R U IE 12 B2.1 the past three years including the reporting year. Development —
BE=F(BEERFE)SFRITHHAZR R E - Implementing
Production Safety
BMHEINEK —

EFEEELRE

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employee 252
AR E Mg EB2.2 ATEEARTERAS- Development —
Implementing
Production Safety
BMHEIKEK —
BEEELR
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Employee 249-252
R A IR EB2.3 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. Development —
WA ERERELT2EE U NEBERTTRESR  Implementing
5% e Production Safety
BHEIKE —
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Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3: &R REI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Employee 252-257
— B E discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Development —
ERREARERITIEBRENAB RKEMNBE - #HE Employee
BEE) o Development and
Growth
BIhEBINE —
BIEREKK
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Employee 255-257
8 82 4B U 12 B3 category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Development —
MR REERR(NERERE DPREERE)ESNHE  Employee
JIMEEB DL - Development and
Growth
BMHEIKE —
BIT#EREKK
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Employee 255-257
B8R E B EB3.2 and employee category. Development —
BURREEEMNE D  BEEETKXIINFHRKE -  Employee
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

fETEB4 : % T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: Employee 241-242
— MR E BRI E T EH % TH : Development —

KPI B4.1
8 AR K F5 1R B4

KPI B4.2
A i 4E IR 1R B4.2

=

the policies; and

BE: &

S

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

b)) BFHBTABEAZENMBZIELMAONER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
A ST BB E R MR E AR R ET RgH BT -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

W ERRERBAEERERABRARRN TR -

Employment and
Employee Rights
BhHhEIKE —
BTRFEEERS

Employee 241-242
Development —

Employment and

Employee Rights
BMHEIRE —

BT REFEEER

Employee 241-242
Development —
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BMHBIKE —
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BB =B HEREEEH B
Operating Practices
EEEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5: f{fEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Corporate 258-263
— R E supply chain. Responsible
EEHEEMNRERLERAKREUR - Operations —
Supply Chain
Management
ERELE —
HEEEIER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Corporate 262-263
8 82 4B U 1EB5.1 R SNHEEEE - Responsible
Operations —
Supplier Key
Performance
TrEREFLEE —
HER AR
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Corporate 258-261
BB 4B W5 1ZB5.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and Responsible
how they are implemented and monitored. Operations —
MO EEEREEHNED  MERTEBEMNMHER  Supply Chan
HE ARBERITRERTE- Management
EEELE —
e g g 12
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and Corporate 258-261
78 82 4 U5 12B5.3 social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Responsible
implemented and monitored. Operations —
M EEBANERESERGNIREREERARAES - Supply Chain
AR ABREIT REEES 0% - Management
TrEREFLEE —
g E IR
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KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Corporate 262
R A IS EB5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and  Responsible
how they are implemented and monitored. Operations —
i EREHENNEEZARRKRERMREHES - LA Supply Chain
RABBARITRER L - Management
TEEELE —
HEsEE R

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: Optimal and High- 218-221;
— MR EE FEMRRHERNMBRENERRELZS  BE RENRLE  qualty Food — 263-267
EFARBR A ER Trusted Choice;
Corporate
(@  the policies; and Responsible
@ BxE: X Operations

BEmEBEER —
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Z/0 2% ¥ H
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and Fae &
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

b)) BFHBTABEAZENMBZIELMAONER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ Optimal and High- 218-221
8 4 45 I 12 B6. 1 for safety and health reasons. quality Food —
PERCEXEABPRL > EH@EREAMADRWA A Trusted Choice
Fals A BEREER —
2R
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Optimal and High- 222-226
R BEAE MIE1EB6.2 and how they are dealt with. quality Food —
FEBRERERBGOIRFEE UAREHTE- Service Experience
Optimisation
BEmEER —
B R 8e B
BRERBRAA

“ECZCFER
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KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Corporate 266
8 4 5 15B6.3 intellectual property rights. Responsible
Ml BEERRENSEESBENED - Operations —
Intellectual Property
Protection
TEEELE —
HMBERRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.  Optimal and High- 220-221
Bk A 5 12B6.4 HinEsRTABERERBRWRERF - quality Food —
Selected High-quality
Food Ingredients
BEmEER —
BEMERM
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Corporate 263-264
8R4 515 B6.5 and how they are implemented and monitored. Responsible
HIUBEEESIBRERLBEE  UERBEENTRERT  Operations-

b

Best Food Holding Company Limited

Annual Report 2022

Information and
Privacy Security
TrEETLE —
ELEBLEZS



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HEREAEE (R

Corresponding

Issue Issue Description report chapter Page
BB =B HEREEEH B
Aspect B7: Anticorruption
EEB7: RES
General Disclosure Information on: Corporate 265-266
— MR E BB LIEEEE - #R RFELEEERN: Responsible
Operations-Anti-
(@  the policies; and corruption
(@ HE: K TEREELE —
RES
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
) BEIFEHBETABERZENHRBEZEEZRRAOINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Corporate 265-266
R B4 B 1ZBT7 1 brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting  Responsible
period and the outcomes of the cases. Operations-Anti-
RERPAEGETAXEREERLDTEELENEISHIAZK  corruption
MR BB RFRER - rERELE —
RES
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Corporate 265-266
AR A IR EBT.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. Responsible
WP SIS N BRI T U RBERITRER % - Operations-Anti-
corruption
TrEREFKE —
RES
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and  Corporate 265-266
PR 4B B EB7.3 staff. Responsible
HAmESERETRENRESE - Operations-Anti-
corruption
EREELE —
K&
BREREROT

—E-CFEH
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Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
EHEB8: #EBIRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of  Social Responsibility — 268-269
— R E the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its for Public Benefit
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. HERAREMT
ERANMER2ERTHREEMEHEFTEMNBRELERE
BeE Rt RMNRBE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Social Responsibility  268-269
7 8 48 WU 1EB8.1 concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). for Public Benefit
HIEREE(WHE BREFE BIFRK BR X /N
£ 85)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Social Responsibility  268-269

A 5E A W 15B8.2

EEIREMBAER (S EXEFHE) -
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